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CHAIRMAN'’S MESSAGE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

Since Outdoor Channel first launched in 1993, it has always been our goal to provide our dedicated
viewers with the highest quality outdoor programming. Over the past 14 years, my family, our
employees and our board of directors have worked tirelessly in pursuit of this endeavor.

Through this commitment, Outdoor Channel has today grown to become the leading national
television network focused on the outdoor adventure sports genre.

But as a hunter or angler must continually adapt to the given environment in order to maximize the
opportunities for a reward, we as a company must also make continuous adjustments to enhance our
ability to succeed and add greater value to our viewing audience, advertisers, distribution partners,
employees and shareholders. : :

During 2006, the Board of Directors brought about a monumental change with the appointment of
Roger Werner as the new leader of Outdoor Channel. With a stellar track record establishing some of
the first independent cable network successes, including ESPN, SpeedChannet and Outdoor Life,
which is now branded as Versus, Roger Werner is more than just a symbiotic fit for us.

He is an industry pioneer who possesses the talent and the industry know-how to lead an
independent television network in an increasingly competitive marketplace inundated with media
conglomerates. We believe his expertise, focused on our target market of men and outdoor sports
enthusiasts, will prove to be a significant asset to Outdoor Channel at a decisive time in our history.

As Chairman of the Board, | have the utmost confidence that our new President and Chief Executive
will help guide Outdoor Channel to new heights from all perspectives, and.| look forward to working
closely with him to drive continued successes.

We have come a long way since our first beginnings. Outdoor Channel's accomplishments to date
provide a solid platform for our long-term future, and we are excited as we enter the next phase of our
company.

Sincerely,

Perry T. Massie
Chairman of the Board

April 23, 2007




PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

Looking back at the past 14 years since he Massie family first launched Outdoor Channel, the
network has undergone a remarkable evolut on and today is the leading network in programming for
outdoor enthusiasts. | joined Qutdoor Channie! Holdings with an appreciation for the Channel's solid
foundation and a goal of better leveraging its: strengths to create greater vaiue for Outdoor Channel’s
viewing audience, advertisers and shareholders.

Outdoor Channel's successes and consiclerable achievements to date are a result of the hard work
and dedicated efforts of the entire team, and it is my honor to assume the leadership role of the
network and Outdoor Channel Holdings.

The growing popularity of the Outdoor Char nel is reflected in the growth of subscription revenue to
$17.7 million, up substantially over 2005. Advertising sales also benefited from an increased
subscriber base and rose 12.8 percent over the prior year to $25.7 million. including a 9.5 percent
increase in our membership business, total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, grew
13.1 percent over 2005 to $48.5 miillion.

While Outdoor Channel’s subscriber base graw in 2006, we have yet to realize the rate of subscriber
growth expected at the time of the company’s 2005 public offering. Launch support payments alone
have not proved a compelling incentive for expanded carriage with our cable and satellite distributors.
After considerable analysis of the cable and satellite programming marketplace, and with added
guidance from industry experts, our Board tetermined last surnmer that we needed to change our
distribution strategy and offer our customers greater financial incentive to achieve a more impressive
rate of growth. This change precipitated a write-off in 2006 of $9.5 miillion of the carrying value of our
intangible asset, muiti-systern cable operator relationships'.

Including this write-off, afong with the acdditional compensation expense of $3.5 million due to the
adoption of SFAS 123R, the recognition of $2.5 million of compensation expense related to new
management performance units, and higher depreciation and amortization expense associated with a
new broadcast facility, we incurred a net loss >f $7.3 million, or $0.30 per diluted share, for the year.

Looking forward, we entered 2007 with an annual plan that is designed to drive Qutdoor Channel
significantly farther along the track toward our stated growth objectives. Our new strategy focuses on
distribution growth, improved programming quality and leveraging our leadership position in the
outdoor programming market to substantially increase advertising revenues.

Late last year, we undertook a complete revisicn of the terms of our distributors’ affiliation agreements
in response to their requests for a new lower cost approach. Outdoor Channel now offers a new
package of distribution incentives that involves reduced subscriber fees, along with various
combinations of marketing and launch support in markets with growth potential. While we are pleased
with the active, high levels of dialogue with our major cable customers, we are aiso challenged as an
independent network lacking the scale ard market power of our bigger, vertically integrated

! Additional details regarding the write-off are included in our 2006 Form 10-K attached herewith.




competitors. However, improved distribution is the Board’s and management's top priority, and my
team and | are fully engaged and concentrating the majority of our time and efforts in this area of our
development. '

Integral to our efforts to expand distribution will be ongoing enhancements to our product offering,
including improvements in programming and our on-air look. Importantly, we launched a complete
corporate re-branding campaign in March 2007 that unveiled a new logo and ancillary branding
elements specifically designed to reflect the network’s position as the leading provider of exciting
outdoor action, adventure and entertainment. Set to officially debut in the second quarter of this year,
the new logo communicates a more contemporary programming philosophy. As part of this re-
branding effort, our network is now simply being referred to as “Outdoor Channel.”

Outdoor Channel's new branding efforts are also designed with a multi platform distribution strategy
in mind. We now intend to pursue category leadership in standard and high-definition pay television,
video-on-demand (VOD) and broadband video for the Internet.

Outdoor Channel’s latest initiative is to introduce a multi-channel broadband Internet television service
as a companion to our standard television channel. This is a major initiative that we believe will further
extend the market reach of the Qutdoor Channel brand and makes us a more powerful marketing
partner for national advertisers.

2006 was a decisive year in which Outdoor Channel Holdings stepped up to the piate and initiated
actions to improve our company's growth prospects. While we appreciate that the total of these
initiatives may impact our near term operating results, | believe we are making the necessary
investments to protect our core business and enhance its value over the long term. | want to thank all
of you for your ongoing support.

Sincerely,

Roger L. Werner
President and Chief Executive QOfficer

April 23, 2007
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

As used in this annual report on Form 10-K, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” refer to
Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a combined entity, except where noted or where the
context makes clear the reference is only to Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. or one of its subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

The information contained in this report may include forward-looking statements. Our actual results
could differ materially from those discussed in any forward-looking statements. The statements contained
in this report that are not historical are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), including statements, without limitation, regarding our
expectations, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future. We intend that such forward-looking
statements be subject to the safe-harbor provisions contained in those sections. Such forward-looking
statements relate to, among other things: (1) expected revenue and earnings growth and changes in mix;
(2) anticipated expenses including advertising, programming, personnel and others; (3) Nielsen Media
Research, which we refer to as Nielsen, estimates regarding total households and cable and satellite homes
subscribing to and viewers (ratings} of The Outdoor Channel; and (4) other matters. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

These statements involve significant risks and uncertainties and are qualified by important factors that
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those reflected by the forward-looking statements.
Such factors include but are not limited to risks and uncertainties which are discussed below under
“Item 1A Risk Factors” and other risks and uncertainties discussed elsewhere in this report. In assessing
forward-looking statements contained herein, readers are urged to read carefully all cautionary statements
contained in this Form 10-K and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. For
these forward-looking statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking
statements in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act.

Company Overview

We own and operate The Qutdoor Channel®, a national television network devoted to traditional
outdoor activities such as hunting, fishing and shooting sports, as well as off-road motor sports and other
outdoor related lifestyle programming. Our target audience is comprised of sportsmen and outdoor
enthusiasts throughout the U.S. According to a survey by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, in 2001 there
were over 82 million outdoor enthusiasts throughout the U.S. who spent in excess of $100 billion in pursuit
of their outdoor activities. As of December 2006, we had relationships or agreements with the 10 largest
cable and satellite companies in the U.S. Through these arrangements and others, The Outdoor Channel is
carried by approximately 6,200 individual cable and satellite service providers making The Outdoor
Channel available to, meaning that it could potentially be subscribed to by, over 81.1 million
U.S. households. According to estimates by Nielsen, The Outdoor Channel was subscribed to by
approximately 29.7 million households in December 2006.

Nielsen is the leading provider of television audience measurement and advertising information
services worldwide. Nielsen’s estimate of the number of households subscribing to a particular network is
based upon a statistical method, and this estimate is generally accepted in the industry as being the
standard for measuring the number of households a buyer of network advertising time can potentially
reach. Typically the Nielsen estimate of the number of subscribing households to a particular network



exceeds the number of subscribers on which the network is being paid by the service providers for the
following reasons, among others:

+ inherent errors in Nielsen’s statistical methodology;

-¢ a two to four month delay in the reporting of the number of subscribers on which the service
provider is paying the network;

 service providers paying a network on a lcwer number of subscribers than those actually subscribing
to the network because of special arrange ments they have made with various groups of subscribers,
for example, a service provider may agree to charge an apartment complex for only 100 units in a
150 unit complex; Nielsen’s estimate theocetically includes the entire 150 households, but the
service provider only reports 100 subscrib:ng houscholds; and

o theft of a service provider’s television service; again, Nielsen should include these households in its
estimate, but the service provider would not report such household as a subscriber.

Please note that the estimate regarding The Outdoor Channel’s subscriber base is made by Nielsen
Media Research and is theirs alone, and does not represent our opinions, forecasts or predictions. It
should not be implied that we endorse nor necessarily concur with such information, simply due to our ~ - -
reference to or distribution of their estimate. Alt'1ough we realize Nielsen’s estimate is typically greater
than the number of subscribers on which a network is paid by the service providers, we are currently
expericncing a greater difference than we would :xpect, and we anticipate this difference to decrease as we
grow our total number of subscribers.

The Outdoor Channel] was established in 1993 and began broadcasting 24 hours a day in May 1994,
Since inception, we have been committed to providing excellent programming and customer service to our
distribution partners. In recognition of our efforts, The Outdoor Channel was named Programmer of the
Year in 2003 by the National Cable Television Cooperative. We believe The Qutdoor Channel provides
viewers with a unique destination for authentic, informative and entertaining outdoor programming. As a
result, we believe that our viewers tend to be more loyal and spend more time watching The Qutdoor
Channel than other networks that offer outdoor programming. We also believe that The Outdoor Channel
has become a desirable network for advertisers or products and services used by outdoor enthusiasts.

We also own and operate two national membership organizations, Gold Prospector’s Association of
America, LLC, or GPAA, and LDMA-AU, Inc., or Lost Dutchman’s. The theme of these organizations is
the search for gold deposits and treasures while enjoying the outdoors. Initially, we created The Qutdoor
Channel to market memberships in these organizations by airing programming related to these activities.
Through this process, we discovered that members in these organizations were very enthusiastic about
their activities which resulted in a strong consume:r demand for The Outdoor Channel. We believe by
airing programs associated with our membership organizations and other membership, or affinity,
organizations, such as the National Rifle Association and the North American Hunting and Fishing Clubs,
we enhance consumer demand and consequently provide opportunities to increase the number of
subscribers to The Qutdoor Channel.

2006 Developments

During 2006, we completed the build-out of our new digital broadcast facility with the grand opening
on March 31, 2006. This facility provided the infristructure such that we now own a play-back and satellite
up-link for multiple signals including our east and west coast feeds as well as our high definition feed. We
continued to expand our in-house programming e fforts to increase advertising inventory, improve quality
control and better positioning ourselves for the future launch of a multichannel broadband product, VOD
and other re-purposing strategy.




In the third quarter of 2006, we hired outside consultants to assist us in reviewing all aspects of our
business including our strategy for subscriber growth. These consultants recommended that we simplify our
offer to the distributors for increased distribution by offering them reduced subscriber fees for the entire
number of subscribers plus marketing support in exchange for increased distribution instead of offering
them launch support only for the new subscribers resulting from such increased distribution. In addition,
these consultants made suggestions to improve our programming and on-air look. We adopted these new
strategies and hired cable industry pioneer, Roger L. Werner, Jr. as CEO to implement them. Mr. Werner
has held similar positions with ESPN, Prime Ticket (now Fox Sports West), La Cadena Deportiva (now
Fox Sports Americas), Speedvision (now Fox’s Speed Channel}, and Outdoor Life Network (now
Comcast’s Versus).

Under Mr. Werner's new leadership, we have begun approaching the market with a new plan to grow
the subscriber base, begun a re-branding of our channel—including a new logo and our on-air look,
expanded and refocused our affiliate marketing staff efforts and have reinvigorated our advertising sales
efforts. We have also undertaken an initiative to build and provide an updated web site to become the
leading authority on outdoor activities, including the delivery of much of our video content via broadband.
Although we anticipate undertaking these initiatives will increase our costs in the near term, we believe
such strategic pursuits will ultimately enhance our long-term performance.

Industry

Historically, television broadcasters have transmitted signals through the airwaves and households
received the signals through antennas at no cost. This method of broadcasting signals had several
disadvantages. The signal could not reach many areas due to signal strength, remoteness of many
communities and topography. In addition, for those households that could receive the signal, it often
produced poor picture and sound quality.

Unlike traditional television broadcasters which deliver their programming without charge, cable
companies provide subscription television service for a fee. These service providers transmit signals
through coaxial cable connected directly to individual homes. In most markets, this service delivers a much
improved picture and sound quality and offers an increased number and wider variety of channels as
compared to broadcast television. In addition to using cable for connectivity, companies use satellite
technology to provide subscription television service directly to households. This industry of providing
television service to households for a fee, or on a subscription basis, is typically referred to as “pay
television.”

The pay television industry is comprised primarily of two segments: service providers and networks.

Service Providers. Pay television service providers, also commonly referred to as distributors, are
primarily comprised of two types: cable and satellite. These service providers own and operate the
platforms they use to deliver television programming to subscribers. Cable and satellite service providers
compete against each other for subscribers. These service providers attempt to create a mix of channels, or
tiers, that will be attractive to the households in the markets they serve in an effort to attract and retain
these households as subscribers. Histarically, service providers generate revenue primarily by selling
television service to households. They also make many of the programming decisions, including which
channels to carry and in which packaged offering, or tier, a channel should be included.

Cable Systems. Pay television cable systems consist of two groups: independent cable providers
and multi-system cable operators, or MSOs. Independent cable providers are smaller, individual
systems that deliver the television signal to households in only one or a limited number of regions.
Generally, independent cable service providers operate in distinct markets that range from large
metropolitan centers to small rural areas and do not compete directly with each other in their
respective markets. In comparison, MSOs are companies that are affiliated with, or control, a number




of regional or individual cable systems. Examples of MSOs include Time Warner Cable and Comcagt, ;
Cable Communications. In many instances, channels need to establish a relationship with an MSO inq
order to pursue carriage on its affiliated regional cable systems. As of December 2006, cable providers
delivered pay television to approximately 69.1 million 1J.S. households, aceordmg to Nielsen
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, .Satell:te Systems.. Pay television satellite systems deliver television signals to households via ¢,
.orbiting satellites using digital technology. Unlike cable, where the service providers generally do not,;
compete against each other, satellite service providers compete against each other directly because , ,)
reception from any one satellite service provider is generally available to substantially all viewers ,n 5.
wishing to subscribe to it. Examples of satellite service providers include DIRECTV® and DISH
Network™. As of December 2006, there wer: approximately 27.3 million homes receivingpay  « (»
television using some means other than cable, according to Nielsen. We belleve that most of these
households subscribe to a satellite service.

Networks. Networks, also commeonly referred to as television channels, bring together television
programs and package them into a branded scheclule of entertainment. The two types of networks include
broadcast networks, which are available to households through traditional broadcast free of charge, and
pay television networks, which are only available "0 households through cable and satellite service
providers. Most networks are owned by MSOs or media conglomerates. In order to secure the content -
necessary for a cohesive schedule, channels can produce programming internally and acquire third- -patty ’
programming from production companies. Broadcast networks, which are regulated by the Federal e
Communications Commission, or the FCC, geneiate revenue primarily by selling advertising whereas pay
television networks generate revenue by both selling advertising included in their programming and
through subscription fees paid by service providers for the right to deliver the network to their customers

To gain distribution to households, new networks need to establish carriage agreements with service
providers. In order to initiate or improve carriage, many networks, and in particular those networks not
affiliated with any major service provider, may nezd to offer launch incentives, which can include
marketing support, upfront cash payments or other forms of incentives. These incentives or payments are
typically made on a per-subscriber basis and generally before receiving any subscriber fee revenues.

Trends in Pay Television

Transition from Analog to Digital in Cable Systems. Cable distribution has been undergoing
dramatic changes in the technologies that are use:] to deliver programming and services including digital
transmission technology. Digital transmission enables improved picture and sound quality, faster signal
transmission and additional channel capacity. Cable system operators can now offer additional services
such as pay-per-view, video-on-demand and connectivity for [nternet and telephone service. We believe
households that receive a digital signal account for over one-third of the households reached by cable
providers.

Emergence of High Definition Television. 1Jigital transmission technology, whether used by cable or
satellite systems, provides a platform for a new content category: high-definition television, which is
commonly referred to as HD TV. HD TV offers a clearer and sharper picture and enhanced sound, as
compared to standard definition television. In addition, HD TV provides a wider field of vision than a
standard definition television. In order to deliver HD TV, service providers have invested and are expected
to continue to invest in HD-enabled infrastructurc,

Channel Proliferation. Increased system capacity has enabled service providers to carry channels
that offer programming on more focused subject watter and themes. These channels can capture an
audience that is interested in a particular subject and chooses to watch dedicated and consistently themed
programming. We believe the audience demograg hics of these specialized channels tend to be more highly




concentrated than those of general entertainment or broadcast channels. As a result, such specialized
channels offer advertisers an opportunity to communicate with a highly targeted and relevant audience.

Focused and Segmented Advertising. We believe many advertisers have become increasingly
dissatisfied with the results of broadcasting to a broad audience and have become increasingly focused on
maximizing the returns generated per advertising dollar. We believe that individual, specialized channels
on pay television and broadband delivery of such content offer advertisers the opportunity to reach a more
focused demographic as compared to broadcast television. To this end, we believe many advertisers have
begun dedicating portions of their advertising budgets towards channels focused on targeted market
segments whether delivered via television or on the internet via broadband.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe the following strengths enable us to offer a network that is appealing to viewers, service
providers and advertisers.

Authentic, Informative and Entertaining Outdoor Programming

We believe that The Outdoor Channel is a preferred destination for television viewers secking high-
quality, traditional outdoor programming. We are differentiated from other television networks
categorized as sports networks that offer outdoor programming through our focus on traditional outdoor
activities such as hunting, fishing and shooting sports, as well as off-road motor sports and other outdoor
related lifestyle programming. Our programming does not include team sports or “extreme sports” that
other networks offer, which we believe dilutes the interest of our target audience. We believe this strategy
has enabled us to build a loyal audience that tends to watch The Outdoor Channel instead of other
channels that offer a wide variety of outdoor programming.

Attractive Viewer Demographics

We believe that The Outdoor Channel delivers a television audience that may not be as accessible
through other networks and is particularly desirable for advertisers seeking to target a large and
concentrated audience of outdoor enthusiasts. We believe The Outdoor Channel audience consists
primarily of males between the ages of 25 and 54, representing a demographic for which many advertisers
allocate a portion of their budgets. According to studies by Mediamark Research Inc., in 2006,
approximately 80% of the viewers of The Outdoor Channel were male. Nielsen indicates that in
December 2006 the majority of our viewers in primetime did not watch competing specialized sports
channels, such as The Golf Channel, Versus or Speed Channel.

Large Outdoor-Focused Market

We believe our programming appeals to traditional outdoor sports enthusiasts, including those who
hunt and fish. According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s latest survey conducted in 2001, there were
estimated to be over 82 million people who participated in outdoor recreation and spent in excess of
$100 billion pursuing these activities. Of this amount, people who participated in fishing or hunting
collectively spent approximately $70 billion in pursuit of these activitics. We believe that our programming
has strong appeal for viewers that may have participated in traditional outdoor sports in the past or desire
to do so in the future. As we continue to increase our subscriber base, we believe that national accounts
will advertise on The Qutdoor Channel to reach our focused audience of outdoor enthusiasts.

Extensive Service Provider Relationships

We have relationships or affiliate agreements with the majority of pay television service providers,
including the 10 largest in the U.S. According to Nielsen, The Outdoor Channel had approximately




29.7 million subscribers in December 2006. Bas=d on our estimates, The Outdoor Channel is currently
available to, and could potentially be subscribecl to by, over 81.1 million households. As our distribution
agreements expire, we attempt to negotiate and renew such agreements. Although our agreements with
some of the major distributors have expired (in some cases, some considerable time ago), all of such
distributors have continued to-date to carry our channel pursuant to the terms of the expired agreement or
similar terms while we negotiate renewals.

Highly Leverageable Business Model

We anticipate that we will be able to transmit our programming to additional subscribers with little or
no incremental delivery costs. We also believe that our programming, focused on traditional outdoor
activities and recorded in natural settings, tends to be less expensive to produce than programming that
requires elaborate sets, soundstages, highly compensated actors and a large production staff. Furthermore,
the timeless nature of our outdoor programminy; allows us to rebroadcast and use our programming for
additional purposes.

Experienced and Committed Management Team

The members of our senior management team and our board of directors have significant experience
in the cable television sector. The Outdoor Channel was founded by outdoor enthusiasts for outdoor
enthusiasts. We believe that our thorough knowledge of the market for, and our active participation in,
outdoor activities fosters an unwavering commitnent to programming that is relevant to our viewers,
producers, advertisers and sponsors.

Our Business Growth Strategies

The principal components of our strategy tc grow our business are as follows.

Seck to Grow Our Subscriber Base

As a result of our focused content and affinity group marketing initiatives, we have been successful in
increasing our subscriber base to approximately 9.7 million households in December 2006, as estimated
by Nielsen, from our estimate of approximately £.3 million households in 1999. We intend to seek new
opportunities to continue to grow our subscriber base through the following initiatives:

¢ Expand distribution relationships. We intend to expand our marketing and sales efforts to grow our
subscriber base. Through our existing relationships with carriers, we intend to offer service
providers incentives to migrate our chann:l from premium packages to more affordable basic or
expanded basic service packages with a greater number of subscribers. In addition, we plan to
continue to pursue agreements with additional service providers. The incentives we intend to offer
to service providers may include, but are ot limited to, the following:

« overall per subscriber rate reduction;
e enhanced penetration discounts;

e commitments to purchase cross channel promotion spots from the systems’ advertising
inventory;

» upfront payments to service providers, in the form of cash or our securities;

= tocal marketing support, such as promotional materials and sharing of costs for local
advertising; and

e training support for customer service “epresentatives.




» Adopt HD technology. We believe that HD television complements our outdoor-themed content,

The audio and visual characteristics of HD substantially enhance the experience and sense of
adventure provided by our programming. As a validation of the high quality, visually compelling
nature of our HD programming, through an arrangement with Premier Retail Networks, Inc., we

' provide branded HD content being used to promote the sales of HD television sets in well known
retail stores, such as Wal-Mart, Circuit City and Best Buy. We are ready to assist service providers
as they migrate their offerings to HD TV by providing quality HD TV programming.

¢ Enhance Affiliate Sales Efforts. We plan to augment our affiliate sales team with personnel highly
experienced and trained in the industry. Such personnel will be located throughout the United
States in order to better cultivate and service the service providers.

'

Refocus Marketing Efforts

First, we plan to expand our relationships with our affinity groups to better leverage the power of such
organizations in our efforts to grow and maintain our subscriber base. Second, we are expanding our on-air
promotions to better market our programs on our channel in an effort to enhance ratings. Finally, we are
developing cross-channel advertisements to market our channel on other television networks.

Increase Advertising Sales Efforts

We plan to attract additional national advertisers to The Outdoor Channel, and we believe it will
become easier to do so if we are successful in our efforts to grow our subscriber base. Over the past several
years, we have increased our efforts to demonstrate the benefits of advertising on The Outdoor Channel to
companies that advertise nationally. A significant portion of the increase in our advertising revenue over
the last two years is attributable to increases in national advertising on The Outdoor Channel. Currently,
national advertisers such as Ace Hardware, Dickies, Quaker State, Geico Insurance, Optima, Party Poker,
Sprint, and the U.S. Army regularly advertise on The Outdoor Channel. We believe our viewer
demographics are attractive to these and many other national advertisers. In an effort to increase our
advertising revenue, we have established a New York advertising sales office and plan to increase our
visibility to national advertisers.

We also offer national advertisers the opportunity to sponsor several hours of themed programming
as a means to increase brand awareness and visibility to a targeted audience. These opportunities, which
we refer to as block-programming sponsorships, enable advertisers to embed advertising messages and
products in the programming itself in addition to purchasing traditional commercial spots. Beginning in
January 2007, The Outdoor Channel offers nightly programming blocks oriented around the following
themes: Mondays—Fishing; Tuesdays—Big Game Hunting; Wednesdays—Western Lifestyle/Shooting;
Thursdays—Bird Hunting; Fridays—Off-Road Motorsports; Saturdays—Adventure; and Sundays—Big
Game Hunting.

In addition, we believe we can capitalize on our position as the leader in traditional outdoor sports
programming with regards to the endemic advertisers. For those manufacturers of products and providers
of services targeted to hunters and fishermen, we believe we offer the best value and return for their
advertising dollars.




Upgrade Quality of Programming and On-Air Look

v

We plan to improve the quality of our programmming, both technically as well as content, and to ;
improve our on-air look. All shows must now mee a higher minimum level of technical quality, and we
have begun to eliminate those programs not meeting this standard. We are also aggressively seeking ideas .
for new programming content, while at the same t:me realizing that we must remain true to our core
audience. We also plan to re-brand the channel with a new, more modern logo in the very near future and .
simultaneously revamp the overall on-air look and feel of our channel.

Create and Acquire More of Qur Own Programs

Historically, we have contracted with third-party producers to provide a majority of our programming,.
These third-party producers retain ownership of tt e programming that we air and typically purchase from
us a block of the advertising time available during :he airing of their programming which they then resell to
advertisers or use themselves. During 2006, we precduced 28% of the programming (excluding
infomercials) we aired. In the future, we intend to produce more in-house programming and acquire
ownership of programs produced by third parties ty entering into exclusive, multi-year agreements. We
believe this will allow us to retain and sell more ad-ertising time for our own account at higher rates.

Establish Broadband Presence

We plan to establish ourselves as the leading zuthority in outdoor activities by launching our
redesigned web site in the very near future. Our new web site will include broadband delivery of much of
our video programming and provide the user with iraining and education regarding outdoor sports and
recreation as well as the equipment and gear used :n such activities. We believe that our new web site will
allow us to offer enhanced opportunities for our acvertisers, and that by providing our content via
broadband we can also establish an increased demand for our channel in those markets not currently
receiving The Outdoor Channel in a widely distributed programming package or tier.

Expand the Membership in Qur Club Organizations

We originally founded The Outdoor Channel .n an attempt to more effectively market our club
organizations, the theme of which is the search for small gold deposits and other treasure. In an effort to
increase the membership base of GPAA and Lost Dutchman’s, we intend to continue to market to viewers
of The Cutdoor Channel and by producing prograras that are specificaily directed towards their interests.
We will present to such viewers the benefits of menibership in GPAA and Lost Dutchman’s while
promoting subscriptions to our Gold Prospector & Treasure Hunters in the Great Qutdoors magazine. In
addition, we promote and market these two club organizations through direct mail campaigns and our
promotion and sponsorship throughout the country of expositions dedicated to gold prospecting, treasure
hunting and related interests. We also offer intrody ctory outings at our campsites in an effort to increase
membership sales in our national gold prospecting ;ampground club and to increase the number of
participants attending our unique expeditions held near Nome, Alaska and in the Motherlode area of
California.

Sources of Revenue

No single customer of ours accounts for greater than 10% of our total revenue. Our revenues from
The Qutdoor Channel are derived primarily from tvo sources, advertising fees and subscriber fees, as
discussed below.

Advertising Fees

We have two forms of advertising fees, short-form and long-form.
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Short-form Advertising. We sell short-form advertisements on The Outdoor Channel for ¢. . ., 1,
commercial products and services, usually in 30 second increments. The total inventory for our short-
form advertising consists of seven minutes per half hour. Of this available advertising time, on€ minute is
reserved for the local service providers who may preempt the advertisement we insert into the program o
with a local advertisement. Of the remaining six minutes, we either sell it to advertisers for our own
account or to third-party producers who then resell this time to advertisers for their own account or s it

thémselves. C
B 1 . [ LI
Advertisers purchase from us the one minute of advertising time per half hour that is reserved for the
local service providers at a discount understanding that some of the service providers will superimpose .
their own spots over the advertising that we have inserted in the program, causing thesc advertisements to
be éeen by less than all of the viewers of any program. All of this advertising time is sold to direct response
advertlsers Direct response advertisers rely on direct appeals to our viewers to purchase products or !
setvices from toll-free telephone numbers or websites and generally pay lower rates than natlonal

advertisers.

R A L

. o N
] L T

_For the advertising time that we retain for our own account, we endeavor to sell this tlme to natlonal
advertisers and their advertising agencies. The price we are able to charge for this .advertlsmgtlme is _ -
dependent on market conditions, perceived desirability of our viewers and, as estimated by Nielsen, the
number of households subscribing to The Qutdoor Channel and actually viewing programs (ratings). If.we-
are unable to sell all of this advertising time to national firms and agencies, we sell the remaining time to
direct response advertisers. We have been successful in increasing the amount of revenue generated from
national advertisers in the last two years. The majorlty of our revenue from short-form advertising isa” -
result of arrangements with advertising agencies, for which we pay a comrmssmn However, we have some
relationships with marketers who buy directly from us.

.
3

For the advertising time that we sell to third-party producers, we receive revenue directly from the -
producers. This revenue is often at a lower rate than we may have received if we were to retain such time
and sell it ourselves. The producers then resell this advertising time to others or use this time to advertise
their own products or services.

Our advertising revenue tends to reflect seasonal patterns of advertising expenditures, which is . -
common in the broadcast industry. Typically, our advertising revenue from short-form advertising during ,
the second quarter is greater than the first quarter, and the fourth quarter is greater than the third quarter,
of each year. .

Long-form Advertising. Long form advertisements are infomercials that we typically run for
30 minutes, the majority of which are during the overnight hours. In the future, we may reduce the
programming time used for infomercials by replacing it with traditional outdoor programming.

Subscriber Fees S

Cable and satellite service providers typically pay monthly subscriber fees to us for the right to -
broadcast our channel. Our service provider contracts typically range from 5 to 10 years and contain an
annual increase in the monthly subscriber fees we charge. Our contracts also contain volume discounts for
increased distribution by any one service provider. In order to stimulate distribution growth, we plan to
reduce per subscriber fees somewhat over the next 3 years. At present our subscriber fees average less than
$0.10 per subscriber per month. We plan to reduce these fees somewhat over the next 3 yearsas i stlmulus
to distribution growth.

¢
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Programming o

We offer our programming in thematic blocks which, beginning in January 2007, but subject to change
as circumstance dictate, will be nightly programming blocks oriented around the following themes: ~ *' :

Mondays—Fishing; Tuesdays—Big Game Hunting; Wednesdays—Western Lifestyle/Shooting; T
Thursdays—Bird Hunting; Fridays—Off-Road Motorsports; Saturdays—Adventure; and Sundays—Blg +
Game Hunting, "

Each nightly programming environment is highlighted by a high-quality The Outdoor Channel
exclusive series that exemplifies the excitement of the individual genres: I

& On Mondays, viewers can look forward to the premiere of The Outdoor Channel’s all-new ) :
adventure fishing series Speargun Hunter, featuring some of the world’s best free divers in their. |- .
incredibly dangerous pursuit of record-setting catch. In addition to Speargun Hunter, the Monday, ,
night primetime fishing line-up also includes new ¢pisodes of old favorites: In Fisherman—with
Doug Stange and some of North Americz’s finest fishing locations, and Hank Parker’s Qutdoor .
Magazine, featuring tried-and-true techniques from the master angler.

# On Tuesdays, fans of Big Game Huntmg ’an tune into a line-up that features The Outdoor
Channel’s popular returning series Step Qutside, with hosts Doug Painter and two-time Olymplc
gold medalist Kim Rhode furthering the 1mission of the National Shooting Sports Foundation’s
(NSSF) Step Outside program as they hunt some of North America’s prime locations. Step Qutside
is part of The Outdoor Channel’s longest running programming block “Tuesday Night Pursuits},
presented by Mossy Oak Brand Camo. Mossy Oak is best known for its signature program Hunting
the Country, which has been part of The Outdoor Channel’s Tuesday night lineup since 1999.

» Wednesdays will feature a block of Shoot ng and Western Lifestyle programming including The
Outdoor Channel’s returning original, Cowboys, a celebration of all things related to the Cowboy
including world-class Cowboy Action shooting, historical reenactments, and skills and crafts of the
Old West. Pro rodeo from the PRCA and CBR is also a Wednesday night staple.

¢ Thursday’s block features Bird Hunting a:1d The Outdoor Channel’s exclusive series Turkey Call,
produced in association with the National Wild Turkey Federation (NWTF) and hosted by Rob
Keck, this returning favorite brings viewers the best in turkey hunting throughout the world. Turkey
Call joins Mossy Oak’s Whistling Wings to present some of the most exciting wing shootmg
adventures ever captured.

e Friday nights are Motorsports nights on The Outdoor Channel featuring Ride To Adventure, a fast-
paced series hosted by world famous adventurer Bill Baker and regular coverage of major off-road
races from “The Best In The Desert” serics. The rest of the Friday night lineup offers the latest and
greatest of The Outdoor Channel's Off-Road motoring programs like Four Wheeler.

» Saturday nights are now reserved for The Outdoor ChanneY's Adventure series featuring marine,
aviation and snowmobile programming. Signature series include the pioneering aviation program
Wings To Adventure, hosted by Tom Gresham, and Personal Watercraft Television, & high-energy
half-hour hosted by Kevin Cullen that presents the top events and latest equipment in the personal
watercraft industry.

e Hunting programming wraps up The Qutdoor Channel’s week on Sundays, featuring the return of
one of The Outdoor Channel’s longest running and most popular series, Bass Pro Shops Outdoor
‘World, showcasing top hunting pros like Brenda Valentine, Jerry Martin, Bob Foulkrod, Walter
Parrott and Alan Treadwell, among others. Also debuting on Sundays is Whitewater Trails, hosted
by popular outdoorsman Bodie Owens providing one-of-a-kind tips, stories, and epic adventures in
some of the most pristine hunting and fishing locations throughout the country.
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In addition to the new primetime programming blocks, starting in January horizontal strips'of some of
The Outdoor Channel’s most popular shows from past seasons including Ultimate Match Fishing, Bass Pro
Shops Outdoor World Fishing, Getting Close, and Dream Season will air in daily blocks from 2-4pm
EST—as The Qutdoor Channel shoots new episodes for a fall debut. Viewers can also look forward to an
all-fishing block of programs on Saturday mornings from 8-11am EST, featuring past episodes of The
Outdoor Channel standards Bass Champs’ Tournament Trail, and Strike King’s Pro Team Journal.

We either acquire or produce a program in-house or we license a program from a third party. We
have been producing in-house programs since our founding in 1993. On average in 2006 we produced and
aired on The Qutdoor Channel 26 regularly scheduled programs. Third-party programming license
agreements typically provide that the producers retain ownership of the programming and that The
Qutdoor Channel is entitled to air each episode several times per week for periods ranging from three
months to three years. Substantially all of our programming contracts with third parties allow us exclusive
U.S. rights and non-exclusive foreign rights during the term of the licensing agreement. In 2006, we
produced approximately 28%, by number of titles, of our programs in-house and licensed the remaining
72% of our programs from third-party producers.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing efforts are focused on: (a) adding subscribers both through improved
positioning with those service providers already carrying The Outdoor Channel and through new
agreements with service provider systems not currently carrying The Outdoor Channel, (b) increasing
demand from the viewing audience for both accessibility to The Outdoor Channel and for viewership of
our programming and (c) cultivating existing and pursuing new advertising clients.

Service Providers

Generally, our sales and marketing efforts, to increase distribution, focuses on developing strong
relationships with existing and potential cable and satellite service providers through multiple points of
contact including traditional sales visits, a dedicated customer service staff, an active local event team and
the use of a dedicated web site. In addition to building strong relationships with our service providers, we
are involved with a wide variety of traditional marketing efforts including advertising in trade publications,
participating in industry trade shows, and supporting industry related associations. We anticipate that the
widespread adoption of the digital and high definition products offered by our service providers will
provide us with additional opportunities to grow and develop The Outdoor Channel. In order to
strengthen the sales efforts of these service providers, we offer a wide variety of market specific support
including the opportunity to partner with local outdoor clubs, local promotions, direct mail campaigns and
integration into existing consumer marketing initiatives.

Consumers

We market The Outdoor Channel to potential viewers to increase brand awareness and viewership
and to drive consumer requests for carriage, or for more accessible packaging, by the service providers.
These consumer-directed marketing efforts are coordinated with and may be funded in part by the service
providers. These efforts often include traditional marketing campaigns consisting of print, television and
radio advertising. We also use our website to market and promote The Qutdoor Channel through
schedule information, show synopses, games and contests.

We have relationships with a number of outdoor clubs and organizations which provide opportunities
for us to utilize their communication channels to reach their membership with targeted marketing
messages. These relationships also allow The Outdoor Channel to be associated with organizations that
have credibility and relevance to outdoor enthusiasts. Examples of the clubs and organizations with which
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we have déveloped these relationships include National Rifle Association, North American Hunting Club,

North Amerrcan Fishing Club and the National Wild Turkey Federation. 25
B RS |
We also have relationships and sponsorships with the following special interest groups: Congressional ,
Sportsmen’s Foundation, National Shooting Sports; Foundation, Paralyzed Veterans of America, 13
International Hunter Education Association, International Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies, ; ,

U.5. Fish and Wildlife Service and Farmers and Hunters Feeding the Hungry. 1

In addition, we purchase advertisements in mugazines that specialize in content similar to The ‘
Outdoor Channel. We currently advertise in approcimately 80 consumer publications, including American’
Rifleman, Buckmasters Whitetail, Dirt Rider, Fly Fisherman, Guns & Ammo, and Safari Times.

Advertisers : )

Sales and distribution of The Outdoor Chann¢!’s advertising time are conducted by The Qutdoor
Channel’s in-house sales personnel. In 2002, we bepan to subscribe to Nielsen’s services, and the
availability of this information has become a critical tool in attracting advertisers. Our sales team sells -
directly to national advertising accounts, and contir uously monitors available spots in an effort to
maximize advertising revenue. To increase our visibility in the advertising community, we advertise in trade
publications and on trade web sites directed toward advertising executives.

. ‘ 1.
Other Businesses .

In addition to The Outdoor Channel, we own znd operate related businesses that serve the interests
of The Outdoor Channel viewers and other outdoor enthusiasts. These related businesses include Gold
Prospector’s Association of America LL.C, or GPA:\, and LDMA-AU, Inc., or Lost Dutchman’s,

We believe GPAA is one of the largest gold prospecting clubs in the world. GPAA’s members
currently pay an initial membership fee of $79 and ennual renewal fees ranging between $24 and $54.
GPAA sells products and services related to gold prospecting and is the publisher of the “Gold
Prospectors & Treasure Hunters in the Great Outdoors” magazine.

Lost Dutchman'’s is a national gold prospecting campground club with properties in Arizona,
California, Colorado, Georgia, Michigan, Nevada, Morth Carolina, Qregon and South Carolina. Lost
Dutchman’s members currently pay a membership f2e ranging between $3,500 and $3,750 and an annual
maintenance fee of $120. Members are entitled to use any of the campgrounds we own or have rights to
use and are entitled to keep all gold found while prcspecting on any of these properties.

We also offer unique expeditions where participants enjoy gold prospecting and other outdoor
activities. Thc expeditions include annual expeditiors to the heart of the historic Motherlode area in
central California and the camp on our 2,300-acre property along the Cripple River which empties into the
Bering Sea near Nome, Alaska. Participants pay on i per-expedition basis.

Financial Infermation about Segments

Financial information related to our operating segments is included in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements included in this Form 10-K, whi:h note is incorporated by reference herein. The
Outdoor Channel, or TOC, segment has provided 87.8%, 87.5% and 86.6% of our consolidated revenue
during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 anc. 2004, respectively.

Competition

We compete with other television channels for clistribution, audience viewership and advertising sales.




The Outdoor Channel competes with other television channels to be included in the offerings of each
system provider and for placement in the packaged offerings having the most subscribers. In addition, each
television channel focusing on a particular form of content competes directly with other channels offering
similar programming. In the case of The Outdoor Channel, we compete for distribution and viewers with
other television networks aimed at our own target audience which we believe consists primarily of males
between the ages of 25 and 54. We believe such competitors include Versus (formerly OLN), Spike TV,
ESPN and others. It is possible that these or other competitors, many of which have substantially greater
financial and operational resources than us, could revise their programming to offer more traditional
outdoor activities such as hunting, fishing, shooting and other topics which are of interest to our viewers.

Certain technological advances, including the increased deployment of fiber optic cable, are expected
to allow cable systems to greatly expand their present channel capacity. Such added capacity leaves
room for additional programming of all types which could dilute our market share by enabling the
emergence of channels with programming similar to that offered by The Outdoor Channel and lead to
increased competition for viewers from existing or new channels.

We also compete with television networks that generally have large subscriber bases and significant
investments in, and access to, competitive programming sources. In addition, large cable companies have
the financial and technological resources to create and distribute their own channels. For instance, Versus
(“VS”) is owned and operated by Comcast, the largest MSO in the U.S. We believe that while VS currently
offers some blocks of similar programs, there is a substantial difference between the two networks. The
Outdoor Channel emphasizes traditional outdoor activities, such as fishing and hunting, while VS currently
features a significant amount of programming concerning competitive, or extreme, sports. As The Outdoor
Channel becomes more established, however, it is possible that other channels may attempt to offer
programming similar to ours. For example, The Sportsman’s Channel and Men’s Outdoor and Recreation
network have already begun offering programming similar to ours.

We compete for advertising revenue with other pay television networks, broadcast networks, and local
over-the-air television stations. In addition, we compete for advertisers with other forms of advertising
such as satellite and broadcast radio and the print media. We believe that many of these advertising
avenues may not permit an advertiser to target the specific demographic audience who watches The
Qutdoor Channel.

While Lost Dutchman’s has numerous campground competitors, we believe it is the largest
campground club in the United States that has a gold prospecting theme. Campgrounds compete primarily
by quality of facilities and amenities offered. Lost Dutchman’s has rustic facilities and few amenities and
seeks to attract persons who are interested in gold prospecting and hands-on outdoor activities and who
wish to be part of an informal family-oriented environment. We are not aware of any national direct
competitor for our gold prospecting club GPAA, although in a broad sense both GPAA and Lost
Dutchman’s compete with other sources of recreational activities. Lost Dutchman’s and GPAA both
compete primarily through marketing and promotional activities involving expositions, advertisements and
shows on The Outdoor Channel, reaching prospective members through our Gold Prospectors & Treasure
Hunters in the Great Outdoors magazine and other marketing activities.

Other Information

Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. was originally incorporated in Alaska in 1984. On September 8, 2004,
we acquired all of the outstanding shares of The Outdoor Channel, Inc. that we did not previously own.
Effective September 15, 2004 we reincorporated from Alaska into Delaware.
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Employees 1y

As of February 1, 2007, we had a total of 138 eraployees of which 134 were full time. None of our
employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationship with our
employees to be good.

Government Regulation S

Our operations are subject to various governme nt regulations. The operations of cable television
systems, satellite distribution systems and broadcast television stations also are subject to the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended, and to regulatory supervision by the FCC. Our uplink facility in
Temecula, California is licensed by the FCC and must be operated in conformance with the terms and
conditions of that license. The license is also subject to periodic renewal and ongoing regulatory
requirements.

Local Cable Regulation

Cable television systems that carry our programming are regulated by municipalities or other local or
state government authorities which have the jurisdiction to grant and to assign franchises and to negotiate
generally the terms and conditions of such franchises, including rates for basic service charged to
subscribers, except to the extent that such jurisdiction is preempted by federal law. Any such rate
regulation could place downward pressure on the potential subscriber fees we can earn.

Federal Cable Regulation

In 1992, Congress enacted the Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992,
or the 1992 Cable Act, which provides, among other things, for a “must-carry” or “retransmission consent”
regime for local broadcast stations, requiring carriage of certain broadcast stations and consideration to
other broadcast stations for retransmission of their signals, The Cable Communication Policy Act of 1984
requires cable television systems with 36 or more “activated” channels to reserve a percentage of such
channels for commercial use by unaffiliated third pa:ties and permits franchise authorities to require
channel capacity, equipment and facilities for public educational and government access channels.

[n response to the 1992 Cable Act, the FCC adcpted regulations prohibiting programmers in which
cable operators have an “attributable interest” from discriminating between cable operators and their
competitors, or among cable operators, and for increased competition in video programming distribution
(both within the cable industry and between cable and competing video distributors). The 1992 Cable Act
also directed the FCC to adopt regulations limiting the percentage of nationwide subscribers any one cable
system operator may serve and the carriage by cable systems and other video distributors of affiliated
programming services. Although the FCC adopted such regulations, they were invalidated by a United
States Court of Appeals in 2001. The FCC subsequently initiated rulemaking proceedings which remain
pending.

In addition, the 1992 Cable Act requires the FCC to establish regulations for the rates that cable
operators subject to rate regulation may charge for basic cable service and certain other services. Rates are
not regulated for cable systems which are subject to effective competition, as defined in the FCC’s
regulations. The 1992 Cable Act also directed the FCC to establish guidelines for determining when cable
programming may not be provided exclusively to cable operators. The FCC’s implementing regulations
preclude virtualiy all exclusive programming contracis between cable operators and satellite programmers
affiliated with any cable operator (unless the FCC first determines the contract serves the public interest)
and generally prohibit a cable operator that has an attributable interest in a satellite programmer from
improperly influencing the terms and conditions of sile to unaffiliated multi-channel video programming




distributors. The FCC has initiated a rulemaking proceeding regarding the possible extension of the
exclusive contracting prohibition, which is scheduled to expire on October 5, 2007.

In 1996, Congress enacted a comprehensive rewrite of telecommunications law, modifying many of
the provisions of the 1992 Cable Act. Among other things, the legislation allows the cable and telephone
industries to compete in each other’s markets and phased out federal cable rate regulation of non-basic
services, such as the rates charged by cable operators to subscribers for the tiers in which our programming
typically is carried. It also required the FCC to establish rules ensuring that video programming is fully
accessible to the hearing impaired through closed captioning. The rules adopted by the FCC require
substantial closed captioning over a six to ten year phase-in period, which began in 2000, with only limited
exceptions.

Congress and the FCC may, in the future, adopt new laws, regulations and policies regarding a wide
variety of matters which could affect The Outdoor Channel. We are unable to predict the outcome of
future federal legislation, regulation or policies, or the impact of any such laws, regulations or policies on
The Outdoor Channel’s operations.

GPAA and Lost Dutchman’s Regulations

To operate our campgrounds and mining sites, we must obtain discretionary permits or approvals
issued by local governments under local zoning ordinances and other state laws. In addition, to construct
improvements we have usually been required to obtain permits such as building and sanitary sewage
permits. Some states in which we sell memberships have laws regulating campground memberships. These
laws sometimes require comprehensive disclosure to prospective purchasers. Some states have laws
requiring us to register with a state agency and obtain a permit to market.

Other Regulations

In addition to the regulations applicable to the cable television and gold mining industries in general,
we are also subject to various local, state and federal regulations, including, without limitation, regulations
promulgated by federal and state environmental, health and labor agencies. In addition, our mining clubs
are subject to various local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning, zoning,
development, and other utilization of its properties.

Intellectual Property

“The Qutdoor Channel®” is a registered trademark, and “Outdoor Channel 2 HD*” is a service mark,
of The Outdoor Channel, Inc. We have also filed for registration of other trademarks, none of which we
consider material at this time. In addition, we rely on copyright protection of those programs that we own.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. You may read and copy any materials we have filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference
Room at.450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the Securities and Exchange
Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the Public Reference Room. The Securities
and Exchange Commission also maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information concerning issuers that file electronically with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, including us. Our common stock is listed on The Nasdaq Global Market. We
also maintain an internet site at http://www.outdoorchannelholdings.com that contains information
concerning us. Information included or referred to on our website is not incorporated by reference in or
otherwise a part of this report.
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You may obtain a free copy of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and;
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports on the day of filing with the Securities and -
Exchange Commission on our website on the World Wide Web at .
http:/fwww.outdoorchannelholdings.com. Ve will also provide without charge, upon written or oral T
request, a copy of any or all of the documents referred to above. Requests for such documents should be -
directed to Attention: General Counsel, 43145 Business Park Drive, Suite 113, Temecula, California 92590
(Telephone: (951) 699-4749).

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Our business and operations are subje :t to a number of risks and uncertainties, and the following list
should not be considered to be a definitive list of all factors that may affect our business, financial
condition and future operating results and should be read in conjunction with the risks and uncertainties, -
including risk factors, contained in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any
forward-looking statements made by us are made with the intention of obtaining the benefits of the “safe
harbor” provisions of the Securities Litigat:on Reform Act and a number of factors, including, but not
limited to those discussed below, could cause our actual results and experiences to differ materially from
the anticipated results or expectations expressed in any forward-looking statements.

We do not control the methodology used by Nielsen to estimate our subscriber base or television ratings,
and changes, or inaccuracies, in such estimates could cause our advertising revenue to decrease.

Our ability to sell advertising is largely dependent on the size of our subscriber base and television
ratings estimated by Nielsen. We do not control the methodology used by Nielsen for these estimates, and
estimates regarding The Outdoor Channel's subscriber base made by Nielsen is theirs alone and does not
represent opinions, forecasts or prediction: of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. or its management.
Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. does not by its reference to Nielsen or distribution of the Nielsen
Universe Estimate imply its endorsement of or concurrence with such information. In particular, we
believe that we may be subject to a wider difference between the number of subscribers as estimated by
Nielsen and the number of subscribers reported by our cable and satellite MSOs than is typically expected
because we are not fully distributed and ar2 sometimes carried on poorly penetrated tiers. In addition, if
Nielsen modifies its methodology or changes the statistical sample it uses for these estimates, such as the
demographic characteristics of the houscholds, the size of our subscriber base and our ratings could be
negatively affected resulting in a decrease n our advertising revenue.

Cable and satellite service providers conld discontinue or refrain from carrying The Outdoor Channel, or
decide to not renew our distribution agreements, which could substantially reduce the number of viewers
and harm our operating results.

The success of The Outdoor Channel is dependent, in part, on our ability to enter into new carriage
agreements and maintain existing agreements or arrangements with, and carriage by, satellite systems and
multiple system operators’, which we refer to as MSOs, affiliated regional or individual cable systems.
Although we currently have arrangements or agreements with, and are being carried by, all the largest
MSOs and satellite service providers, having such relationship or agreement with a MSO does not ensure
that an MSOs affiliated regional or individual cable systems will carry or continue to carry The Outdoor
Channel or that the satellite service provic er will carry our channel. Under our current contracts and
arrangements, The Outdoor Channel typically offers satellite systems and cable MSOs, along with their
cable affiliates, the right to broadcast The Outdoor Channel to their subscribers, but such contracts or
arrangements do not require that The Ouidoor Channel be offered to all subscribers of, or any tiers
offered by, the service provider. Because certain carriage arrangements do not specify on which service
levels The Outdoor Channel is carried, such as analog versus basic digital, expanded digital or specialty
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tiers, and in which geographic markets The Outdoor Channel will be offered, we have no assurance that
The Outdoor Channel will be carried and available to viewers of any particular MSO or to all satellite
subscribers. In addition, if we are unable to fully comply with the terms of such agreements, the service'!
providers could discontinue carrying The Outdoor Channel. Lastly, we are currently not under any long*
term contract with some of the service providers that are currently distributing our channel. Qur’
distribution agreements with six of the major service providers, accounting for approximately 59% of our
subscriber base as of August 2006, will have terminated as of May 1, 2007. If we are unable to renew these
distribution agreements, we could lose a substantial number of subscribers. If cable and satellite service
providers discontinue or refrain from carrying The Outdoor Channel, or decide to not renew our ‘-
distribution agreement with them, this could reduce the number of viewers and harm our operating results.

We may not be able to grow our subscriber base at a sufficient rate to offset planned increased costs,
decreased revenue or at all, and as a result our revenues and profitability may not increase and could
decrease

A major component of our growth strategy is based on increasing the number of subscnbers to our
channels. Growing our subscriber base depends upon many factors, such as the success of our marketing
efforts in driving consumer demand for our channels; overall growth in cable and satellite subscribers; the °
popularity of our programming; our ability to negotiate new carriage agreements, or amendments to, or
renewals of, current carriage agreements, and maintain existing distribution; plus other factors that are
beyond our control. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain or increase the subscriber~
base of our channels on cable and satellite systems or that our current carriage will not decrease as a result
of a number of factors or that we will be able to maintain our current subscriber fee rates. In particular,
negotiations for new carriage agreements, or amendments to, or renewals of, current carriage agreemqnts;
are lengthy and complex, and we are not able to predict with any accuracy when such increases in our
subscriber base may occur, if at all, of if we can maintain our current subscriber fee rates. If we are unable
to grow our subscriber base, our subscriber and advertising revenues may not increase and could decrease.
In addition, as we plan and prepare for such projected growth in our subscriber base, we plan to increase
our expenses accordingly. If we are not able to increase our revenue to offset these increased expenses, and
if our subscriber fee revenue decreases, our profitability could decrease.

If we offer favorable terms or incentives to service providers in order to grow our subscriber base, our
operating results may be harmed or your percentage of the Company may be diluted.

Although we currently have plans to offer incentives to service providers in an attempt to increase the
number of our subscribers, we may not be able to do so economically or at all. If we are unable to increase
the number of our subscribers on a cost-effective basis, or if the benefits of doing so do not materialize, our
business and operating results would be harmed. In particular, it may be necessary to reduce our subscriber
fees in order to grow our subscriber base. In addition, if we make any upfront cash payments to service
providers for an increase in our subscriber base, our cash flow could be adversely impacted, and we
may incur negative cash flow for some time. In addition, if we were to make such upfront cash payments or |
provide other incentives to service providers, we expect to amortize such amounts ratably over the term of |
the agreements with the service providers. However, if a service provider terminates any such agreement
prior to the expiration of the term of such agreement, then under current accounting rules we may incur a
large expense in that quarter in which the agreement is terminated equal to the remaining un-amortized
amounts and our operating results could accordingly be adversely affected. In addition, if we offer equity
incentives, the terms and amounts of such equity may not be favorable to us or our stockholders.
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If, in our attempt to increase our number of subscribers, we structure favorable terms or incentives with
one service provider in a way that would require us to offer the same terms or incentives to all other
| service providers, our operating results may be harmed.

Many of our existing agreements with cable and satellite service providers contain “most favored
nation” clauses. These clauses typically provide thal if we enter into an agreement with another service
provider on more favorable terms, these terms musi. be offered to the existing service provider, subject to. »
some exceptions and conditions. Future agreements with service providers may also contain similar “most
favored nation” clauses. If, in our attempt to increase our number of subscribers, we reduce our subscriber
fees or structure faunch support fees or other incentives to effectively offer more favorable terms to any
service provider, these clauses may require us to offer similar incentives to other service providers or
reduce the effective subscriber fee rates that we rec:ive from other service providers, and this could
negatively affect our operating results.

If our channels are placed in unpopular program p:ickages by cable or satellite service providers, or if
service fees are increased for our subscribers, the number of viewers of our channel may decline which
could harm our business and operating results,

We do not coitrol the channels with which our channel is packaged by cable or satellite service
providers. The placement by a cable or satellite service provider of our channel in unpopular program
packages could reduce or impair the growth of the rumber of our viewers and subscriber fees paid by
service providers to us. In addition, we do not set th: prices charged by cable and satellite service providers
to their subscribers when our channel is packaged with other television channels. The prices for the
channel packages in which our channel is bundled may be set too high to appeal to individuals who might
otherwise be interested in our network. Further, if cur channel is bundled by service providers with
networks that do not appeal to our viewers or is moved to packages with fewer subscribers, we may lose
viewers. These factors may reduce the number of viewers of our channel, which in turn would reduce our
subscriber fees and advertising revenue.

Consolidation among cable and satellite operators inay harm our business.

Cable and satellite operators continue to consolidate, making The Outdoor Channel increasingly
dependent on fewer operators. If these operators fail to carry The Qutdoor Channel, use their increased
distribution and bargaining power to negotiate less favorable terms of carriage or to obtain additional
volume discounts, our business and operating results would suffer.

‘We may not be able to effectively manage our future growth, and our growth may not continue, which
may substantially harm our business and prospects.

We have undergone rapid and significant growth in revenue and subscribers over the last several
years. There are risks inherent in rapid growth and the pursuit of new strategic objectives, including among
others: investment and development of appropriate infrastructure, such as facilities, information
technology systems and other equipment to support a growing organization, hiring and training new
management, sales and marketing, production, and other personnel and the diversion of management’s
attention and resources from critical areas and existing projects; and implementing systems and procedures
to successfully manage growth, such as monitoring operations, controlling costs, maintaining effective
quality and service, and implementing and maintaining adequate internal controls. Although we have
recently moved into our new Temecula, California broadcast facility, we expect that additional
expenditures will be required as we continue to upgrade our facilities. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to successfully manage our growth, that future growth will occur or that we will be successful in
managing our business objectives. We can provide n assurance that our profitability or revenues will not
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be harmed by future changes in our business. Our operating results could be harmed if such growth does
not occur, or is slower or less profitable than projected.

We may not be able to secure additional national advertising accounts, and as a result, our revenues and
profitability may be negatively impacted.

Our ability to secure additional national advertising accounts, which generally pay higher advertising
rates, depends upon the size of our audience, the popularity of our programming and the demographics of
our viewers, as well as strategies taken by our competitors, strategies taken by advertisers and the relative
bargaining power of advertisers. Competition for national advertising accounts and related advertising
expenditures is intense. We face competition for such advertising expenditures from a variety of sources,
including other cable network companies and other media. We cannot assure you that our sponsors will
pay advertising rates for commercial air time at levels sufficient for us to make a profit or that we will be
able to attract new advertising sponsors or increase advertising revenues. If we are unable to attract
national advertising accounts in sufficient quantities, our revenues and profitability may be harmed.

We have found a material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting and we cannot be
certain in the future that we will be able to report that our controls are without material weakness or to
complete our evaluation of those controls in a timely fashion.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Section 404"}, and the rules and
regulations promulgated by the SEC to implement Section 404, we are required to include in our Form 10-
K an annual report by our management regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting. The report includes, among other things, an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of the end of our fiscal year. This assessment must include disclosure of
any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by management. As of
December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial reporting was ineffective due to the presence of a
material weakness, as more fully described in Item 9A of this Form 10-K. We are actively working to
correct this material weakness, which will continue until we are able to hire additional staff in our
accounting department and successfully operate and test our controls with such staff in place.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of disclosure controls or internal control over financial
reporting, we may discover material weaknesses that we would then be required to disclose. We may not be
able to accurately or timely report on our financial results, and we might be subject to investigation by
regulatory authorities. This could result in a loss of investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness
of our financial reports, which may have an adverse effect on our stock price.

In addition, all internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.
Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to the preparation and presentation of financial statements. Projections of any evaluation of
controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures.

We may be required to pay additional state income taxes for past years.

We are required to pay income taxes in various states in which we conduct our business operations. In
the past, we had paid state income taxes only in California (where our headquarters is located) and had not
paid income taxes to any other state, We have determined that we may have state income tax liability in the
eight states other than California in which our gold prospecting properties are located and have filed
income tax returns in those states for past years. In general, we believe any income taxes paid to states
other than California will be partially offset by a refund from the State of California for income tax
amounis we have overpaid to California in past years. We may, however, be limited as to the number of
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years for which we can receive a refund from California for taxes previously paid, and we cannot predict
when we would receive any such refund. In addition, because each state to which we may owe outstanding
income taxes has a different methodology fcr calculating tax owed and a different tax rate, our aggregate
state income tax liability could be greater thin what we have paid to California in prior years. Qur
agpregate state income tax liability, on which we may owe accrued interest and penalties, could be material
to our results of operations

Expenses relating to programming costs are generally increasing and a number of factors can cause cost
overruns and delays, and our operating results may be adversely impacted if we are not able to
successfully recover the costs of developing and acquiring new programming.

The average cost of programming has increased recently for the cable industry and such increases
may continue. We plan to build our programming library through the acquisition of long-term broadcasting
rights from third party producers, in-house production and outright acquisition of programming, and this
may lead to increases in our programming costs. The development, production and editing of television
programming requires a significant amount of capital and there are substantial financial risks inherent in
developing and producing television prograins. Actual programming and production costs may exceed
their budgets. Factors such as labor disputes, death or disability of key spokespersons or program hosts,
damage to film negatives, master tapes and recordings or adverse weather conditions may cause cost
overruns and delay or prevent completion o a project. If we are not able to successfully recover the costs
of developing or acquiring programming thiough increased revenues, whether the programming is
produced by us or acquired from third-party producers, our business and operating results will be harmed.

Our operating results may be negatively impacted if our Outdoor Channel 2 HD network is not as
successful as we anticipate.

In July 2005, we launched an all new, all native high definition network called Outdoor Channel 2 HD.
There can be no assurance that Outdoor Channel 2 HD will not incur unexpected costs and expenses.
Distribution of Outdoor Channel 2 HD will depend on successfully executing new or amended distribution
agreements with cable and satellite service providers. There can be no assurance that such agreements can
be made, and if they are made, that they wil be on terms favorable to us or that they will not require us to
grant periods of free service and/or marketing commitments to encourage carriage. The public may not
adopt HD consumer television equipment it numbers sufficient to allow profits for an advertiser-
supported service. Bandwidth constraints may keep Outdoor Channel 2 HD from achieving sufficient
distribution from service providers to reach profitability. Competition for quality HD content may increase
the costs of programming for Outdoor Char nel 2 HD beyond our control or expectations. All of these
factors, combined or separately, could increase costs or restrain revenue and adversely affect our
operating results.

QOur operating results may vary significantly, and historical comparisons of our operating results are not
necessarily meaningful and should not be rclied upon as an indicator of future performance.

Cur operations are influenced by many factors. These factors may cause our financial results to vary
significantly in the future and our operating results may not meet the expectations of securities analysts or
investors. If this occurs, the price of our stock may decline. Factors that can cause our results to fluctuate
include, but are not limited to:

» carriage decisions of cable and satellite service providers; -
« demand for advertising, advertising rates and offerings of competing media;

+ changes in the growth rate of cable and satellite subscribers;




cable and satellite service providers’ capital and marketing expenditures and their impact on
programming offerings and penetration;

seasonal trends in viewer interests and activities;

pricing, service, marketing and acquisition decisions that could reduce revenues and impair
quarterly financial results;

the mix of cable television and satellite-delivered programming products and services sold and the
distribution channels for those products and services;

our ability to react quickly to changing consumer trends;
specific economic conditions in the cable television and related industries; and

changing regulatory requirements.

Due to the foregoing and other factors, many of which are beyond our control, our revenue and
operating results vary from period to period and are difficult to forecast. Our expense levels are based in
significant part on our expectations of future revenue. Therefore, our failure to meet revenue expectations
would seriously harm our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows. Further, an
unanticipated decline in revenue for a particular calendar quarter may disproportionately affect our
profitability because our expenses would remain relatively fixed and would not decrease correspondingly.
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Changes to financial accounting standards or our accounting estimates may affect our reported
operating results.

We prepare our financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”), which are subject to interpretations by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the
Securities and Exchange Commission and variou: bodies formed to interpret and create appropriate
accounting policies. A change in those policies can have a significant effect on our reported results and
may even affect our reporting of transactions completed before a change is announced. Accounting
policies affecting many other aspects of our business, including rules relating to business combinations and
employee stock option grants, have recently been revised or are under review. Changes to those rules or
the questioning of current practices may adversely affect our reported financial results or the way we
conduct our business. In addition, our preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP
requires that we make estimates, judgments and sssumptions that affect the recorded amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of those assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
recorded amounts of revenue and expenses durinz the reporting period. A change in the facts and
circumstances surrounding those estimates, including the interpretation of the terms and conditions of our
contractual obligations, could result in a change t our estimates and could impact our operating results,

If we fail to develop and distribute popular progr.ams, our viewership would likely decline, which could
cause advertising and subscriber fee revenues to Jecrease.

Our operating results depend significantly upon the generation of advertising revenue. Our ability to
generate advertising revenues is largely dependent on our Nielsen ratings, which estimates the number of
viewers of The Qutdoor Channel, and this directh impacts the level of interest of advertisers and rates we
are able to charge. If we fail to program popular shows that maintain or increase our current number of
viewers, our Nielsen ratings could decline, which in turn could cause our advertising revenue to decline and
adversely impact our business and operating results. In addition, if we fail to program popular shows the
number of subscribers to our channel may also decrease, resulting in a decrease in our subscriber fee and
advertising revenue.

The market in which we operate is highly competitive, and we may not be able to compete effectively,
particularly against competitors with greater financial resources, brand recognition, marketplace
presence and relationships with service providers.

We compete for viewers with other pay cable television and broadcast networks, including Versus
(formerly OLN), Spike TV, ESPN2 and others. If these or other competitors, many of which have
substantially greater financial and operational resources than us, significantly expand their operations with
respect to outdoor-related programming or their raarket penetration, our business could be harmed. In
addition, certain technological advances, including the deployment of fiber optic cable, which are already
substantially underway, are expected to allow cabl: systems to greatly expand their current channel
capacity, which could dilute our market share and lead to increased competition for viewers from existing
Of New programmning services,

We also compete with television network companies that generally have large subscriber bases and
significant investments in, and access to, competitive programming sources. In some cases, we compete
with cable and satellite service providers that have the financial and technological resources to create and
distribute their own television networks, such as Versus, which is owned and operated by Comcast. In
order to compete for subscribers, we may be requiied to reduce our subscriber fee rates or pay either
launch fees or marketing support or both for carmiage in certain circumstances in the future which
may harm our operating results and margins. We niay also issue our securities from time to time in
connection with our attempts for broader distribution of The Qutdoor Channel and the number of such
securities could be significant. We compete for advertising sales with other pay television networks,
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broadcast networks, and local over-the-air television stations. We also compete for advertising sales with
satellite and broadcast radio and the print media. We compete with other cable television networks for
subscriber fees from, and affiliation agreements with, cable and satellite service providers. Actions by the
Federal Communications Commission, which we refer to as the FCC, and the courts have removed certain
of the impediments to entry by local telephone companies into the video programming distribution
business, and other impediments could be eliminated or modified in the future. These local telephone
companies may distribute programming that is competitive with the programming provided by us to cable
operators.

Changes in corporate governance and securities disclosure and compliance practices have increased and
may continue to increase our legal compliance and financial reporting costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 required us to change or supplement some of our corporate
governance and securities disclosure and compliance practices. The Securities and Exchange Commission
and NASDAQ have revised, and continue to revise, their regulations and listing standards. These
developments have increased, and may continue to increase, our legal compliance and financial reporting
costs.

We may not be able to attract new, or retain existing, members in our club organizations, and as a result
our revenues and profitability may be harmed.

Our ability to attract new members and retain existing members in our club organizations, GPAA and
Lost Dutchman’s, depends, in part, upon our marketing efforts, including our programming on The
Outdoor Channel and such other efforts as direct mail campaigns, continued sponsorship of expositions
dedicated to gold prospecting, treasure hunting and related interests around the country and introductory
outings held at our campsites. We cannot assure you that we will successfully attract new members or
retain existing members. A decline in membership in our club organizations could harm our business and
operating results.

The satellite infrastructure that we use may fail or be preempted by another signal, which could impair
our ability to deliver programming to our cable and satellite service providers.

Qur ability to deliver programming to service providers, and their subscribers, is dependent upon the
satellite equipment and software that we use to work properly to distribute our programming. If this
satellite system fails, or a signal with a higher priority replaces our signal, which is determined by our
agreement with the owner of the satellite, we may not be able to deliver programming to our cable and
satellite service provider customers and their subscribers within the time periods advertised. We have
negotiated for back-up capability with our satellite provider on an in-orbit spare satellite, which provides us
carriage on the back-up satellite in the event that catastrophic failure occurs on the primary satellite. Our
contract provides that our main signal is subject to preemption and until the back-up satellite is in position,
we could lose our signal for a period of time. A loss of our signal could harm our reputation and reduce
our revenues and profits.

Natural disasters and other events beyond our control could interrupt our signal.

Our systems and operations may be vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, floods,
fires, power loss, telecommunication failures and similar events. They also could be subject to break-ins,
sabotage and intentional acts of vandalism. Since our production facilities for The Qutdoor Channel are all
located in Temecula, California, the results of such events could be particularly disruptive because we do
not have readily available alternative facilities from which to conduct our business. Our business
interruption insurance may not be sufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur. Despite any
precautions we may take, the occurrence of a natural disaster or other unanticipated problems at our
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facilities could result in interruptions in our services. Interruptions in our service could harm our
reputation and reduce our revenues and profits.

Seasonal increases or decreases in advertising re venue may negatively affect our business.

Seasonal trends are likely to affect our viewe rship, and consequently, could cause fluctuations in our
advertising revenues. Our business reflects seasonal patterns of advertising expenditures, which is common
in the broadcast industry. For this reason, fluctuations in our revenues and net income could occur from
period to period depending upon the availability of advertising revenues. Due, in part, to these seasonality
factors, the results of any one quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for future periods, and our
cash flows may not correlate with revenue recognition.

‘We may be unable to access capital, or offer equily as an incentive for increased subscribers, on
acceptable terms to fund our future growth and operations.

Our future capital and subscriber growth requirements will depend on numerous factors, including the
success of our efforts to increase advertising revenwues, the amount of resources devoted to increasing
distribution of The Outdoor Channel, and acquiring and producing programming for The Outdoor
Channel. As a result, we could be required to raise substantial additional capital through debt or equity
financing or offer equity as an incentive for increased distribution. To the extent that we raise additional
capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, or offer equity incentives for subscriber
growth, the issuance of such securities could result in dilution to existing stockholders. If we raise
additional capital through the issuance of debt securities, the debt securities would have rights, preferences
and privileges senior to holders of common stock and the terms of such debt could impose restrictions on
our operations. We cannot assure you that additional capital, if required, will be available on acceptable
terms, or at all. If we are unable to obtain additional capital, or must offer equity incentives for subscriber
growth, our current business strategies and plans and ability to fund future operations may be harmed.

We may not be able to attract and retain key personnel.

Qur success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of the principal
members of our sales, marketing, production and rianagement personnel, many of whom would be
difficult to replace. Other than our CEO, Roger L. Werner, Jr., none of our employees are under contract
and all of our employees are “at-will.” Any of our officers or key employees could leave at any time, and
we do not have “key person” life insurance policies covering any of our employees. The competition for
qualified personnel has been strong in our industry. This competition could make it more difficult to retain
our key personnel and to recruit new highly qualified personnel. The loss of Perry T. Massie, our Chairman
of the Board, Roger L. Werner, Jr., our CEO and Fresident, Thomas H. Massie, our Executive Vice
President, William A. Owen, our Chief Financial Officer, or Thomas E. Hornish, our COO and General
Counsel, could adversely impact our business. To artract and retain qualified personnel, we may be
required to grant large option or other share-based incentive awards, which may be highly dilutive to
existing stockholders. We may also be required to pay significant base salaries and cash bonuses to attract
and retain these individuals, which payments could harm our operating results. If we are not able to attract
and retain the necessary personnel we may not be a>le to implement our business plan.

New video recording technologies may reduce our advertising revenue,

A number of new personal video recorders, such as TiVo® in the United States, have emerged in
recent years. These recorders often contain features allowing viewers to watch pre-recorded programs
without watching advertising. The effect of these recorders on viewing patterns and exposure to advertising
could harm our operations and results if our advertisers reduce the advertising rates they are willing to pay
because they believe television advertisements are less effective with these technologies.
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Cable and satellite television programming signals have been stolen or could be stolen in the future, which
reduces our potential revenue from subscriber fees and advertising.

‘The delivery of subscription programming requires the use of conditional access technology to limit
access to programming to only those who subscribe to programming and are authorized to view it.
Conditiconal access systems use, among other things, encryption technology to protect the transmitted
signal from unauthorized access. It is illegal to create, sell or otherwise distribute software or devices 10
circumvent conditional access technologies. However, theft of cable and satellite programming has been
widely reported, and the access or “smart” cards used in cable and satellite service providers” conditional
access systems have been compromised and could be further compromised in the future. When conditional
access systems are compromised, we do not receive the potential subscriber fee revenues from the cable
and satellite service providers. Further, measures that could be taken by cable and satellite service
providers to limit such theft are not under our control. Piracy of our copyrighted materials could reduce
our revenue from subscriber fees and advertising and negatively affect our business and operating results.

Because we expect to become increasingly dependent upon our intellectual property rights, our inability to
protect those rights could negatively impact our ability to compete.

Currently approximately 72% of programs we air (exclusive of infomercials) on The Outdoor Channel
are provided by third-party television and film producers. In order to build a library of programs and
programming distribution rights, we must obtain all of the necessary rights, releases and consents from the
parties involved in developing a project or from the owners of the rights in a completed program. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the necessary rights on acceptable terms, or at all, or
properly maintain and document such rights. In addition, protecting our intellectual property rights by
pursuing those who infringe or dilute our rights can be costly and time consuming. If we are unable to
protect our portfolio of trademarks, service marks, copyrighted material and characters, trade names and
other intellectual property rights, our business and our ability to compete could be harmed.

We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be time-consuming, costly to defend and
result in our loss of significant rights.

Other parties may assert intellectual property infringement claims against us, and our products
may infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties. From time to time, we receive letters alleging
infringement of intellectual property rights of others. Intellectual property litigation can be expensive and
time-consuming and could divert management’s attention from our business. If there is a successful claim
of infringement against us, we may be required to pay substantial damages to the party claiming
infringement or enter into royalty or license agreements that may not be available on acceptable or
desirable terms, if at all. Qur failure to license the proprietary rights on a timely basis would harm our
business.

Some of our existing stockholders ¢an exert control over us and may not make decisions that are in the
best interests of all stockholders.

Our current officers, directors and greater than 5% stockholders together currently control greater
than 50% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, would be able
to exert significant influence over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of
directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. In addition, this concentration of ownership
may delay or prevent a change in contro! of our company, even when a change may be in the best interests
of stockholders. In addition, the interests of these stockholders may not always coincide with our interests
as a company or the interests of other stockholders. Accordingly, these stockholders could cause us to
enter into transactions or agreements that you would not approve.
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The market price of our common stock has been and may continue to be subject to wide fluctuations.

Our stock has historically been and continues to be traded at relatively low volumes and therefore has
been subject to price volatility. Various factors contribute to the volatility of our stock price, including, for
example, low trading volume, quarterly variations in our financial results, increased competition and
general economic and market conditions. While we cannot predict the individual effect that these factors
may have on the market price of our comir on stock, these factors, either individually or in the aggregate,
could result in significant volatility in our stock price during any given period of time. There can be no
assurance that a more active trading market in our stock will develop. As a result, relatively small trades
may have a significant impact on the price of our common stock. Moreover, companies that have
experienced volatility in the market price of their stock often are subject to securities class action litigation.
If we were the subject of such litigation, it could result in substantial costs and divert management’s
attention and resources.

Anti-takeover provisions in our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws and under Delaware law
may enable our incumbent management tc¢ retain control of us and discourage or prevent a change of
control that may be beneficial to our stockholders.

Provisions of Delaware law, our certif.cate of incorporation and bytaws could discourage, delay or
prevent a merger, acquisition or other change in control that stockholders may consider favorable,
including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a premium for your shares. These provisions
also could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common
stock, thereby depressing the market price of our common stock. Furthermore, these provisions could
prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our management. These provisions:

e allow the authorized number of dircctors to be changed only by resolution of our board of directors;

« establish a classified board of directors, providing that not all members of the board be elected at
one time;

» require a 66%% stockholder vote t¢ remove a director, and only for cause;

s authorize our board of directors to issue without stockholder approval blank check preferred stock
that, if issued, could operate as a “poison pill” to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile
acquirer to prevent an acquisition that is not approved by our board of directors;

» require that stockholder actions must be effected at a duly called stockholder meeting and prohibit
stockholder action by written consent;

» establish advance notice requiremeats for stockholder nominations to our board of directors or for
stockholder proposals that can be acted on at stockholder meetings;

¢ except as provided by law, allow on'y our board of directors to call a special meeting of the
stockholders; and

* require a 66%% stockholder vote to amend our certificate of incorporation or bylaws.

In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which may, unless certain criteria are met, prohibit
large stockholders, in particular those owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock, from merging
or combining with us for a prescribed perind of time.
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Technologies in the cable and satellite television industry are constantly changing, and our failure to
acquire or maintain state-of-the-art technology may harm our business and competitive advantage.

The technologies used in the cable and satellite television industry are rapidly evolving. Many
technologies and technological standards are in development and have the potential to significantly
transform the ways in which programming is created and transmitted. We cannot accurately predict the
effects that implementing new technologies will have on our programming and broadcasting operations.
We may be required to incur substantial capital expenditures to implement new technologies, or, if we fail
to do so, may face significant new challenges due to technological advances adopted by competitors, which
in turn could result in harming our business and operating results.

The cable and satellite television industry is subject to substantial governmental regulation for which
compliance may increase our costs and expose us to penalties for failure to comply.

The cable television industry is subject to extensive legislation and regulation at the federal and local
levels, and, in some instances, at the state level, and many aspects of such regulation are currently the
subject of judicial proceedings and administrative or legislative proposals. Similarly, the satellite television
industry is subject to federal regulation. Operating in a regulated industry increases our cost of doing
business as a video programmer.

The Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992, to which we refer as the
1992 Cable Act, includes provisions that preclude cable operators affiliated with video programmers from
favoring their programmers over competitors. The 1992 Cable Act also effectively precludes such
programmers from selling their programming exclusively to cable operators. These provisions potentially
benefit independent programmers such as us by limiting the ability of cable operators affiliated with
programmers from carrying only programming in which they have an ownership interest and from offering
exclusive programming arrangements. However, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit vacated the FCC rule limiting the carriage of affiliated programmers by cable operators.
Although the FCC issued further notices of proposed rulemaking in 2001 and 2005 addressing this issue, it
has not adopted new rules. The exclusivity provision is scheduled to expire in October 2007, but the FCC
has initiated a rulemaking proceeding to determine if a further extension is necessary to protect
competition and diversity.

Regulatory carriage requirements also could reduce the channel capacity available to carry The
Outdoor Channel. The 1992 Cable Act granted television broadcasters a choice of must-carry rights or
retransmission consent rights. The rules adopted by the FCC generally provide for mandatory carriage by
cable systems of all local full-power commercial television broadcast signals selecting must-carry rights and,
depending on a cable system’s channel capacity, non-commercial television broadcast signals. Such
statutorily mandated carriage of broadcast stations, coupled with the provisions of the Cable
Communications Policy Act of 1984, which require cable television systems with 36 or more “activated”
channels to reserve a percentage of such channels for commercial use by unaffiliated third parties and
permit franchise authorities to require the cable operator to provide channel capacity, equipment and
facilities for public, educational and government access channels, could reduce carriage of The Qutdoor
Channel by limiting its carriage in cable systems with limited channel capacity. In 2001, the FCC adopted
rules relating to the cable carriage of digital television signals. Among other things, the rules clarify that a
digital-only television station can assert a right to analog or digital carriage on a cable system. The FCC
initiated a further proceeding to determine whether television broadcasters may assert the rights to
carriage of both analog and digital signals during the transition to digital television and to carriage of all
digital signals. In 2005, the FCC decided that television broadcasters do not have such additional must-
carry rights. Broadcasters formally have requested that the FCC reconsider this decision and are seeking
legislative change to require such carriage. In June 2006, this matter was scheduled to be heard by the FCC
at its open meeting, but was removed from the agenda without discussion. The imposition of such
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additional must-carry regulation, in conjunciion with any limited cable system channel capacity, would
increase the likelihood that cable operators inay be forced to drop some cable programming services and
could reduce carriage of The Outdoor Chanael.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 required the FCC to establish rules and an implementation
schedule to ensure that video programming is fully accessible to the hearing impaired through closed
captioning. The rules adopted by the FCC require substantial closed captioning over a six to ten year
phase-in period, which began in 2000, with cnly limited exemptions, As a result, we will continue to incur
additional costs for closed captioning. Failure to meet these closed captioning requirements could cause a
service provider to discontinue carrying The Outdoor Channel and result in regulatory action by the FCC.

If we distribute television programming through other types of media, we may be required to obtain
federal, state and local licenses or other authorizations to offer such services. We may not be able to obtain
licenses or authorizations in a timely manner, or at all, or conditions could be imposed upon licenses and
authorizations that may not be favorable to us. In the future, increased regulation of rates could, among
other things, put downward pressure on the rates charged by cable programming services, and affect the
ability or willingness of cable system operators to retain or to add The Outdoor Channel network on their
cable systems.

In addition, government-mandated a la carte carriage or small tiers of channeis by cable system
operators could adversely impact our viewership levels if The Outdoor Channel is sold a la carte or moved
to such a tier, In response to a request from the Committee on Energy and Commerce of the House of
Representatives, the FCC’s Media Bureau conducted a study in 2004 regarding, among other things,
government-mandated a la carte or mini-tier packaging of programming services in which each subscriber
would purchase only those channels that he or she desired instead of the larger bundles of different
channels as is typical today. The Media Burzau’s report in 2004 observed that such packaging would
increase the cost of programming to consumers and injure programmers. On February 9, 2006, the Media
Bureau released a further report which stat::d that the 2004 report was flawed and which concluded that a-
la-carte sales could be in the best interests of consumers. Although the FCC cannot mandate a-al-carte
sales, its endorsement of the concept could encourage Congress to consider proposals to mandate a-ala-
carte sales or otherwise seek to impose grez.ter regulatory controls on how cable programming is sold. If, in
response to any statue enacted by Congress, or any rate or other government regulation, cable system
operators implement channel offerings that require subscribers to affirmatively choose to pay a separate
fee to receive The Qutdoor Channel, either by itself or in combination with a limited number of other
channels, the number of viewers for The Outdoor Channel could be reduced.

The regulation of programming services, cable television systems and satellite licensees is subject to
the political process and has been in constant flux over the past decade. Further material changes in the
law and regulatory requirements are difficult to anticipate and our business may be harmed by future
legislation, new regulation, deregulation or court decisions interpreting laws and regulations.

We must comply with many local, states, federal and environmental regulations, for which compliance
may be costly and may expose us to substantial penalties.

Our recreational outdoor activity entities, GPAA and Lost Dutchman’s, share the general risks of all
outdoor recreational activities such as personal injury, environmental compliance and real estate and
environmental regulation. In addition to the general cable television industry regulations, we are also
subject to various local, state and federal regulations, including, without limitation, regulations
promulgated by federal and state environm ental, health and labor agencies. OQur prospecting clubs are
subject to various local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning zoning,
development and other utilization of their propertics. We cannot predict what impact current or future
regulations may have on these businesses. In addition, failure to maintain required permits or licenses, or




to comply with applicable regulations, could result in substantial fines or costs or revocation of our
operating licenses, which would have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

If our goodwill becomes impaired, we will be required to take a non-cash charge which could have a
significant effect on our reported net earnings.

A significant portion of our assets consists of goodwill. In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, or SFAS 142, we test goodwill for
impairment during the fourth quarter of each year, and on an interim date if factors or indicators become
apparent that would require an interim test. A significant downward revision in the present value of
estimated future cash flows for a reporting unit could result in an impairment of goodwill under SFAS 142
and a non-cash charge would be required. Such a charge could have a significant effect on our reported net
earnings.

Future issuance by us of preferred shares could adversely affect the holders of existing shares, and
therefore reduce the value of existing shares.

We are authorized to issue up to 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The issuance of any preferred
stock could adversely affect the rights of the holders of shares of our common stock, and therefore reduce
the value of such shares. No assurance can be given that we will not issue shares of preferred stock in the
future.

We do not expect to pay dividends inl the foreseeable future.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any
payment of cash dividends will also depend on our financial condition, operating results, capital
requirements and other factors and will be at the discretion of our board of directors. Furthermore, at the
time of any potential payment of a cash dividend we may subject to contractual restrictions on, or
prohibitions against, the payment of dividends.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES,

We are currently leasing approximately 32,000 square feet of commercial property located at 43445
Business Park Drive in Temecula, California. In addition, we own approximately 36,000 square feet
including 23,000 square feet of office space and 13,000 square feet of warehouse space located at 43455
Business Park Drive in Temecula. The property located at 43445 Business Park Drive is currently used as
our headquarters. The property located at 43455 Business Park Drive houses our broadcast facility. Both
of these properties are used in connection with our two segments (The Outdoor Channe! and Membership
Division) and the Corporate unit,
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We also own the following properties that we use for camping and gold prospecting in connection with

our membership division segment:

Designation of Property
Cripple River .. ............

LoudMine ................

Stanton Property

BumtRiver................
Vein Mountain Camp
Junction Bar Place
Oconee Camp .............
Leadville Property
Omilak Silver Mine
Athens Property............
Blue Bucket ...............

..................

Approximate Number of Acres Location
2,300 Alaska

37 Georgia
60 Arizona

135 Oregon

132 North Carolina
28 California

120 South Carolina
60 Colorado
40 Alaska
70 Michigan

119 Oregon

In connection with our Membership Division szgment, we also have a mutual use agreement with a
non-profit organization, Lost Dutchman’s Mining Zssociation, Inc., that owns additional properties, some
adjacent to some of our properties. This mutual use. agreement allows our members to camp and prospect
on the properties owned by Lost Dutchman’s Minir g Association, Inc., and in return, the members of Lost

Dutchman’s Mining Association, Inc. may camp and prospect on our properties.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations. As
of the date of this report, we are not a party to any legal proceedings that are expected, individually or in
the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

The following table sets forth the high and low closing prices of our common stock as reported on The
Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known as The Nasdaq National Market) for the periods indicated.

High  Lew

2005 First Quarter ... ...ttt it 1495 13.36
SecondQuarter. ...t i 17.00 13.76

Third Quarter ... ...ovivirn it iiieiearenans 1476  12.77
FourthQuarter .......ooviiiiiiiir i ieiiaanannns 16.50 1347

2006 FirstQuarter .. ... .ot 1527  9.87
Second QUAMEr .. ...ttt 13.14  10.00

Third QUatter ..ot ittiiiir i eiannnaaaans 11.15 9.13
FourthQuarter ..........coiiiiriiiiinaennn.. 1408 10.84

As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately 902 holders of record of our common stock.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently anticipate that we will retain all of our
future earnings for use in the development and expansion of our business and for general corporate
purposes. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend upon our results of operation, financial condition and other factors as the board
of directors, in its discretion, deems relevant.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below shows the five-year cumulative total stockholder return assuming an investment of
$100 and the reinvestment of dividends, although dividends have not been declared on our common stock.
The graph compares total stockholder returns of our common stock, of the Russeil 2000 Index and of a
Peer Group Index consisting of Crown Media Holdings, Inc. and ION Media Networks (formerly known as
Paxson Communications Corporation). The graph assumes that $100 was invested in our stock on
December 31, 2001 and that the same amount was invested in the Russell 2000 Index and the Peer Group
Index. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future performance. Our common stock is
currently traded on The Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known as The Nasdaq National Market). Prior
to September 15, 2004, our common stock was traded on NASD’s OTC Bulletin Board.

The stockholder return shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future performance
and the Company will not make or endorse any predictions as to future stockholder returns.
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Outdoeor Channel Holdings, Inc.
Performance Graph

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return*
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*  Assumes $100 investment on December 31, 2001

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

You should read the selected consolidated financial data presented below in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this report and the notes to those
statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.” The selected consolidated finaicial data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 have been derived from cur audited
consolidated financial statements which app::ar elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidated
financial data as of December 31, 2004, 2007 and 2002 and for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2003 have been derive| from our audited consolidated financial statements which are
not included in this report. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be
expected in the future. All financial information presented has been prepared in United States dollars and
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).
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In 2004, we completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of The Outdoor Channel, Inc.
that we did not previously own. Please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Acquisition of the Minority Interest of The Outdoor Channel, Inc.” for a
discussion regarding this transaction and the comparability of the information before and after such time.

Income Statement Data:
Revenues:
Advertising . ... i
Subscriberfees .......... ... il
Membershipincome .............coviian
Total revenues ..........coveviiiiiiun.nn

Income (loss) from operations.................
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority
INterest......covviviivrr e ne i
Income tax provision (benefit).................
Income (loss) before minority interest..........
Minority interest in net income of consolidated
subsidiary........... o
Netincome (I0S8) . ....oovevinniiiiin i,
Preferred stock dividends.............. ... ..
Net income (loss) applicable to commeon stock. . .

Earnings (loss) per common share:

Diluted.........coivi i e

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:

Balance Sheet Data: .

Cash and cash equivalents ....................
Investment in available-for-sale securities. . .....
Goodwill ... ... e
Total assets .. ...ovieriii e e
Total liabilities ............ oo e,
Minority interest in subsidiary. . ...............
Stockholders’ equity. .. ........ ... ... ol

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 25,679 $22,769 §$ 21,817 $16,396 $10,969
17,687 15,432 13391 10,836 6,071
5,156 4,707 4,746 4,456 4,353
48,522 42,908 39954 31,688 21,393

(13,684) 2,798  (39,704) 7,627 4,576

(11,238) 3,696 (39,589) 7,653 4,621
(3913) 1503 (16011) _ 3,162 _ 1,882
(1325) ~ 2,193 (23,578) 4491 2,739

— — 682 897 444
(7325) 2,193 (24,260) 35594 2295
- = = = __

$ (7,325) § 2,193 $(24,260) $ 3,594 § 2,205

$ (030) $ 010 $ (152) $ 026 § 0.17
$ (030) § 009 $ (152) § 019 $ 015

24,556 21,423 15998 13,824 13,220
24,556 24,732 15998 14,768 14,627

As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

$ 15447 §$ 18276 $13,105 §$ 7,214 § 3,248
42,144 38,830 741 550 80
44.457 44,457 44,457 —
147,957 151,822 99,569 19,848 11,830

5,983 10,018 6,187 4,353 4,405
— — — 2,302 1,263
$141,974 $141,804 $93382 $13,193 § 6,162
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSIONM AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Safe Harbor Statement

The information contained in this repor! may include forward-looking statements. Our actual results
could differ materially from those discussed in any forward-looking statements. The statements contained
in this report that are not historical are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Aci”), including statements, without limitation, regarding our
expectations, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future. We intend that such forward-looking
statements be subject to the safe-harbor provisions contained in those sections. Such forward-looking
statements relate to, among other things: (1) expected revenue and carnings growth and changes in mix;
(2) anticipated expenses including advertising, programming, personnel and others; (3) Nielsen Media
Research, which we refer to as Nielsen, estimates regarding total households and cable and satellite homes
subscribing to and viewers (ratings) of The Outdoor Channel; and (4) other matters. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

These statements involve significant risks and uncertainties and are qualified by important factors that
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those reflected by the forward-looking statements.
Such factors include but are not limited to risks and uncertainties which are discussed above under
“Item 1A Risk Factors” and other risks and 'incertainties discussed elsewhere in this report. In assessing
forward-looking statements contained herein, readers are urged to read carefully all cautionary statements
contained in this Form 10-K and in our other {ilings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. For
these forward-looking statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking
statements in Section 27A of the Securities /Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act.

General

Through our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, The Outdoor Channel, Inc. or TOC, we own and
operate The Outdoor Channel which is a national television network devoted primarily to traditional
outdoor activities, such as hunting, fishing and shooting sports, as well as off-road motor sports and other
outdoor related lifestyle programming. We also own and operate related businesses which serve the
interests of The QOutdoor Channel’s viewers and other outdoor enthusiasts. These related businesses
include: LDMA-AU, Inc., which we refer to as Lost Dutchman’s, and Gold Prospector’s Association of
America, LLC, which we refer to as GPAA. Lost Dutchman’s is a national gold prospecting campground
club with properties in Arizona, California, t_olorado, Georgia, Michigan, North Carolina, Oregon and
South Carolina. Among other services offer:d, GPAA is the publisher of the Gold Prospector & Treasure
Hunters in the Great Outdoors magazine. [n addition, we are the owner of a 2,300 acre property near Nome,
Alaska used to provide outings for a fee to the members of Lost Dutchman’s and GPAA. Outdoor
Channe! Holdings also wholly owns 43455 BPD, LLC that owns the building housing our broadcast facility.

Our revenues include (1) advertising fees from advertisements aired on The Qutdoor Channel and
from advertisements in Gold Prospector & T.easure Hunters in the Great Ourdoors magazine; {2) subscriber
fees paid by cable and satellite service providers that air The Outdoor Channel; and (3) membership fees
from members in both Lost Dutchman’s and GPAA and other income including magazine sales, products
and services related to gold prospecting, gold expositions, expeditions and outings. Advertising fees include
fees paid by third-party programmers to puichase advertising time in connection with the airing of their
programs on The Qutdoor Channel.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified from
amounts in the consolidated financial statements we originally filed before the restatements described in
Note 3 of our financial statements either to conform to the 2006 presentations or to provide additional
detail about our operating results and more fully comply with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
(“SEC”) Regulation S-X. In particular certain amounts included under “expenses” in the 2005 and 2004
consolidated financial statements we originally issued have been reclassified in line items under either
“cost of services™ or “other expenses”. Cost of services includes programming, satellite transmission fees,
production and operations and other direct costs. Other expenses include advertising, selling, general and
administrative and depreciation and amortization. Further to better match intangible assets with the
segment to which they pertain, we have reclassified the amortizable intangible assets and the goodwill
which were recorded in connection with the acquisition on September 8, 2004 of the remaining 17.6%
minority interest in TOC along with the related amortization expense from “Corporate” to the “TOC”
segment. Certain other changes have been made in the historical consolidated financial statements to
conform with current presentations.

Acquisition of the Minority Interest of The Outdoor Channel, Inc.

On September 8, 2004, we completed the acquisition of the remaining minority interest in TOC which
we did not previously own through (i) the merger of TOC with our newly-formed, wholly owned subsidiary,
with TOC being the surviving corporation, and (ii) the exchange of each share of TOC common stock not
previously held by us or our subsidiaries for 0.65 shares of our common stock. In addition, each
outstanding option to purchase one share of TOC common stock was exchanged for an option to purchase
0.65 shares of our common stock. In September 2004, every two outstanding shares of our common stock
were converted into five outstanding shares of common stock in conjunction with our reincorporation from
Alaska to Delaware (the “5 for 2 split™).

Based on the exchange ratio in the merger we issued 3,069,790 shares of our common stock as well as
options to purchase 4,012,125 additional shares, each as adjusted for the 5 for 2 split. The shares issued
include the shares of common stock issued to a former TOC shareholder who originally exercised his
dissenters’ rights in connection with the transaction, but who later withdrew, with our consent, the demand
to exercise such dissenter’s rights. For accounting purposes, all previously outstanding TOC common
shares, including the dissenting shares, have been deemed 1o have been exchanged for shares of our
common stock in September 2004.

The acquisition of the 17.6% minority interest in TOC was accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting. The cost of acquiring the minority interest included the aggregate fair value of our common
shares issued in exchange for common shares of TOC and certain other direct costs. The acquisition cost
was allocated based on the fair value of the assets of TOC that were acquired and liabilities that were
assumed, including intangible assets that arose from contractual or other legal rights or met certain other
recognition criteria that underlie the minority interest that was acquired. The excess of the cost of the
minority interest over the fair value of the underlying interest in the net identifiable assets acquired was
allocated to goodwill. In addition, in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”) the tax effects of the intangible assets
have been treated as additional consideration. This additional consideration has also been allocated to
goodwill.

The cost of our acquisition of the minority interest in TOC was $54,985,000 based on the issuance at
the closing of 3,069,790 shares of our common stock (including shares issued to the former dissenter) and
the average closing price of $16.24 per share of our common stock for a specified period before and after
April 20, 2004, the last trading day before the public announcement of the material terms of the acquisition
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plus the assumption of 325,000 fully vested options of a former employee of TOC with an intrinsic value of
$4,250,000 plus certain other costs including income tax effects. Based on the analysis of the fair value of
the assets that were acquired and liabilities that wer > assumed, the acquisition costs of $54,985,000 were
allocated primarily to intangible assets as follows:

Estimated
Allocation Useful Life
(in thousands)
MSO relationships. ............ ..o iin il $10,573 21 years, 4 months
Advertising customer relationships: '
Shortform ...l 1,351 4 years
Longform.............coooiiiiit, 621 3 years
Total identifiable intangible assets.............. 12,545
Goodwill . ... ... . 44,457 Indefinite
Deferred tax liability associated with intangible
BSSEES L e e e, {5,001)
Minority interest in subsidiary. .. ............... 2,984
Aggregate purchase price. .........cooeeveinnnn. $54,985

The exchange of vested employee stock options by us for vested stock options held by employees of
TOC resulted in a charge to operations in our consolidated statement of operations on September §, 2004
equal to the value of the options issued on that date net of any related income tax benefit. The options to
purchase approximately 3,687,125 shares that we issued in exchange for vested stock options heid by the
employees of TOC on September 8, 2004 had a fair value of $14.00 per share based on the closing price of
our common stock on that day. As a result, we incuired a non-cash, non-recurring charge to operating
expenses of $47,983,000 and recognized an income “ax benefit of $19,098,000 or a net charge of
$28,885,000.

In some of the following period-to-period comrarisons, we have specifically noted, and at times
excluded the non-cash, non-recurring compensation expense of $47,983,000 incurred by us and the related
tax benefit of $19,098,000 as the result of the assumption of TOC options in connection with our
acquisition of the minority interest in TOC as part of our analysis because we believe separately
quantifying the effects of these items provides the rzader with a better understanding of our operating
results. We also believe that an analysis of our results in this manner, when presented in conjunction with
our analysis of the corresponding GAAP measures, provides useful information to management and others
in identifying and understanding our operating performance for the periods presented and in making
useful comparisons.

Reassessment of Useful Life of MSO Relationships

During the three months ended September 30, 2006, we reviewed the facts and circumstances
regarding the useful life of our intangible assets attributable to multi-system cable operator (“MSO™)
relationships as of September 8, 2004 when we completed the acquisition of the minority interest in TOC
that we did not previously own and allocated a portion of the excess of the cost of the minority interest
over the fair value of the underlying interest in the et identifiable assets acquired to the MSO
relationships. After consideration of the facts and circumstances, the nature of our business, our
expetience with the MSQs of our network, and the proclivities of our industry, we have concluded that as
of September 8, 2004 cur MSO relationships asset had a definite life which we have estimated to be 21
years and 4 months and, accordingly, we reclassified all of the amounts originally allocated to the cost of
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MSO relationships from other non-amortizable intangible assets to amortizable intangible assets as of that
date.

The accounting treatment resulting from this reassessment of the useful life of this asset has resulted
in adjustments to amortization expense and certain other related adjustments to our previously issued
consolidated financial statements as of and for the periods ended September 30, 2004 through June 30,
2006. We determined that the effects of these adjustments were immaterial individually and in the
aggregate to our annual and quarterly reports filed prior to January 1, 2005 and thus we did not amend
those filings. However, we determined the effects of these adjustments were material to our quarterly and
annual reports filed for the periods ended March 31, 2005 through June 30, 2006 and we have amended all
of those filings. The comparative consolidated financial statements in this report reflect the restated
balances.

Considerations of Impairment of Intangible Assets

During the three months ended September 30, 2006, we engaged third party consultants to review our
business practices and strategy. Among the areas reviewed was our approach to growing our subscriber
base through our relationships with MSOs. In September 2006, the consultants concluded, and the Board
of Directors accepted their conclusions, that a complete revision of the terms of our relationships with
MSOs was necessary to meet the subscriber growth goals established by us. Upon acceptance of that
conclusion and the general strategy outlined by the consultants, we reviewed our amortizable MSO
relationships and our other amortizable intangible assets (customer lists and trademarks) for impairment
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). Based upon the changed circumstances, we concluded that,
as of the date we accepted the consultants’ conclusion, our MSO relationships asset was fully impaired and
that our other remaining amortizable intangible assets were not. Accordingly, we have charged to expense
the remaining unamortized carrying value of the MSO relationships of $9,540 during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

We further concluded that the carrying value of goodwill has not been impaired and that the changed
circumstances have not affected the estimated lives of the remaining amortizable intangible assets.
However, these estimates will continue to be reviewed during each reporting period to determine whether
circumstances continue to support their carrying values and, where applicable, their estimated useful lives.
Estimates are subject to risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from
those projected or implied in the determination of the fair value. A significant downward revision in the
present value of estimated future cash flows for a reporting unit or the undiscounted cash flows from the
other remaining amortizable intangible assets could result in an impairment of goodwill or the remaining
amortizable intangibles and a non-cash charge would be required. Such a charge counld have a significant
effect on our reported net earnings.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect
our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition

Advertising revenues for The Outdoo: Channel are recognized when the advertisement is aired.
Adpvertising revenues from advertisements in our bi-monthly magazine are recognized when the magazine
is distributed. Revenues from the expeditions are recognized when they are taken in June through
August each year. Revenues from outings ind gold expositions are recognized at the time of the event.
Subscriber fees for The Outdoor Channel are recognized in the period the programming is aired by the
distributor and collection is probable,

Broadcast and national television netv/ork advertising contracts may guarantee the advertiser a
minimum audience for its advertisements over the term of the contracts. We provide the advertiser with
additional advertising time if we do not deliver the guaranteed audience size. The amount of additional
advertising time is generally based upon the percentage of shortfall in audience size. This requires us to
make estimates of the audience size that will be delivered throughout the terms of the contracts. We base
our estimate of audience size on information provided by ratings services and our historical experience. If
we determine we will not deliver the guaraateed audience, an accrual for “make-good” advertisements is
recorded as a reduction of revenue. The estimated make-good accrual is adjusted throughout the terms of
the advertising contracts.

We recognize merchandise sales wher the product is shipped and collection of the receivable is
probable. Lost Dutchman’s campground membership sales are generally recognized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated average life (7 years) of the membership. We do not record receivables arising under
these contracts. Accordingly, revenues recognized do not exceed the total cash payments received and cash
received in excess of revenue earned is recorded as deferred revenue. The majority of GPAA membership
sales is for one year and is generally recogrized in the year of sale. Multi-year GPAA membership sales are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of a membership, and an estimated life of 15 years for a
lifetime membership.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, MSO relationships, advertising customer
relationships, goodwill and trademarks, are: reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are
recognized when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the undiscounted cash flows estimated to
be generated by such assets are less than their carrying value and, accordingly, all or a portion of such
carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses for assets to be held and used are then measured
based on the excess, if any, of the carrying iimounts of the assets over their estimated fair values, Long-
lived assets to be disposed of in a manner that meets specific criteria are stated at the lower of their
carrying amounts or fair values less costs tc: sell and are no longer depreciated.

Accounts Receivable

We maintain an allowance for doubtfr] accounts for estimated losses that may arise if any of our
customers are unable to make required payments. Management specifically analyzes the age of customer
balances, historical bad debt experience, customer credit-worthiness and trade publications regarding the
financial health of our larger customers amd changes in customer payment terms when making estimates of
the uncollectability of our trade accounts receivable balances. If we determine that the financial condition
of any of our customers deteriorated, whether due to customer specific or general economic issues,
increases in the allowance may be made,
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Deferred Tax Assets and Income Taxes

We account for income taxes pursuant to the asset and liability method which requires deferred
income tax assets and liabilities to be computed for temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on
enacted laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the temporary differences are expected to affect
taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amounts expected to be realized. The income tax provision is the tax payable or refundable for the period
ptus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

With our adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006 we present, on a prospective basis, the tax
benefits from exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense as a cash flow from financing
activities in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows rather than as a cash flow from
operating activities, as was prescribed under accounting rules applicable through December 31, 2005. This
requirement reduces the amount reflected as net cash provided by operating activities and increases net
cash provided by financing activities. Total cash flows remained unchanged from that which would have
been reported under prior accounting rules. We recognize such benefits only if they have been realized
which we determine by following the tax law method, which provides that current deductions are
recognized before realizing the benefits of our net operating loss carryforwards.

Recent Accounting Developments

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) (“SFAS 123R”) “Share-Based Payment” which
revised the standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods or services and focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity
obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS 123R requires that the fair value of
such equity instruments, including all options granted to employees, be recognized as expense in the
historical financial statements as services are performed. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we used the
intrinsic value method to account for employee stock options and, generally, made no charges against
earnings with respect to those options at the date of grant since our employee options had exercise prices
that were equal to the market price. SFAS 123R is effective for issuers as of the beginning of the first
annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2005. Accordingly, we adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FAS No. 109” (“FIN 487), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes. Currently, the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes is subject to significant and varied
interpretations that have resulted in diverse and inconsistent accounting practices and measurements.
Addressing such diversity, FIN 48 prescribes a consistent recognition threshold and measurement
attribute, as well as clear criteria for subsequently recognizing, derecognizing and measuring changes in
such tax positions for financial statement purposes. FIN 48 also requires expanded disclosure with respect
to the uncertainty in income taxes. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
We have not yet determined the impact of FIN 48 on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, cash flows or financial statement disclesures.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 1087). SAB 108 provides guidance on how prior year
misstatements should be taken into consideration when quantifying misstatements in current year financial
statements for purposes of determining whether the current year’s financial statements are materially

41




misstated. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. The adoption of
SAB 108 did not have any impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS No. 1577), “Fair Value Measurements”,
This statement establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures on fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We
have not determined the impact, if any, the adoption of this statement will have on our consolidated
financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair
value option has been elected will be reported in eacnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not determined the impact, if any, the adoption of this
statement will have on our consolidated financial stitements.

The FASB had issued certain other accounting pronouncements as of December 31, 2006 that will
become effective in subsequent periods; however, our management does not believe that any of those
pronouncements would have significantly affected cur financial accounting measurements or disclosures
had they been in effect during 2006, 2005 cr 2004.
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

The following table discloses certain financial information for the periods presented, expressed in
terms of dollars, dollar change, percentage change and as a percent of total revenue (all dollar amounts are
in thousands):

% of Total
Change Revenue
2006 2005 $ %o 2006 2005
Revenues:
Advertising . ......ovv i $ 25679 $22769 § 2910 128% 53.0% 53.0%
Subscriberfees..................... 17,687 15,432 2,255 14.6 364 36.0
Membership income ................ 5,156 4,707 449 9.5 10.6 11.0
Totalrevenues ..........ovnvnnnn 48,522 42,908 5,614 131 100.0 1000
Cost of services:
Programming ...................... 8,355 5,604 2,751 49.1 17.2 13.1
Satellite transmission fees. ........... 2,550 2,497 53 2.1 5.2 5.8
Production and operations........... 4,078 3,458 620 17.9 8.4 8.0
Other directcosts. .................. 1,151 1,355 (204) (15.1) 24 3.2
Total cost of services.............. 16,134 12,914 3,220 24.9 33.2 30.1
Other expenses: )
Advertising ..o, 7,119 7,100 19 0.3 147 16.6
Selling, general and administrative.. . .. 26,168 17,375 8,793 50.6 53.9 40.5
Impairment of amortizable intangible
ASSETS ittt e 9,540 — 9,540 NMF 19.7 —
Depreciation andamortization. . . .. ... 3,245 2,721 524 19.3 6.7 6.3
Total other expenses . ............. 46,072 27,196 18,876 69.4 95.0 63.4
Income (loss) from operations. ......... (13,684) 2,798  (16,482) (589.1) (28.2) 6.5
Interestexpense ...................... (246) (45) (201) 446.7 0.5 (0.1
Otherincome ...............c..0ovvnus 2,692 943 1,749 185.5 5.5 2.2
Income (loss) before income taxes ... ... (11,238) 3,696  (14,934) (404.1) (23.2) 8.6
Income tax provision (benefit).......... {3,913 1,503 (5416) (360.3) (8.1) 3.5
Netincome {(loss)..................... $ (7,325y § 2,193 § (9,518) (434.0)% (15.1)% 5.1%

NMF—Not Meaningful

Revenues

Our revenues include revenues from (1) advertising fees; (2) subscriber fees; and (3) membership
income. Advertising revenue is generated from the sale of advertising time on The Outdoor Channel
including advertisements shown during a program (also known as short-form advertising) and infomercials
in which the advertisement is the program itself (also known as long-form advertising) and from the sale of
advertising space in publications such as the Gold Prospectors & Treasure Hunters in the Great Outdoors
magazine. Advertising revenue is also generated from fees paid by third party programmers that purchase
advertising time in connection with the airing of their programs on The Qutdoor Channel. In each of the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, The Outdoor Channel generated approximately 97.0% of our
advertising revenue. Subscriber fees are solely related to The Outdoor Channel. Membership income is
generated by our activities other than the operation of The Qutdoor Channel and includes membership
sales, magazine sales, merchandise sales, and sponsored outings and expeditions in connection with GPAA
and Lost Dutchman’s.
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:

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $48,522,000, an increase of $5,614,000, or
13.1%, compared to revenues of $42,908,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The net increases
were the result of changes in several items comprising revenue as discussed below.

Advertising revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $25,679,000, an increase of $2,910,000
or 12.8% compared to $22,769,000 for the yezr ended December 31, 2005. For December 2006, Nielsen
estimated that The Outdoor Channel had 29.7 million subscribers compared to 25.7 million for the same
period a year ago. The increase in advertising revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 principally
reflects higher prices paid by third party prog-ammers for advertising time in connection with the airing of
their programs, incremental advertising inventory retained by us to sell and additional revenue generated
by our technical services department for providing production services for third party programmers. These
factors contributing to the increase were offset somewhat by less demand for our long-form inventory that
resulted in lower prices paid for infomercial tlocks. We expect softness in the long-form market to
continue for the short-term future. We expect to provide less technical services to third parties in 2007 than
in 2006.

Niclsen revises its estimate of the nurber of subscribers to our channel each month, and for
March 2007 Nielsen increased its estimate to almost 30 million subscribers. Nielsen is the leading provider
of television audience measurement and advertising information services worldwide, and its estimates and
methodology are generally accepted and used in the advertising industry. Although we realize Nielsen’s
estimate is typically greater than the number of subscribers on which a network is paid by the service
providers, we are currently experiencing a greater difference in these two different numbers of subscribers
than we would expect. We anticipate this difference to decrease as we grow our total subscriber base.
There can be no assurances that Nielsen will continue to report growth of its estimate of our subscribers
and in fact at some point Nielsen might even report declines in our subscriber estimate. If that were to
happen, we could suffer a reduction in advertising revenue.

Subscriber fees for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $17,687,000, an increase of $2,255,000 or
14.6% compared to $15,432,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in subscriber fees for
the period was primarily due to an increased number of paying subscribers both from new affiliates and
from existing distributors as well as contractual subscriber fee rate increases with existing service providers
carrying The Qutdoor Channel.

We plan to accelerate our subscriber growth utilizing various means including deployment of rate
relief for new and existing subscribers and piyment of subscriber acquisition or launch support fees among
other tactics. Such launch support fees are capitalized and amortized over the period that the pay
television distributor is required to carry the newly acquired TOC subscriber. To the extent revenue is
associated with the incremental subscribers, the amortization is charged to offset the related revenue. Any
excess of launch support amortization over the related subscriber fee revenue is charged to expense. As a
result of a combination of these tactics, we anticipate subscriber fee revenue, net will decrease over the
short-term future as we deploy this strategy.

Membership income for the year ende¢ December 31, 2006 was $5,156,000, an increase of $449,000 or
9.5% compared to $4,707,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. We believe that the recent surge in
gold prices has reflected itself in renewed interest by the consuming public that led to our increased activity
in 2006. In the near term, we do not expect significant fluctuations in membership income year-to-year.

Cost of Services

Our cost of services consists primarily of the cost of providing our broadcast signal and programming
to the distributors for transmission to the consumer and costs associated with the production and delivery
of our magazine and merchandise sales. Cost of services includes (1) programming costs; (2) satellite
transmission fees; (3) production and operations costs; and (4) other direct costs. Total cost of services for
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the year ended December 31, 2006 was $16,134,000, an increase of $3,220,000 or 24.9%, compared to
$12,914,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of revenues, total cost of services was
33.2% and 30.1% in the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The increase in cost of
services, as further discussed below, relates principally to increased programming costs related to
producing shows to air on our second network, which we did not have in the first half of 2005. We expect
cost of services to continue to increase in the future as we expand our existing markets and in-house
production to support our advertising strategy.

Programming expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $8,355,000, an increase of
$2,751,000 or 49.1% compared to $5,604,000 for year ended December 31, 2005. The increase is principally
a result of our decision to launch our second channel, Qutdeor Channel 2 HD, on July 1, 2005. We
incurred minimal programming costs relative to this channel in the first and second quarters of 2005 as
most of such costs incurred at that time were charged to prepaid programming costs in anticipation of its
launch in the second haif of 2005.

Our policy is to charge costs of specific show production to programming expense over the expected
airing period beginning when the program first airs. The cost of programming is generally first recorded as
prepaid programming costs and is then charged to programming expense based on the anticipated airing
schedule. The anticipated airing schedule has typically been over 2 or 4 quarters that gencrally does not
extend over more than 2 years. As the anticipated airing schedule changes, the timing and amount of the
charge to expense is prospectively adjusted accordingly. At the time we determine a program is unlikely to
air or re-air, we charge programming expense with the remaining associated cost recorded in prepaid
programming. We reassessed our programming direction during the fourth quarter of 2006 and charged to
expense over $900,000 of prepaid programming costs that had otherwise been planned to air and then be
expensed in the future. Programming expenses are expected to stabilize as a percentage of revenue over
the near term. Further, we are considering a new programming strategy which will include more airings per
show including a greater number of repeat episodes within the quarter and potentially more quarters
extending over more years. As this plan is developed we will reconsider the appropriate timing of the
charge to expense of our programming costs.

Satellite transmission fees for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $2,550,000, an increase of
$53,000, or 2.1%, compared to $2,497,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. We do not expect
significant fluctuations in satellite transmission fees other than marginal increases reflecting contractual
price increases over the foreseeable future.

Production and operations costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $4,078,000, an increase
of $620,000, or 17.9%, compared to $3,458,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in
costs principally relates to increased personnel to support our growing infrastructure as we produce more
shows in-house and to support our new broadcast facility.

Other direct costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $1,151,000, a decrease of $204,000, or
15.1%, compared to $1,355,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease is principally related
to less printed material being seat to the members of our Membership Division including one less
magazine in 2006 than in 2005, and other related materials.

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist of the cost of (1) advertising; (2) selling, general and administrative expenses;
and (3) depreciation and amortization. In addition for the year ended December 31, 2006, other expenses
include impairment of intangible assets. For the year ended December 31, 2004, other expenses included
non-cash compensation expense from exchange of stock options.
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Total other expenses for the year ended D:cember 31, 2006 were $46,072,000, an increase of
$18,876,000 or 69.4%, compared to $27,196,00C for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of
revenues, total other expenses were 95.0% and 63.4% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, The increase in other expenses was due to several factors including the write-off of $9,540,000
of the carrying value of MSO relationships as a result of a changed distribution strategy adopted by the
Board in September 2006, adoption of SFAS 1:3R effective January 1, 2006 resulting in additional
compensation expense of $3,496,000, in addition $2,496,000 from the recognized expense related to
performance units granted to cur new CEQ in “he fourth quarter of 2006, additional depreciation expense
resulting from our broadcast facility which was placed into service effective April 1, 2006, and other items
more fully described as follows.

Advertising expenses for the year ended Cecember 31, 2006 were $7,119,000 an increase of $19,000 or
0.3% compared to $7,100,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. We had planned increased
advertising expenditures but delayed such in ar ticipation of launching a cross channel television
advertising campaign, which began in late Septomber of 2006. We believe that our advertising expenses will
substantially increase over the short-term future as we continue to deploy tactics to increase our subscriber
base and the number of viewers watching our programming. We are reassessing our branding strategy and
have decided to adopt a new logo.

Selling, general and administrative expensss for the vear ended December 31, 2006 were $26,168,000,
an increase of $8,793,000 or 50.6% compared to $17,375,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a
percentage of revenues, selling, general and ad ministrative expenses were 53.9% and 40.5% in the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase was primarily attributable to the adoption
of SFAS 123R as of January 1, 2006, which now requires us to charge the fair value of stock options we
have issued to our employees over the vesting period to compensation expense that we did not have to
record in 2005. The non-cash charge in the year ended December 31, 2006 amounted to $3,496,000.
Additionally, we granted our new CEO two traunches of performance units of 400,000 shares each which
vest in 50,000 share increments based upon ou: stock price reaching stipulated levels. We have calculated
their fair value using a lattice model. The first -raunch has an estimated value of $4,634,000 and has an
expected service period of 0.6 years. In 2006, we recognized $1,655,000 related to this grant. The second
grant of 400,000 performance units which also vest in 50,000 share increments based upon our stock price
reaching stipulated levels was calculated to have a fair value of $4,474,000 and an expected service period
of 1.1 years. In 2006 we recognized $841,000 oi’ compensation expense related to this grant. We incurred
$377,000 of severance and related fees related to TOC’s former CEQ. The remainder of the increase in
selling, general and administrative fees related primarily to increased research fees to support our selling
efforts, consulting fees pertaining to assistance in the development of our strategic plan, accounting fees
for the audit of our evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in 2006
related to the 2005 fiscal year, legal fees incuried in the first quarter as a result of our ongoing efforts
related to our carriage agreement negotiations and to other operating costs.

We anticipate that selling, general and administrative costs will continue to increase over the
foreseeable future. Such increases are expecte to result from the amortization of subscriber acquisition
fees, also referred to as launch support fees, it excess of the related subscriber revenue as well as other
marketing, advertising and promotion expenses as we continue to work to gain increased distribution of
our channel, as well as from increases in other corporate expenses. We anticipate we will incur
compensation costs in the amount of $6,612,000 in the year ending December 31, 2007 related to the
performance units granted to our new CEQ.

Impairment of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 carried a charge of $9,540,000
as a result of our quarterly impairment review of amortizable intangible assets and goodwill. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, we engaged third party consultants to review our business practices and
strategy. Among the areas reviewed was our aproach to grow our subscriber base through our
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relationships with our MSOs. Prior to this time our strategy was to focus on incremental growth
opportunities without impacting our existing subscriber base. Our consultants completed a market survey
and other steps they deemed appropriate. In September 2006, the consultants concluded, and the Board of
Directors accepted their conclusions, that a complete revision of the terms of the relationships was
necessary to meet the subscriber growth goals established by us.

Upon acceptance of that conclusion and general strategy outlined by the consultants, we reviewed our
amortizable intangible assets for impairment. Among the components of the plan was subscriber rate relief
in some form for both existing subscriber relationships and the incremental (if any) subscribers that might
be added to our subscriber base as a result of the planned actions. Acknowledging the changed
circumstances, we assessed the fair value of our amortizable intangible assets and concluded that cur MSO
relationships asset had become fully impaired. Accordingly we have charged to expense, the carrying value
of $9,540,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006.

We further concluded that the carrying values of our other intangible assets have not been impaired
nor do we believe that the changed circumstances have affected the estimated lives of the amortizable
intangible assets. However, these estimates wilt continue to be reviewed during each reporting period to
determine whether circumstances continue to support their estimated useful lives and fair value. Estimates
are subject to risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those
projected or implied in the determination of the fair value. A significant downward revision in the present
value of estimated future cash flows for a reporting unit could result in an impairment of goodwill or the
amortizable intangibles and a non-cash charge would be required. Such a charge could have a significant
effect on our reported net earnings.

Depreciation and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $3,245,000, an increase of
$524,000 or 19.3% compared to $2,721,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in
depreciation primarily relates to our broadcast facility which was placed into service April 1, 2006.

Income (Loss) from Operations

Income (loss) from operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 was a loss of $13,684,000, a
decrease of $16,482,000 compared to income of $2,798,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. As
discussed above, the losses in the year ended December 31, 2006 were driven by the impairment of
amortizable intangible assets resulting in a charge of $9,540,000 during the period. This loss was partially
offset by growth of our revenue. The decrease experienced over the year ended December 31, 2006 was
compounded by increased programming costs associated with the launch of our second channel, Outdoor
Channe! 2 HD, in the second half of 2005, the expensing of programming costs related to programs we no
longer anticipate airing, increased compensation expense resulting from the adoption of SFAS 123R and
the transition of our senior management team, increased legal fees relating to our carriage agreements and
depreciation related to our newly opened broadcast facility. As we continue to strive to grow our subscriber
base which involves increased advertising expenditures, possible subscriber rate relief to our carriage
partners and the ongoing and planned payment of launch support, we will continue to incur increased |,
expenses such as programming, marketing and advertising that are unlikely to be immediately offset by
revenues. As a result, we anticipate our operating margins will be negatively impacted over the short-term
future until scale is achieved to reverse the trend. There can be no assurance that these strategies will be
successful.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $246,000, an increase of $201,000
compared to $45,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. This is attributable to having obtained two
term loans in November 2005 with an original aggregate principal amount of $4,950,000 with effective fixed
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interest rates of 6.59% and 6.35%. We repaid these loans in October 2006 and do not expect to incur
interest expense in the foreseeable future.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $2,692,000, an increase of $1,749,000
compared to $943,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. This improvement was primarily due to
increased dividends and interest earned 01 our increased average balances of our investment in available-
for-sale securities and cash and cash equivalents.

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes as a percentage of revenues was (23.2)% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to 8.6% for year ended December 31, 2005.

The TOC segment’s loss before incorie taxes was $(9,240,000) for the year ended December 31, 2006,
a decrease of $14,105,000 from income of $4,865,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

TOC’s loss before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006 was significantly impacted by
the $9,540,000 write-off of our MSO relationship amortizable intangible asset and the additional
compensation charges associated with the transition of our senior management including severance and
related charges of $377,000 and performance unit expense of $2,496,000. Additional increased
compensation expense resulted from of the adoption of SFAS 123R of $1,403,000. Further, we placed our
new broadcast facility into service April 1, 2006, which resulted in depreciation expense of approximately
$600,000.

Additionally, programming costs incr-:ased as a result of having launched our second channel,
Outdoor Channel 2 HD, at the beginning of the third quarter of 2005 and the planned non-airing of certain
programs resulting in a write-off of their capitalized costs. Also, we incurred incremental expenses in
subscriptions and research to support our srogramming and selling efforts. Offsetting the increased
expenses were increases in subscriber fee revenue from deeper penetration of our network with some of
our carriers, increased prices charged for the service, increased advertising revenues as a result of
increased prices charged to our third party producers and to short-form advertisers principally related to
the increasing Nielsen universe estimate.

The Membership Division segment’s :ncome before income taxes increased to $327,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to $280,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. Expressed as a
percentage of revenues, the Membership Division segment’s income before income taxes improved to
5.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 5.2% for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Revenue increased $562,000 or 10.4% in the year ended December 31, 2006. The improvement is
principally a result of a renewed interest ir. gold prospecting, which we believe is partially driven by rising
gold prices. Contributing to the improving segment margin was a slight decrease in personnel with the
commensurate savings of payroll, payroll rzlated expenses and travel costs. The decline in margin in the
year ended December 31, 2006 is increased compensation incurred as a result of the adoption of
SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006 resulting ir. stock compensation expense of $113,000 not incurred in the
same period of 2005.

Corporate incurred a loss before inco:ne taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006 amounting to
$2,325,000, an increased loss of $876,000 c>mpared to a loss of $1,449,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The expenses allocated to Corporate include: professional fees such as public
relations, accounting and legal fees, amort'zation of intangibles, business insurance, board of directors fees
and expenses, and an allocation of corporate officers’ payroll and related expenses. Effective January 1,
20006, we prospectively adopted SFAS 123R and Corporate incurred a charge to compensation expense
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related to stock options of $1,980,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006. Corporate also was allocated
additional payroll costs reflecting the increased time spent by executive officers on corporate matters
instead of operating matters. Offsetting these increased costs was interest and dividend income earmned on
our cash and investment in available-for-sale securities and lower accounting fees compared to a year ago
due to less impact from the implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley procedures.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $3,913,000, a change of $5,416,000 as
compared to an income tax provision of $1,503,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The change was
principally due to our incurring a loss in the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to income
generated in the year ended December 31, 2005 and the application of SFAS 123R as it relates to the
expensing of and concomitant income tax effect of accounting for share-based compensation. The effective
income tax provision (benefit) was approximately (34.8%) and 40.7%, for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Net Income (Loss)

Net income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2006 was a net loss of $7,325,000, a decrease of
$9,518,000 compared to a net income of $2,193,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decreases
were due to the reasons stated above.
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Comparison of Operating Results for the 'Years Ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004

The following table discloses certain financial information for the periods presented, expressed in
terms of doHars, dollar change, percentage: change and as a percent of total revenue (all dollar amounts are
in thousands): '

% of Total

_sﬁese__ —_Revenue __
2005 2004 % 2005 2004
Revenues:
Advertising ....................... $227769 $ 21,817 § 952 44% 53.0% 54.6%
Subscriberfees.................... 15,432 13,391 2,041 152 360 335
Membership income ............... 4,707 4,746 (39) (0.8) 110 119
Total revenues ..............o... 42 908 39,054 2,954 74 1000 100.0
Cost of services:
Programming ..................... 5,604 2,521 3,083 1223 131 6.3
Satellite transmission fees........... 2,497 2,351 146 6.2 58 59
Production and operations.......... 3,458 2,529 929 36.7 8.0 6.4
Other directcosts. ................. 1,355 1,101 254 231 32 27
Total cost of services............. 12,914 8,502 4,412 519 301 213
Other expenses:
Advertising ........... ... ..o 7,100 5,596 1,504 269 166 140
Selling, general and administrative . . . 17,375 16,153 1,222 7.6 40.5 404
Non-cash compensation expense from
exchange of stock options. ........ — 47,983  (47,983) (100.0) — 1201
Depreciation andamortization. . ... ., 2,721 1,424 1,297 9.1 63 3.6
Total otherexpenses............. 27,196 71,156  (43,960) (61.8) 634 1781
Income (loss) from operations. ........ 2,798 (39,704) 42,502 NMF S (994)
Interestexpense ..................... (45) (5) 40y  800.0  (0.1) —
Otherincome ....................... 943 120 323 6858 22 03
Income (loss) before income taxes and
minority interest. .................. 3,696  (39,589) 43,285 NMF 86 (99.1)
Income tax provision (benefit). ........ 1,503 (16,011) 17,514 NMF 35 (40.1)
Income (loss) before minority interest . . 2,193 (23,578) 25,771 NMF 51 (59.0)
Minority interest in net income of
consolidated subsidiary............. — 682 (682) (1000) -— 17
Net income (loss).................... $ 2,193 $(24,260) $ 26,453 NMF%  5.1% (60.7)%

NMF—Not Meaningful

Revenues

For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, The Qutdoor Channel generated approximately
97.0% and 97.2% of our advertising revenue, respectively. Subscriber fees are solely related to The
Outdoor Channel. Membership income i« generated by our activities other than the operation of The
Outdoor Channel and includes membership sales, magazine sales, merchandise sales, and sponsored
outings and expeditions in connection with GPAA and Lost Dutchman’s.

Total revenues for the year ended Dzcember 31, 2005 were $42,908,000, an increase of $2,954,000, or
7.4%, compared to revenues of $39,954,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The net increases were
the result of changes in several items com prising revenue as discussed below.
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Advertising revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $22,769,000, an increase of $952,000
or 4.4% compared to $21,817,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. For December 2005, Nielsen
estimated that The Qutdoor Channel had 25.7 million viewers compare to 24.8 million for the same period
a year ago. (Nielsen revises this estimate each month and for March 2006, Niclsen increased its estimate to_
approximately 26.2 million subscribers). The increase in advertising revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2005 reflects a larger percentage of our short-form advertising inventory being sold to
national and endemic advertisers, generally at higher rates, than inventory being sold to direct response
advertisers or long-form (infomercial) advertisers.

Subscriber fees for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $15,432,000, an increase of $2,041,000 or
15.2% compared to $13,391,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in subscriber fees for
the period was primarily due to an increased number of paying subscribers both from new affiliates and
from existing distributors and contractual subscriber fee rate increases with existing service providers
carrying The Outdoor Channel.

Membership income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $4,707,000, a decrease of $39,000 or
0.8% compared to $4,746,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. We do not consider this decline to be
significant; rather the relatively static balance reflects our belief that this revenue source has reached
relative maturity. We do not expect significant change in the balance from year-to-year in the near term.

Cost of Services

Total cost of services for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $12,914,000, an increase of
$4,412,000 or 51.9%, compared to $8,502,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of
revenues, total cost of services was 30.1% and 21.3% in the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. We expect cost of services to continue to increase in the future as we expand our existing
markets and in-house production to support our advertising strategy.

Programming expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $5,604,000, an increase of
$3,083,000 or 122.3% compared to $2,521,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase is
principally a result of our decision to launch our second channel, Qutdoor Channel 2 HD, on July 1, 2005.
In 2005, this channel was programmed with native high definition shows produced almost entirely in-house
as opposed to the preponderance of third party production on our standard definition channel. We
produced in excess of 40 shows plus numerous specials in-house that aired in the third and fourth quarters
of 2005. In some situations, shows that ran in 2005 on only one of our channels are planned to be aired
again in 2006, but on our other channel. We aired 16 shows that were internally produced during the third
and fourth quarters of 2004.

Satellite transmission fees for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $2,497,000, an increase of
$146,000, or 6.2%, compared to $2,351,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase reflects an
additional charge for the back-up satellite capability negotiated with our satellite provider during the
fourth quarter of 2004 and a scheduled price increase of $5,000 per month in October 2005.

Production and operations costs for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $3,458,000, an increase -
of $929,000, or 36.7%, compared to $2,529,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in
costs principally relates to increased infrastructure including personnel, small equipment purchases and
other items as we produce more shows in-house and support our new broadcast facility.

Other direct costs for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $1,355,000, an increase of $254,000, or
23.1%, compared to $1,101,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in other direct costs
principally relates to increased Alaska trip expenses with greater number of participants and increased
costs in publishing our magazine.
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Other Expenses

Total other expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $27,196,000, a decrease of
$43,960,000 or 61.8%, compared to $71,156,(100 for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of
revenues, total other expenses were 63.4% aird 178.1% in the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The decrease in other expenses was due to the non-recurring charge to compensation expense
incurred in September 2004 as a result of the issuance of options to TOC employees with an intrinsic value
of $47,983,000 in accordance with the terms of the acquisition by the Company of substantially all of the
remaining 17.6% minority interest in TOC it did not already own. Otherwise total other expenses
increased as illustrated when the non-cast, non-recurring compensation expense of $47,983,000 incurred in
September 2004 is excluded,

Total other expenses, net of the compensation expense from exchange of stock options, increased
$4,023,000 or 17.4% for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of revenues, total other
expenses, net of compensation expense from the exchange of stock options, were 63.4% and 58.0% in the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. '

The increase in other expenses was due o several factors, such as increased corporate costs including:
{1) amortization of intangible assets; (2} costs associated with compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002; and (3) costs associated with incorporation in Delaware and listing on The Nasdaq National Market,
to which we became subject as of September 2004. Those increased costs will continue to be incurred
becoming part of our cost of doing business. 'The increase is also attributable to increased personnel costs,
costs associated with the launch of our seconid channel, OQutdoor Channel 2 HD, marketing and promotion
costs and other items more fully described as follows.

Advertising expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $7,100,000, an increase of
$1,504,000 or 26.9% compared to $5,596,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in
advertising expenses is principally a resuit of jur increased spending on consumer and trade industry
awareness campaigns designed to build demand for The Outdoor Channel and for Outdoor Channel 2
HD.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $17,375,000,
an increase of $1,222,000 or 7.6% compared 1o $16,153,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, As a
percentage of revenues, selling, general and ¢ dministrative expenses were 40.5% and 40.4% in the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The increase was primarily due to the increase in the number of employees late in 2004 and early
2005. We opened our New York City advertiting sales office with a resultant expense in 2005 that did not
exist in the same period a year ago. We have .also added an executive to our management team who holds
the position of General Counsel. Others have been added in all departments to support our launch of a
second channel—Qutdoor Channel 2 HD. W also experienced increased travel and related costs
associated with our larger advertising sales staff, support of our service providers and the promotion of The
Outdoor Channel and Outdoor Channel 2 H1) through a stronger presence at trade shows and
conferences. Small equipment purchases incrzased as a result of our activity related to the launch of
Outdoor Channel 2 HD. We increased other corporate overhead expenses such as our activity surrounding
Sarbanes-Oxley compliance in 2005, fees for our listing on Nasdaq National Market and fees associated
with incorporation in the State of Delaware.

Compensation expense from the exchange of stock options for the year ended December 31, 2004 was
$47,983,000 and was incurred as a result of thz issuance of 3,687,125 options to TOC option holders in
accordance with the terms of the acquisition of substantially all of the remaining 17.6% minority interest in
TOC we did not already own. This charge is both non-cash and non-recurring.
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Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $2,721,000, an
increase of $1,297,000 or 91.1% compared to $1,424,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
increase relates primarily to the inventory of HD cameras and edit equipment that we begun purchasing in
2004 and continued in 2005 to support our increased efforts to produce more of our programming in-house
as opposed to licensing such programming from third parties. Also contributing to the increase is a full
year of amortization expense related to the intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition of
the minority interest of The Outdoor Channel, Inc, in September 2004.

Income (Loss) from Operations

Income (loss) from operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $2,798,000, a change of
$42,502,000 compared to ($39,704,000) for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percent of revenues,
income (loss) from operations was 6.5% and (99.4%), respectively.

As explained above, the non-cash, non-recurring compensation charge of $47,983,000, which resulted
from the assumption of options in connection with the acquisition of the minority interest in TOC, S
accounts for the majority of the loss from operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. If we excluded
this charge, loss from operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 would have been income from
operations of $8,279,000. As a percentage of revenue this adjusted balance would have been 20.7% for the
year ended December 31, 2004,

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $45,000, an increase of $40,000 compared
to $5,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, This is attributable to having obtained two term loans in
November 2005 with an original aggregate principal amount of $4,950,000 with effective fixed interest rates
of 6.59% and 6.35%.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $943,000, an increase of $823,000 compared
to $120,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. This improvement was primarily due to increased
dividends and interest earned on our increased investment in available-for-sale securities and cash and
cash equivalent balances that resulted from the sale, on July 1, 2005, of 3,500,000 shares of common stock
for net cash proceeds of $43,350,000 plus $2,734,000 from the exercise of stock options during the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest in Net Income of Consclidated Subsidiary

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest as a percentage of revenues was 8.6% for the
year ended December 31, 2005 compared to (99.1%) for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The TOC segment’s income before income taxes and minority interest increased to $4,865,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2005 from a loss of $38,330,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004.
Expressed as a percentage of revenue, the TOC segment’s income before income taxes and minority
interest increased to 13.0% for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to (110.8%}) for the year
ended December 31, 2004, The 2004 TOC segment’s income before income taxes, excluding the non-cash,
non-recurring charge of $47,983,000 was $9,653,000 or 27.9% of revenue. The change in TOC segment’s
income before income taxes after the non-cash compensation charge was due mainly to the growth of our
programming expenses and increased staff in support of the launch of our second channel, Outdoor
Channel 2 HD, increased spending on advertising, personnel and travel/promotional related expenses as
well as depreciation expenses related to the deployment of additional equipment.
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The Membership Division segment’s income before income taxes and minority interest decreased to
$280,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $354,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, -
Expressed as a percentage of revenues, the Membership Division segment’s income before income taxes
and minority interest decreased to 5.2% for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 6.6% for the
year ended December 31, 2004. The decreas: is principally a result of a 5% increase in payroll and related
taxes along with a charge for stock compensation that did not exist in 2004.

Corporate incurred a loss before incom: taxes and minority interest for the year ended December 31,
2005 amounting to $1,449,000, a change of $164,000 compared to a loss of $1,613,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The expenses allocated o Corporate include: professional fees such as public
relations, accounting and legal fees, business insurance, board of directors fees and expenses and an
allocation of corporate officers’ payroll and 1elated expenses.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

Income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $1,503,000, a change of $17,514,000
as compared to a benefit of $16,011,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was
principally due to the Company earning taxale income in 2005 as compared to a loss for 2004. The
effective income tax rate was approximately «0.7% and 40.4% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Minority Interest in Net Income of Consolidated Subsidiary

Minority interest for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $682,000. Minority interest was
eliminated in September 2004 as a result of cur acquisition of the remaining minority interest in TOC we
did not already own. Therefore, there was nc minority interest for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Net Income (Loss)

Net income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $2,193,000, a change of $26,453,000
compared to ($24,260,000) for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was due to the reasons
stated above. Excluding the non-cash, non-recurring charge of $47,983,000, net of income tax benefit of
$19,098,000, net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 would have been $4,625,000 or 11.6% of
revenue.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generated $6,649,000 of cash in our operating activities in the vear ended December 31, 2006,
compared $2,882,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005 and had a cash and cash equivalent balance of
$15,447,000 at December 31, 2006, a decreas: of $2,829,000 from the balance of $18,276,000 at
December 31, 2005. We also had short-term investments classified as available-for-sale securities of
$42,144,000 at December 31, 2006, an increase of $3,314,000 from the balance of $38,830,000 at
December 31, 2005. The investments at December 31, 2006 were comprised principally of auction rate
securities ($41,250,000) with interest rates that generally reset every 28 days. The auction rate securities
have long-term maturity dates and provide us with enhanced yields. Various equity securities ($894,000)
make up the remainder of the December 31, 2006 balance. We believe we have the ability to quickly
liquidate the auction rate securities at their original cost although there is no guaranty we would be able to
do so, Net working capital increased to $67,346,000 at December 31, 2006, compared to $66,183,000 at
December 31, 2005.

Net cash used in investing activities was 35,738,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
$48,661,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in cash used in investing activities was
related principally to the net difference of salzs and purchases of short-term auction rate securities. In
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2005, we received net proceeds from the sale of common stock of $43,350,000 that was invested during the
year resulting in the higher amount used for investing in 2005. Additionally contributing to the decrease in
cash used by investing activities was a decrease in capital expenditures in 2006 compared to 2005. In 2005,
we acquired equipment related to our HD signal and production in anticipation of the launch of our
second channel on July 1, 2005. Also, in 2005, we purchased a number of vehicles we use in support of
affiliate sales and our annual Alaska trip. We completed the purchase of and had begun the construction
of improvements on a building to house our broadcast facility in 2005 incurring approximately $7.5 million
in capital expenditures in 2005. We have substantially completed the building improvements and placed
the facility into service on April 1, 2006. Additional capital expenditures were for fixed asset replacements.
In 2007, we have planned general replacement capital expenditures of $1 to $1.5 million and possibly the
acquisition of some land adjacent to our broadcast facility to be used for a parking facility. If we are
successful in acquiring this property, we would complete the build-out of warehouse space to move the
remainder of our TOC and corporate staff, vacating space we currently rent. We believe the total project
cost would be between $1 to $1.5 million and that we have sufficient capital either on-hand or to be
generated from operations to fund these acquisitions.

Cash used in financing activities was $3,740,000 in the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
cash provided by financing activities of $50,950,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. The cash used
in financing activities in the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily for the retirement of our long-
tem debt ($4,901,000) offset by the proceeds from the sale of shares upon the exercise of stock options and
estimated tax benefits from the exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense. We also used
$568,000 to purchase and retire shares of stock from employees to satisfy the employees’ income taxes due
as a result of the shares having vested. We also received $913,000 from the exercise of stock options. The
cash provided by financing activities in 2005 was from the completion, on July 1, 2005, of a public offering
of our common stock, whereby we sold 3,500,000 shares of common stock and received net proceeds of
$43,350,000. In addition certain selling stockholders exercised options to buy 1,688,000 shares of common
stock, which were resold in the public offering. On July 13, 2005, the underwriters exercised their over-
allotment option granted by certain selling stockholders and purchased an additional 442,000 shares of
common stock. The shares sold by the selling stockholders were purchased immediately before the sale
through the exercise of options they held to buy common shares from the Company. The Company
received $2,168,000 in the aggregate from the exercise of these options. The Company also received cash
proceeds of approximately $566,000 from the exercise of other options for the purchase of 318,000 shares
of common stock. In accordance with SFAS 123R, we have presented on a prospective basis the tax
benefits from exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense of $816,000 as a cash flow from
financing activities in the accompanying unaudited consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2006, rather than as a cash flow from operating activities, as was prescribed under
accounting rules applicable through December 31, 2005. Tax benefits from the exercise of stock options in
excess of recognized expense of $876,000 has been included as a cash flow from operating activities for the
year ended December 31, 2005.

On November 2, 2005, we renewed our revolving line of credit agreement (the “revolver”) with U.S.
Bank N.A. (the “Bank”), extending the maturity date to September 7, 2007 and increasing the total
amount, which can be drawn upon under the revolver from $5,000,000 to $8,000,000. The revolver provides
that the interest rate shall be LIBOR plus 1.25%. The revolver is collateralized by substantially all of our
assets. This credit facility contains customary financial and other covenants and restrictions, as amended
on November 2, 2003, inciuding a change of control provision and certain minimum profitability metrics
(which, as amended, exclude the effects of non-cash share-based employee compensation expense})
measured at each quarter end. As of December 31, 2006 and as of the date of this report, we did not have
any amounts outstanding under this credit facility.
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On November 2, 2005, we obtained a $1,950,000 mortgage loan from the Bank on our recently
purchased building that houses our broadcast facility located in Temecula, California which had a 10 year
term loan with a 25 year amortization sched ile. This loan carried a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus
1.35%. This loan was secured primarily by a Deed of Trust on the property and was also secondarily
secured by the same assets as the revolver. It also contained customary financial and other covenants and
restrictions including a change of control provision and certain minimum profitability metrics (which, as
amended, excluded the effects of non-cash share-based employee compensation expense) measured at
each quarter end. On November 7, 2005, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with the Bank to
reduce the potential impact of increasing inferest rates and effectively fixed the interest rate on this loan at
6.59%.

On November 2, 2005, we obtained a $:1,000,000, five-year fully amortizing term loan. This loan
carried a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.35%. This term loan was secured by the same assets as the
revolver and contained customary financial ind other covenants and restrictions including a change of
control provision and certain minimum profitability metrics (which, as amended, exclude the effects of
non-cash share-based employee compensation expense) measured at cach quarter end. On November 7,
2005, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with the Bank to reduce the potential impact of
increasing interest rates and effectively fixed the interest rate on this term loan at 6.35%. This loan was
obtained to help finance the equipment and leasehold improvements bought in relation the build out of
our broadcast facility including delivery of our HD signal and production.

Because we did not supply our financial statements for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2006 within the time frame prescribed by the Bank and because we did not meet the
minimum profitability covenant for the three months ended September 30, 2006, we were in violation as of
that date of two covenants relating to our two term loans and our revolving line-of-credit facility.
Accordingly, these loans were callable by the Bank. On October 19, 2006, we elected to retire the two long-
term loans, which had an aggregate balance of $4,321,000 plus accrued interest thereon. On March 22,
2007, we received notification that these covinant violations were waived for these occurrences but that
these covenants continue for future periods. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with the
debt covenants and expect to be in complian :e at least through December 31, 2007.

As of December 31, 2006, we had suffic.ent cash on hand and expected cash flow from operations to
meet our short-term cash flow requirements. Management believes that our existing cash resources
including cash on-hand and anticipated cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund our operations
at current levels and anticipated capital requirements through at least March 1, 2008, To the extent that
such amounts are insufficient to finance our working capital requirements or our desire to expand
operations beyond current levels, we could s::ek additional financing. There can be no assurance that
equity or debt financing will be available if n:eded or, if available, will be on terms favorable to us or our
stockholders.

A summary of our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006 (In thousands):

Over 1 year  Over 3 years

Less than Less than Less than After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligations .................. $11,537  $2,721 $4,439 $3,817 $560
Standby letterof credit .............L L 140 —_ — — 140
Purchase obligations ...............ocoo e, 7,762 6,065 1,697 — —
Other long-term liabilities ................... 1,626 775 851 — —
Total......coovii $21,065  $9,561 $6,987 $3,817 $700
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Operating lease obligations principally relate to commitments for delivery of our signal via satellite.
Purchase obligations relate to purchase commitments made for the acquisition of programming,
advertising and promotion including magazine advertisements and radio show sponsorships, talent
agreements, equipment or software maintenance, research services and other operating purchases. Other
long-term liabilities represent our severance agreement obligation with our former CEQ of TOC and our
compensation commitments with our current CEO under his employment contract.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our investment portfolio included fixed-income securities of
$42,144,000 and $38,830,000, respectively. These securities are subject to interest rate risk and will decline
in value if interest rates increase. However, due to the short duration of our investment portfolio, an
immediate 10% change in interest rates would have no material impact on our financial condition,
operating results or cash flows. Declines in interest rates over time will, however, reduce our interest
income while increases in interest rates over time may increase our interest expense.

We do not have a significant level of transactions denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars
and as a result we have very limited foreign currency exchange rate risk. The effect of an immediate 10%
change in foreign exchange rates would have no material impact on our financial condition, operating
results or cash flows.

As of December 31, 2006 and as of the date of this report, we did not have any outstanding
borrowings. The rate of interest on our line-of-credit is variable, but we currently have no outstanding
balance under this credit facility (and in fact remain in default under its terms). Because of these reasons,
an immediate 10% change in interest rates would not have a material, immediate impact on our financial
condition, operating results or cash flows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc., and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and their results of operations and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in “Internal
Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission, and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s
assessment, and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting due to
a material weakness.

/s/ I.LH. Cohn LLP

San Diego, California
March 16, 2007
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
C'onsolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005
{In thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005
Avisets
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents ........ ... ... .0 iiiiiiiii i, $ 15447 % 18,276
Investment in available-for-sale securities. . ... ovet it iiie i i it 42,144 38,830
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $208 and $275 .. 6,845 5,320
Income tax refund receivable. .. ... i i i e e e 2,299 3,843
Deferred tax 885618, NEl. .. ..ttt ir i e rrr it e 592 1,015
Prepaid programming COSIS . .. ... vueurreir e it eitarniraeraans 2,713 2,381
Other CUITeNt @S5S, . . ..ottt t it ittt ittt i e aniaass 929 689
0T a3 g ] 1A T2y = £ RN 70,969 70,354
Property, plant and equipment at cost, nz(: '
Membesshipdivision. ... 3,352 3,526
Qutdoor Channel equipment and imp;ovements. .........ooiieinvanan... 12,445 12,097
Property, plant and equipment,net ....... ... .. .. it 15,797 15,623
Amortizable intangible assets, Nel. .. .. .. o i i e et 320 11,292
Goodwill ... . e e 44,457 44,457
| 910100 g guls i T T on 2. 1V 7S 13,775 9,491
Deposits and Other assets . ... ... i i i e e 2,139 605
0T $147957 $151,822
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . ...l i $ 2902 § 2864
Accrued SEVEramCe PAYIMEIIIS ... .. .vh v uutve i enran it aaaianeenas 341 18
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases ................... ..., — 708
Current portion of deferredrevenue . ... ... ... . i 225 422
st oM e POSIS . . i e i e e e e 155 159
Total current liabilities . . . . . S R 3,623 4,171
Accrued severance payments, net of current portion. . ........... oL, 44 16
Long-term debt, net of current portion .. ... e — 4,193
Deferred revenue, net of current portion ....... ... ... i 1,972 1,271
Derivative INSEIUMENES .. ..o oot e ittt e e iraa e
Deferred satellite rent obligations. ... .................... e 344 295
Total liabilities . . .. ... ... e 5,983 10,018
Commitments and contingencies—See Note 9 '
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; 25,000 shares authorized; noneissued ... ... ... .. — —
Common stock, $0. 001 par value; 75,000 shares authorized: 25,507 and 24,409
shares issued and outstanding . .. ... 26 24
Additional paid-incapital . ... o N 164,589 158,700
Deferred compensation. . ... .. ..ottt i e e — {1,520
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized losses on derivative irstruments. ... ........... .. ..., — 72)
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities. ...................... 48
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (foss) .................. 48 (36)
Accumulated deficit. . .. ..ottt it i i i i i s s (22,689) (15,364)
Total stockholders’ equity. . ... i i i e e 141,974 141,804
0 7 $147,957 $151,822
See Notes tc Consolidated Financial Statements
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For The Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(In thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
AdVEIHISINE . . ..ottt $ 25,679 $22,769 § 21,817
R 1076 03 o {1 S PP 17,687 15,432 13,391
Membership income ...t 5,156 4,707 4,746
Total FEVEIMUES . ..ottt et et ettt iaeanae s 48,522 42908 39,954
Cost of services:
Programming ..........ouvvoniiiioninrennei i, 8,355 5,604 2,521
Satellite transmission fees. . . ...t i e 2,550 2,497 2,351
Production and operations. ... .......oiiiiiiiiiniiii e 4,078 3,458 2,529
Other QItECt COSIS. « o vt vttt et i e ia e eiaeeerananeacannans 1,151 1,355 1,11
Total COSt Of SEIVICES . .ottt ivn it e s iiienre e rannear s 16,134 12,914 8,502
Other expenses:
PN U= 4 117111 7,119 7,100 5,596
Selling, general and administrative. ........... ... 26,168 17,375 16,153
Non-cash compensation expense from exchange of stock options . .. — — 47,983
Impairment of amortizable intangible assets. . .................... 9,540 — —
Depreciation and amortization .. ........oovievnini i, 3,245 2,721 1,424
Total Other eXPenses . . ....ouvvu e iaiia e 46,072 27,196 71,156
Income (loss) from operations. ..., (13,684 2,798  (39,704)
ILETESE EXPENSE « 1 .t ev et eeee e et e e ettt eeeannnienannraaens (246) (45) (5)
Other iNCOME . ..ottt ine et iannaai e ananns 2,692 943 120
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest . ............ (11,238) 3,696  (39,589)
Income tax provision (benefit).......... ... ..o (3,913) 1,503  (16,011)
Income (loss) before minority interest............cooovviiiininn (7,325) 2,193 (23,578)
Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiary ........... — — 682
Netincome (0SS} . .. o.vnr ittt $ (7,325) $ 2,193  $(24,260)
Earnings (loss) per common share:
BasiC. .ottt e $ (030) $§ 010 § (1.52)
|11« AU NP $ (030) § 009 § (152)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
5 773 (G P N 24,556 21,423 15,998
DiHlUted. ..ot et 24,556 24,7132 15,998

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(In thousands)
2006 2005 2004
Operating activities:
Netineome (JOS5) . v v v vvttrst et tner e tane e eae et iaaaanaaaraeetanan e snsn $ (7.325) § 2,193 $(24,260)
Adjustments to recongcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ... ... ..o vvuiir v i e 3,478 2,730 1,424
Impairment of amortizable intangible assels .. ....... ... il 9,540 — —_—
Provision for doubtful acCounts . . ... .. .ve vt i e e 104 214 164
Realized gain on sale of available-for-sale securities. . ... .........c i —_— - (34
Minority interest in net income of consolidated subsidiary . .. ... . ... oo e — — 682
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense. .. ............ (816) — 1,030
Deferred tax provision (benefit) met . ... ... o i (3,915} 2,994 (17,684)
Compensation expense from exchange of stock options .. .. ... iaiinn - - 47,983
Share-based employee and service provider compensation. . ............ ... i 7,066 375 9
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNIS FeCeivablE. . . .o oottt it i et e e ey (1,628) (686) (1,215)
Income tax refund receivable. . .. .t n e e e ey 1,544 (1,552) (1,126}
Prepaid programming CoStS . . ..o vt v v rvvae e s e e it (332) (1,775} (606)
Other CUITENT ASSELS. . - v v o vt v v v s rnannnnnns e e e (240) (554} 314
. Deposits and OHEr BSSEIS. . <\ . oo\t ettt e e (1,765) {444) (133)
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses. . . ... .ot i e e 38 (841) 1,914
ACCTUEd SEVETANCE PAYIMEILS . . . . o .4\ vn v st nrs s s racaneencnatisesensarnionens 351 (31) (291}
CUSIOMET EPOSILS. . . - o oottt iinar s i enma o e i {4) 98 61
DeferTed LEVEIUE . ... oottt st tentat s ann s et aessaanessnassenasnensnn 504 178 (119)
Deferred satellite rent obligations . . . ... ..ottt 49 {17) {68)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ... ....... ... ..o it 6,649 2,882 8,045
Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment. . ... ...l e (2,488) (10,559} (2,549)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities . .. ... .. oooiint i i e (132,505)  (64,652) (255)
Proceeds from sale of available-for=sale securities . ........ . i 129,255 26,550 85
Costs related to acquisition of minority interest . ... ..covv i e, — — (593)
Net cash used in investing activities ... .. ..o renneiiiiii i iinin b (5,738) (48,661) {3,312)
Financing activities:
Principal paymenis on long-term debt and capitalleases _......... ... (4,901) (84) (157)
Proceeds from issuance of long-termdebt .. ... ... ... o i — 4,950
Proceeds from exercise of stock OpHONS. ... ..ot i s 913 2,734 1,285
Proceeds from common stock subscriptionsreceivable .. . ... ... oo ool — — 30
Purchase of tTeasury StOCK . . ..o v v vt v v ieie e iae e e (568) — -
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense. .............. 816 — —_
Proceeds from the sale of common stock, net of offeringcosts . .. . ....... ... oo — 43,350 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ..., ian (3,740) 50,950 1,158
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ... oo {2,829) 5,171 5,891
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year. . ... ... .o oo, 18,276 13,105 7,214
Cash and cash equivalents, end of Year . . ... .. ....iutienu i $ 15447 §18276 § 13,105
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
o k1 R $ 270§ 45 8 5
INCOME LAXES PAId . . . v v v e e m et ot $ 1§ 123§ 1,13
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of restricted stock to employees for servicesrendered .............. ...l b3 914 § 861 § 1,043
Retirement 0f reasury SIOCK . . . vt ve ettt ittt aanns $ 568 § — § 40
Fair value of common stock issued to acquire minority interest in subsidiary ... ............ $ — 5 — § 49,853
Effect of net increase (decrease) in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of deferred
LS U U O s 12 3 M 3 9
Exchange of stock options for non-employee stock options ofsubsidiary. .. ................ s — 3 — § 4250
Effect of net increase in fairvalue of cashflowhedge . ... ...... .ot $ 728 — 8 —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes t¢ Consolidated Financial Statements

(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 1—Organization and Business
Description of Operations

Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. or “Outdoor Channel Holdings,” is incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware. Collectively, with its subsidiaries, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company”
refer to Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. s a consolidated entity, except where noted or where the context
makes clear the reference is only to Outdeor Channel Holdings, Inc. or one of our subsidiaries. Qutdoor
Channel Holdings, Inc. wholly owns GPA.A, Inc. which in turn wholly owns The Outdoor Channel, Inc. and
also is the sole member of GPAA, LLC. The Qutdoor Channel, Inc, (“TOC”), operates The Qutdoor
Channel, which is a national television network devoted to traditional outdoor activities, such as hunting,
fishing and shooting sports, as well as off-road motor sports and other related lifestyle programming. In
addition, TOC also operates Outdoor Channel 2 HD, which also is a national television network featuring
programming produced utilizing high defin tion technology.

Our revenues include advertising fees from advertisements aired on The Qutdoor Channel, including
fees paid by outside producers to purchase edvertising time in connection with the airing of their programs
on The Outdoor Channel, and from advertisements in “Gold Prospectors & Treasure Hunters in the Great
Outdoors” magazine; subscriber fees paid by cable and satellite service providers that air The Outdoor
Channel; membership fees from members in both LDMA-AU, Inc. (“Lost Dutchman’s”) and Gold
Prospector’s Association of America, LLC (“GPAA”); and other income including income from sales of
products and services related to gold prospecting, gold expositions, expeditions and outings.

Other business activities consist of the promotion and sale of a gold prospecting expedition to our
Cripple River property located near Nome, Alaska, and the sale of memberships in Lost Dutchman’s that
entitle members to engage in gold prospecting on our Arizona, California, Colorado, Georgia, Michigan,
North Carolina, Oregon, and South Carolina properties. We have signed an agreement with another
organization for the mutual use of these and orher properties. Outdoor Channel Holdings is also the sole
member of 43455 BPD, LLC the entity that owns the building that houses our broadcast facility.

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Pulicies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inctude the accounts of Qutdoor Channel Holdings and its
subsidiaries, Gold Prospector’s Association of America, Inc., Lost Dutchran’s, 43455 BPD, LLC, GPAA
and TOC. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires manageme nt to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. We
believe that our estimates, judgments and assumptions made when accounting for items and matters such
as customer retention patterns, allowance for bad debts, useful lives of assets, asset valuations including
cash flow projections, recoverability of assets, potential unasserted claims under contractuat abligations,
income taxes, reserves and other provisions and contingencies are reasonable, based on information
available at the time they are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilitics as of the dates of t.xe consolidated balance sheet and reported amount of
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

revenues and expenses for the periods presented. Accordingly, actual results could materially differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when acquired to be
cash equivalents.

Subscriber Acquisition Fees

Subscriber acquisition fees are paid to obtain carriage on certain pay television distributors’ systems.
Under certain of these agreements with pay television distributors, TOC is obligated to pay subscriber
acquisition fees to the pay television distributors if they meet defined criteria for the provision of
additional carriage for The Outdoor Channel on the pay television distributors’ systems. Such costs are
accrued when TOC receives appropriate documentation that the distributors have met the contractual
criteria and have provided the additional carriage.

Subscriber acquisition fees included in other assets, are amortized over the contractual period that the
pay television distributor is required to carry the newly acquired TOC subscriber, generally 3 to 5 years.
First the amortization is charged as a reduction of the subscriber fee revenue that the pay television
distributor is obligated to pay us. If the amortization expense exceeds the subscriber fee revenue
recognized on a per incremental subscriber basis, the excess amortization is included as a component of
cost of services. We assess the recoverability of these costs periodically by comparing the net carrying
amount of the subscriber acquisition fees to the estimates of future subscriber fees and advertising
revenues. We also assess the recoverability when events such as changes in distributor relationships occur
or other indicators suggest impairment,

Prepaid Programming Costs

We produce a portion of the programming we air on our channels in-house as opposed to acquiring
the programming from third party producers. The cost of production is expensed when the show airs. As
such, at year-end we have incurred costs for programming that is yet to air. These costs are accumulated on
the balance sheet as “Prepaid programming costs.” Costs of specific shows will be charged to programming
expense based on anticipated airings, when the program airs and the related advertising revenue is
recognized. At the time it is determined that a program will not likely air, we charge 1o expense any
remaining costs recorded in prepaid programming costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost. Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which
range from 5 to 39 years.
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OUTDOOR CHANINEL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Amortizable Intangible Assets

Costs recorded in connection with the Company’s acquisition of the minority interest in TOC for
multi-system cable operator (“MS0O™) relationships were being amortized over a period of 21 years and 4
months and costs recorded for advertising customer relationships are being amortized over a period of
either 3 or 4 years. TOC has the exclusive right to the trademark The Outdoor Channel. The costs of
acquiring the trademark are being amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of 15
years.

Impairment of Certain Long-Lived Assets

The impairment of long-lived assets with finite lives such as property and equipment, MSO
relationships, customer relationships and trademarks, is recognized when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the undiscountsd cash flows estimated to be generated by such assets are less
than their carrying value and, accordingly, all or a portion of such carrying value may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are then measured by comparing the fair value of assets to their carrying amounts.
During 2006, we recognized an impairment charge of $9,540 related to the carrying value of our MSO
relationships asset as more fully described in Note 3. We did not record any charges for the impairment of
long-lived assets in 2005 or 2004.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of an acquired business. Under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(“SFAS 142”), goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite life and is not subject to amortization over an
estimated finite useful life but is tested for iinpairment annually under a two-step approach, or more
frequently, if events or changes in circumstaices indicate that the asset might be impaired.

Impairment is assessed at the “reportin;z unit” level by applying a fair value-based test. A reporting
unit is defined as the same as, or one level below the operating segment level as described in Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information” (“SFAS 131”). Under the two-itep approach, the carrying amount of the reporting unit is
compared with its fair value. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the
“implied” fair value (as defined in SFAS 142) of the reporting unit’s goodwill is compared with its carrying
amount to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. When the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess. To date, we have not recognized any impairment of goodwill.

Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activity

We account for derivatives and hedging activity under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133 (“SFAS 133”) “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138 (“SFAS 138") “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activity, an amendment of SFAS No. 133.” All derivatives are
recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. On the date we enter into a derivative contract, we
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

designate the derivative as a hedge of the variability of cash flows to be paid related to a recognized
liability (“cash flow hedge”). We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as the risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges to specific
liabilities on the balance sheet. We also formally assess, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing
basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of hedged items. When it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a
hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, we discontinue hedge accounting prospectively.
During 2006, we retired two hedged term loans. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2006 we no longer have
derivative instruments outstanding.

Advertising
We expense the cost of advertising and promotions as the advertisement or promotion takes place .

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues from sales of television and print advertising, from cable and satellite
subscriber fees, from membership fees and from sales of related products and services.

TOC’s advertising revenues are recognized when the advertisement is aired and the collectibility of
fees is reasonably assured. Advertising revenues from advertisements in our bi-monthly magazine are
recognized when the magazine is distributed. Subscriber fees for The Outdoor Channel are recognized in
the period the programming is aired by the distributor. ‘

Broadcast and national television network advertising contracts may guarantee the advertiser a
minimum audience for its advertisements over the term of the contracts. We provide the advertiser with
additional advertising time if we do not deliver the guaranteed audience size. The amount of additional
advertising time is generally based upon the percentage of shortfall in audience size. This requires us to
make estimates of the audience size that will be delivered throughout the terms of the contracts. We base
our estimate of audience size on information provided by ratings services and our historical experience. If
we determine we will not deliver the guaranteed audience, an accrual for “make-good” advertisements is
recorded as a reduction of revenue. The estimated make-good accrual is adjusted throughout the terms of
the advertising contracts.

Lost Dutchman’s memberships are contractual arrangements that provide members with prospecting
and mineral rights and the use of land and facilities for camping and recreational vehicle parking. Lost
Dutchman’s memberships sold by the Company generally have payment terms that provide for a down
payment and monthly installments and are non-interest bearing and unsecured. Revenues are generally
recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated average life (7 years) of the Lost Dutchman’s
membership. We sell GPAA memberships for one to four years and also offer a GPAA lifetime
membership (“Gold Life”). The majority of the memberships are for one year. Multi-year GPAA
membership revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of a membership or an estimated
life of 15 years for a lifetime membership. Merchandise sales for GPAA are recognized as sales when the

69




O

OUTDOOR CHANNEIL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thous inds, except per share data)

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)

product is shipped and collection of the rzceivable is probable. Merchandise sales for GPAA are included
in the “Membership income” revenue category.

We do not record any receivables arising under these contracts or memberships. Accordingly,
revenues recognized do not exceed the total of the cash payments received and cash received in excess of
revenue earned is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenues from the expeditions are recognized when they
are taken in June through August each year. Revenues from outings and gold expositions are recognized at
the time of the event.

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses that may arise if any of our
customers are unable to make required payraents. Management specifically analyzes the age of customer
balances, historical bad debt experience, customer credit-worthiness and trade publications regarding the
financial health of our larger customers ard changes in customer payment terms when making estimates of
the uncollectibility of our trade accounts receivable balances. If we determine that the financial condition
of any of our customers deteriorated or impioved, whether due to customer specific or general economic
conditions, we make appropriate adjustmen-s to the allowance.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes pursuant -o the asset and liability method which requires deferred
income tax assets and Habilities to be computed for temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on
enacted laws and rates applicable to the per ods in which the temporary differences are expected to affect
taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amounts expected to be realized. The income tax provision is the tax payable or refundable for the period
plus or minus the change during the period .n deferred tax assets and liabilities. Tax benefits arising from
the exercise of stock options and the issuance of common shares to pay deferred compensation are
recorded as additional paid-in capital in the period the benefits are earned or realized.

With our adoption of SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006, we present, on a prospective basis, the tax
benefits from exercise of stock options in ex:ess of recognized expense as a cash flow from financing
activities in the accompanying 2006 consolicated statement of cash flows rather than as a cash flow from
operating activities, as was prescribed unde: accounting rules applicable through December 31, 2005. This
requirement reduces the amount reflected as net cash provided by operating activities and increases net
cash provided by financing activities. Total cash flows remained unchanged from that which would have
been reported under prior accounting rules. We recognize such benefits only if they have been realized
which we determine by following the tax law method, which provides that current deductions are
recognized before realizing the benefits of cur net operating loss carry forwards. For the year ended
December 31, 2005, tax benefit from the exercise of stock options in excess of recognized expense of $876
has been included in cash flows from operating activitics.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Effective September 15, 2004, we effecred a 5 for 2 split of our common stock in connection with our
reincorporation in Delaware. All share and per share data has been adjusted where appropriate to reflect
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Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

this stock split. In addition, the par value of our common stock was changed from $0.02 to $0.001 per
share.

We have presented “basic” and “diluted” earnings (loss) per common share in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS.128”). Basic earnings (loss) per common
share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during each period. The calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share is similar to
that of basic earnings (loss) per common share, except that the denominator is increased to include the
number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if all potentially dilutive common
shares of the Company were issued during the period if any such issuances would have had a dilutive
effect.

The computation of diluted earnings per share takes into account the effects of the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding of the assumed exercise of the outstanding non-vested restricted
stock and stock options of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2005 adjusted for the application
of the treasury stock method. The computation of diluted loss per common share for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2004 does not take into account the effects of the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding of the assumed exercise of the outstanding non-vested restricted stock and
stock options of the Company because the effect of their assumed exercise would be anti-dilutive. The
computation of diluted loss per common share for the year ended December 31, 2004 does not take into
account the increase in the net loss attributable to the increase in minority interest in the net income of
TOC that results from the assumed exercise of all of TOC’s outstanding stock options prior to the
exchange of those options for our options on September 8, 2004 because the effects of the assumed
exercise of TOC stock options were not material. The greatest number of shares potentially issuable by us
upon the exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted stock or performance units in any quarter
during 2006, 2005 and 2004 that was not reflected in the weighted average number of common shares used
in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because their effect would have been anti-dilutive
totaled 4,336, 965 and 5,630 shares, respectively.

The following table summarizes the calculation of the weighted average common shares outstanding
for basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

2006 2005 2004
Numerators:
Netineome (10SS) . . .o vrvreetee et ie et ia e aaeaiiaiean, $(7,325) $ 2,193  $(24,260)
Denominators:
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic.............. 24,556 21,423 15,998
Dilutive effect of potentially issuable common shares upon exercise of
stock options of the Company as adjusted for the application of the
treasurystock method........ ... ... ... . iiiiiiiniie, — 3,309 —
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted . . . .. 24,556 24,732 15,998
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Stock Incentive Plans

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R™). We have elected 1o use the modified prospective
transition method. This method requires compensation cost to be recognized in the financial statements
over the service period for the fair value of all awards (including awards to employees) granted after the
date of adoption as well as for existing awards for which the requisite service had not been rendered as of
the date of adoption and requires that prior periods not be restated.

Investments

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”, our investments in marketable debt and equity securities have
been classified as available-for-sale securities and, accordingly, are valued at fair value at the end of each
period. Any material unrealized holding gains and losses arising from such valuation are excluded from net
income and reported, net of applicable income taxes, in other comprehensive income. Accumulated net
unrealized holding gains and losses are included at the end of each year in accumulated other
comprehensive income which is a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified from
amounts in the consolidated financial statement: we originally filed before the restatements described in
Note 3 either to conform to the 2006 presentaticns or to provide additional detail about our operating
results and more fully comply with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) Regulation S-X. In
particular certain amounts included under “expenses” in the 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial
statements we originally issued have been reclassified in line items under either “cost of services” or “other
expenses”. Cost of services includes programmir. g, satellite transmission fees, production and operations
and other direct costs. Other expenses include advertising, selling, general and administrative and
depreciation and amortization. Further, to better match intangible assets with the segment to which they
pertain, we have reclassified the amortizable intangible assets and the goodwill which were recorded in
connection with the acquisition on September 8, 2004 of the remaining 17.6% minority interest in TOC
along with the related amortization expense frora “Corporate” to the “TOC” segment. Certain other
changes have been made in the historical consol dated financial statements to conform to current
presentations.

Note 3—Acquisition of Minority Interest in The Outdoor Channel, Inc.

On September 8, 2004, we announced the completion of the acquisition of the remaining 17.6%
minority interest in TOC by Outdoor Channel E'oldings through (i) the merger of TOC with a newly-
formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of Qutdoor Channel Holdings, with TOC being the surviving
corporation, and (ii) the exchange of each share of TOC common stock not previously held by Cutdoor
Channel Holdings or its subsidiaries for 0.65 shares of Outdoor Channel Holdings’ common stock. In
addition, each outstanding option to purchase one share of TOC common stock was exchanged for an
option to purchase 0.65 shares of Outdoor Channel Holdings’ common stock.
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Note 3—Acquisition of Minority Interest in The Outdoor Channel, Inc. (Continued)

Based on the exchange ratio, the 5 for 2 split as explained in Note 2 and the capitalization of TOC,
Outdoor Channel Holdings issued 3,070 shares of our commeon stock as well as options to purchase 4,012
additional shares on September 8, 2004.

As previously disclosed by us, in October 2004, we received notice from a TOC stockholder that the
stockholder was exercising dissenters’ rights with respect to 144 previously outstanding TOC common
shares. The dissenter submitted a written demand that TOC repurchase the dissenter’s shares. On
March 8, 2005, the dissenter withdrew this demand and accepted 233 common shares of the Company in
exchange for his 144 common shares of TOC. The number of shares exchanged reflects the exchange ratio.
For accounting purposes, the dissenter’s shares have been deemed to have been exchanged as of
September 8, 2004 and the cost of those shares has been recorded as additional goodwill as shown below.

The acquisition of all of the 17.6% minority interest in TOC was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. The cost of acquiring the minority interest included the aggregate fair value of the
common shares of Outdoor Channel Holdings issued in exchange for common shares of TOC and certain
other direct costs. The acquisition cost was allocated based on the fair value of the assets of TOC that were
acquired and liabilities that were assumed, including intangible assets that arose from contractual or other
legal rights or met certain other recognition criteria that underlie the approximate 17.6% minority interest
that was acquired. The excess of the cost of the minority interest over the fair value of the underlying
interest in the net identifiable assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. In addition, in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” the
tax effects of the intangible assets have been treated as additional consideration. This additional
consideration has also been allocated to goodwill.

The cost of the acquisition of the minority interest in TOC by Outdoor Channel! Holdings was $54,985
based on the issuance at the closing of 3,070 shares of Outdoor Channel Holdings’ commeon stock
(including the former dissenter’s shares) and the average closing price of $16.24 per share for a specified
period before and after April 20, 2004, the last trading day before the public announcement of the material
terms of the acquisition plus the assumption of 325 fully-vested options held by a former employee of TOC
with an intrinsic value of $4,250 plus certain other costs including income tax effects. Based on the analysis
of the fair value of the assets that were acquired and liabilities that were assumed, the acquisition costs of
$54,985 were allocated primarily to intangible assets as follows:

Estimated
Allocation Useful Life
Multi-system operators (“MSO™) relationships ............... ... .. $10,573 21 years, 4 months
Advertising customer relationships:
1Y 1703 08 0 v 1 SR 1,351 4 years
74T 207 o 1 621 3 years
Total identifiable intangible assets . .......... ... ... ... o ol 12,545
Goodwill . ... e e e 44,457 Indefinite
Deferred tax liability associated with intangible assets ............... (5,001)
Minority interest insubsidiary ... ....... ... oo 2,984
Aggregate purchase price .. .. ... ... oiiiiiiiiiiia $54,985
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Note 3-—Acquisition of Minority Interest in The Outdoor Channel, Inc. (Continued)

The exchange of vested options by Qutdoor Channel Holdings for vested options of TOC resulted in a
charge to operations in the consolidated statement of operations on September 8, 2004 equal to the
intrinsic value of the options issued on that date and a credit for the related income tax benefit. Qutdoor
Channel Holdings issued fully-vested options to purchase 3,687 shares in exchange for fully-vested options
held by employees of TOC on September 8, 200, On that day, the market price of one share of common
stock of OQutdoor Channel Holdings was $14.00. As a result, the Company incurred a non-cash, non-
recurring charge to operating expenses of $47,983 and recognized an income tax benefit of $19,098 or a net
charge of $28,885.

Summarized unaudited pro forma informat on, assuming this acquisition occurred at the beginning of
the year ended December 31, 2004 follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2004
INEETEVEIMUES &+ v vv et tvteee e eeeneeeerans $ 39,954
Netloss. ... i i e {23,996)
Loss per share:
Basic ..o $ (1.26)
Diluted.........cooooiii $ (1.26)

The acquisition did not affect net revenues. The pro forma net loss and the related loss per share have
been presented as if the acquisition had occurre 1 on the first day of the year ended December 31, 2004 and
includes (i) the effects of additional amortization related to certain intangible assets recorded, (i) the
elimination of the minority interest, (iii) the nor-recurring net charge of $28,885 attributable to the
exchange of options and (iv) the additional shar:s issued by Outdoor Channel Holdings.

Reassessment of Useful Life of MSO Relationships

During 2006, we reviewed the facts and circumstances regarding the useful life of our intangible assets
attributable to multi-system cable operator (“M30”) relationships as of September 8, 2004 when we
completed the acquisition of the minority interest in TOC that we did not previously own and allocated a
portion of the excess of the cost of the minority interest over the fair value of the underlying interest in the
net identifiable assets acquired to the MSO relationships. After consideration of the facts and
circumstances, the nature of our business, our experience with the MSOs of our network, and the
proclivities of our industry, we have concluded that as of September 8, 2004 our MSO relationships asset
had a definite life which we have estimated to be 21 years and 4 months and, accordingly, we reclassified all
of the amounts originally allocated to the cost of MSO relationships from other non-amortizable intangible
assets to amortizable intangible assets as of that date.

The accounting treatment resulting from this reassessment of the useful life of this asset has resulted
in adjustments to amortization expense and cer:ain other related adjustments to our previously issued
consolidated financial statements as of and for the periods ended September 30, 2004 through June 30,
2006. We determined that the effects of these a Jjustments were immaterial individually and in the
aggregate to our annual and quarterly reports filed prior to January 1, 2005 and thus we did not amend
those filings. However, we determined the effects of these adjustments were material to our quarterly and
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Note 3—Acquisition of Minority Interest in The Outdoor Channel, Inc. (Continued)

annual reports filed for the periods ended March 31, 2005 through June 30, 2006 and we have amended all
of those filings. The comparative consolidated financial statements in this report reflect the restated
balances.

Considerations of Impairment of Intangible Assets

During 2006, we engaged third party consultants to review our business practices and strategy. Among
the areas reviewed was our approach to growing our subscriber base through our relationships with MSOs.
In September 2006, the consultants concluded, and the Board of Directors accepted their conclusions, that
a complete revision of the terms of our relationships with MSOs was necessary to meet the subscriber
growth goals established by us. Upon acceptance of that conclusion and the general strategy outlined by
the consultants, we reviewed our amortizable MSO relationships and our other amortizable intangible
assets (customer lists and trademarks) for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”

(“SFAS 144”). Based upon the changed circumstances, we concluded that, as of the date we accepted the
consultants’ conclusion, our MSO relationships asset was fully impaired and that our other remaining
amortizable intangible assets were not. Accordingly, we have charged to expense the remaining
unamortized carrying value of the MSO relationships of $9,540 during the year ended December 31, 2006.

We further concluded that the carrying value of goodwill has not been impaired and that the changed
circumstances have not affected the estimated lives of the remaining amortizable intangible assets.
However, these estimates will continue to be reviewed during each reporting period to determine whether
circumstances continue to support their carrying values and, where applicable, their estimated useful lives.
Estimates are subject to risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from
those projected or implied in the determination of the fair value. A significant downward revision in the
present value of estimated future cash flows for a reporting unit or the undiscounted cash flows from the
other remaining amortizable intangible assets could result in an impairment of goodwill or the remaining
amortizable intangibles and a non-cash charge would be required. Such a charge could have a significant
effect on our reported net earnings.

Note 4—Revenue To Be Earned Upon Collection

As of December 31, 2006, the approximate scheduled payments to be recognized as revenue, assuming
such amounts are collected in future years from existing Lost Dutchman’s sales contracts, are as follows:

4

Years Ending

December 31, Amount
2007, e e e e $2,846
2008, .. e i 2,168
2000, . e e e e 1,621
0 ) O P 1,173
1 1 589

Thereafter . .......ccovriiiiiiiiiiinerrnnn 288

Total . oot e $8,685
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Note 5—Subscriber Acquisition Fees

Subscriber acquisition fees, which are included in other assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, are
comprised of the following:

2006 2005

Subscriber acquisition fees, azcost. ... .l $2,080 $407
Accumulated amortization ................ e (246) (13)
Subscriber acquisition fees. net .. . .. e $1,834 $394

Of the net balance at December 31, 2006, we expect $1,592 will be recognized as a reduction of
subscriber fee revenue and $242 will be recognized as subscriber acquisition fee amortization expense in
future periods. For the year ended December 31, 2006, $2(12 was charged to revenue and $30 was charged
to expense. We expect to amortize the net balan e as of December 31, 2006 as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2007, e i e e e $ 416
2008, . o 416
2000, . e 416
2000, e e 403
b U 183

Total amortization .. ..........ccovuvienn... $1,834

For the years ended December 31, 2006 anci 2005, we made cash payments of $1,673 and $407,
respectively, relating to current subscriber acquisition fee obligations,
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Note 6—Investment in Available-For-Sale Securities

The Company’s short-term investments in marketable debt and equity securities are classified as
available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value at the end of each period. Gross realized gains and losses
on sales of securities during 2006 and all amounts related to such investments prior to the year ended
December 31, 2006 were not material. Included in investments in available-for-sale securities at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 are equity investments and auction rate securities with short-term interest
rates that generally can be reset every 28 days. The auction rate securities have long-term maturity dates
and provide us with enhanced yields. However, we believe we have the ability to quickly liquidate them at
their original cost, although there is no guarantee, and, accordingly, they are carried at cost, which
approximates market value, and classified as current assets. We had unrealized net holding gains on
marketable equity securities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $48 and $36, respectively, that are in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

The investments in available-for-sale securities is as follows:

As of December 31,

2006 2005
Anction rate Securities. . .......vvreriennnnn $41,250 $38,000
Equities........ovoiiiiiiiiiin i 894 830
Total current securities .................... $42,144  $38,830

We consider the yields we recognize from auction rate securities and from cash held in our money
market accounts to be interest income. Yields we recognize from our investments in equity securities we
consider to be dividend income. Both are recorded in other income as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Interestincome ..........covvvivennnn.. $2,613 3$864 $ 31
Dividendincome.............ccvvennnn 79 79 55
Gain on sale of securities................ — —_ 34
Total otherincome...........coovvnn... $2,692 $943 $120
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Note 7—Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortizable Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

2006 2005
Membership division:

Land .. ..o ¥ 2480 $ 2480
Equipment..........oooiiiiiii i 1,999 1,945
Buildings and improvements. ... ................ 1,620 1,580
Furniture and fixtures .......................... 144 144
Vehicles ... ol 857 850
7,100 6,999

Less accumulated depreciation.. ................ (3,748) (3473
Subtotals. . .......... ... 3,352 3,526

Qutdoor Channel:

Land . ... e 600 600
Buildings and improvements. ... ................ 5,407 2,073
Equipment ....... ... ... i 0,848 6,143
Furniture and fixtures ......... ................ 134 102
Vehicles ... 632 621
Leasehold improvements. ....................... 593 412
Videolibrary ........... ... o il — 211
Construction in progress . ......vvvveieenraerann. — 4,878
17,214 15,040

Less accumulated depreciation. . ................. (4,769) (2,943)
Subtotals. .. ......... .. ... ... 12,445 12,097
Totals ..o $15,797  $15,623

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recognized depreciation expense related
to these assets of $2,314, $1,633, $1,109, respectively. Included in depreciation expense is amortization of

capital leases of $1, $22 and $23, respectively.

Amortizable intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows;

06
Advertising Total

Cuostomer Amortizable

Relationships Trademark Intangibles
Residualvalue............ ..o i, $ — — $ —
Weighted average amortization period ......... 3years,8 months  15years 4 years, 10 months
Gross Carrying amount ..............oeevunn. $ 1,972 § 219 § 2,191
Less accumulated amortization. ............... 1,226 145 1,371
Netbookvalue ................ ..ot $ 746 3§ 74 % 820
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2005
Advertising Total
MSO Customer Amortizable
Relationships Relationships Trademark Intangibles
Residual value. . ........ $ — % — 3 — 3 —
Weighted average
amortization period. . . 21 years, 4 months 3 years, 8 months  15years 18 years, 6 months
Gross carrying amount ..  §$ 10,573 % 1,972 § 219 % 12,764
Less accumulated
amortization ......... 661 681 130 1,472
Netbookvalue ......... $ 9912 % 1,291 § 89 3 11,292

As of December 31, 2006, the weighted average remaining useful economic lives of the advertising
customer relationships, trademark and total amortizable intangibles are 1 year 4 months, 5 years 3 months
and 1 year 9 months, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we incurred amortization expense as follows:

Advertising Total
MSO Customer Amortizable
Relationships  Relationships  Trademark Intangibles
2006........ $372 $545 $15 $ 932
2005........ 496 545 14 1,055
2004........ 165 136 14 315

As of September 30, 2006, we deemed the MSO relationship asset to be fully impaired and
correspondingly wrote-off the balance of $9,540 on that date.

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for the years subsequent to December 31, 2006 for
advertising customer relationships and trademark are as follows:

Amg‘:ttig.gable
Years Ending December 31, Intangibles
2007, e e $508
2008, ... e 268
' 2009, ..t 14
2000, . e 14
2000, e 11
Thereafter ...l _ 3
Total. .o e e $820
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Note 8—Long-Term Debt, Capital Lease Oblig:tions and Lines of Credit
Bank Lines of Credit

On November 2, 2005, we renewed the revolving line of credit agreement (the “revolver”) with U.S.
Bank N.A. (the “Bank™) we obtained in September 2004, extending the maturity date from September 5,
2005 to September 7, 2007 and increasing the tctal amount which can be drawn upon under the
revolver from $5,000 to $8,000. The revolver provides that the interest rate shall be LIBOR plus 1.25%.
The revolver is collateralized by substantially all of our assets. This credit facility contains customary
financial and other covenants and restrictions, as amended on November 2, 2005, including a change of
control provision. As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, we did not have any outstanding borrowings under
this revolver.

Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligation:

On November 2, 2005, we obtained a $1,950 mortgage loan from the Bank which had a 10 year term
with a 25 year amortization schedule. This loan carried a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.35%. This
loan was secured primarily by a Deed of Trust ¢n our recently purchased broadcast facility located in
Temecula, California and was also secondarily secured by the same assets as the revolver. It also contained
customary financial and other covenants and restrictions including a change of control provision.

On November 7, 2005, we entered into an interest ratc swap agreement with the Bank to reduce the
potential impact of increasing interest rates on the floating rate long-term mortgage note and effectively
fixed the interest rate on this loan at 6.59%. Thu notional principal amount was reduced by $7 per month
through September 5, 2015 with the balance of “he note amounting to $1,190 due on that date. We
expected the cash flows refated to the swap 1o bs highly effective in offsetting the changes in cash flows of
the variable rate debt. The change in such amount was also reflected in other comprehensive income (loss)
as we had designated the contract as a cash flow hedge.

On November 2, 2005, we obtained a $3,000, five year, fully amortizing term loan. This term loan
carried a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.35%. This term loan was secured by the same assets as the
revoiver and contained customary financial and other covenanis and restrictions including a change of
control provision. On November 7, 2005, we eniered into an interest rate swap agreement with the Bank to
reduce the potential impact of increasing interest rates on the floating rate long-term note and effectively
fixed the interest rate on this term loan at 6.35%5. The notional principal amount was reduced by $52 per
month until retired on September 5, 2010. The change in such amount was also reflected in other
comprehensive income (loss) as we had designated the contract as a cash flow hedge.
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Note 8—Long-Term Debt, Capital Lease Obligations and Lines of Credit (Continued)

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

2006 2005

Note payable to a bank, payable in monthly

installments of $7 plus interest, calculated at an

adjustable rate of 6.59% at December 31, 2005,

due August 2015, secured by real estate . ........ $— $1,944
Note payable to a bank, payable in monthly

installments of $52 plus interest, calculated at an

adjustable rate of 6.35% at December 31, 2005,

due September 2010, secured by substantially all

of the Company’sassets...............oovvvenn — 2,948
Capital lease obligations .................... ..., — 9
Totals. ..ottt e e e e — 4,901
Lesscurrentportion...........ccovvvvvinenean... — 708
Long-term portion .........ovvevevraniieaananns $— $4,193

Covenant Violation and Retirement

Because we did not supply our financial statements for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2006 within the time frame prescribed by the Bank and because we did not meet the
minimum profitability covenant for the three months ended September 30, 2006, we were in violation as of
that date of two covenants relating to our two term loans and our revolving line-of-credit facility.
Accordingly, these loans were callable by the Bank. On October 19, 2006, we elected to retire the two long-
term loans, which had an aggregate balance of $4,321 plus accrued interest thereon. On March 22, 2007,
we received notification that these covenant violations were waived for these occurrences but that these
covenants continue for future periods. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with the debt
covenants and expect to be in compliance at least through December 31, 2007.

Note %—Commitments and Contingencies

We, from time to time, are involved in litigation as both plaintiff and defendant arising in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the results of any pending litigation should not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or operating results.

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of
temporary cash investments, available-for-sale securities, and accounts receivable. We reduce credit risk by
placing our temporary cash investments with major financial institutions with high credit ratings. At
December 31, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $15,553 with major financial
institutions in certain investment accounts which were not covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.

We reduce credit risk related to accounts receivable by routinely assessing the financial strength of
our customers. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the credit risk of specific
customers, historical trends and other information that management believes will adequately provide for
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Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

credit losses. As of December 31, 2006, we di] not have one customer that accounted for 10% or more of
our account receivable balance on that date.

Changes in our allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

Balance at Additions Balance

Beginning Charged at End

of Yenar to Expense  Deductions of Year

Year-ended December 31,2006 ....... $275 $104 $(171)  $208
Year-ended December 31,2005........ 207 214 (146) 275
Year-ended December 31,2004 . ....... 234 164 (191} 207

As of December 31, 2006, our agreemerts for maintenance, advertising, promotional and talent,
research and programming commit us to payments over several years and are estimated to be as follows:

Advertising,
Maintenance  Promotional
Years Ending December 31, Tatal Agreements and Talent Research  Programming
2007 .. s $6,065 $121 $1,737 $454 $3,753
2008 ................. 1,636 59 565 — 1,012
2009 ...l 61 61 — — —
Total .............. $7,762 $241 $2.302 $454 $4,765

We have entered into a severance and consulting agreement with the former CEQ of TOC whereby
we will pay to him or to others on his behalf approximately $325 and $44 in 2007 and 2008, respectively.

We appointed Roger L. Werner, Jr. President of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and entered into an
employment agreement (the “Agreement”) with him, which sets forth terms and provisions governing his
employment as Chief Executive Officer and President. The Agreement has an initial term of three years
beginning October 16, 2006, which wili be automatically extended each year for an additional one year
term unless the other party provides written notice of non-renewal at least 60 days prior to the date of
automatic renewal. The Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party with or without cause.
The agreement contains provisions for severance payments in the event that the Company terminates
Mr. Werner’s employment without “Cause” (as defined in the Agreement) or Mr. Werner resigns for
“Good Reason” (as also defined in the Agreement). Mr. Werner’s annual salary is $300 and he received a
signing bonus of $300 in 2006. Mr. Werner will be eligible during the year ending December 31, 2007 to
receive an annual cash incentive payable for the achievement of performance goals in amounts that are
equal to at least 50% of his base salary, and he is eligible to participate in all benefit programs available to
our executive officers.

Operating I eases

We lease facilities and equipment, inclading access to satellites for television transmission, under non-
cancelable operating leases that expire at various dates through 2012. Generally, the most significant leases
are satellite leases that require escalating rental payments. Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line
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Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

basis over each lease term. The excess of the expense accrued over the amounts currently payable is
reflected as deferred satellite rent obligations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

We lease our administrative facilities from Musk Ox Properties, LP, which in turn is owned by
Messrs. Perry T. Massie and Thomas H. Massie, principal stockholders and officers of the Company. The
lease agreements were renewed effective January 1, 2006 for a five-year term with 2 five-year renewal
options, at our discretion. Monthly rental payments are $29 with a 3% per year escalator clause.

Rent expense, including rent paid to Musk Ox Properties, LP, aggregated to approximately $2,981,
$2,962 and $2,604 in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Total rental commitments under the operating lease agreements described above for years ending
subsequent to December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2007, e e e $ 2,721
2008, .. e e e e 2,335
2009, . e e 2,104
2000, e e 2,116
2000, . e e 1,701
Thereafter ...t ininninn. 560
Total ... ... $11,537

Note 10—Income Taxes

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal ..................... $ — 3$(1,558) § 1,216
State ... e 2 67 457
Totalcurrent . ............. 2 (1,491) 1,673
Deferred:
Federal ..................... (3,079) 2,710  (13,568)
State ... .o (836) 284 {4,116)
Total deferred . ............ (3,915) 2,994 (17,684)
Totals .................. $(3,913) § 1,503 $(16,011)
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Noté 10—Income Taxes (Continued)

The tax effects of the temporary diff =rences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 were related to the following:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss. . .................... $ 7909 § 7,486
Share-based compensation.............. 5,480 6,801
Deferredrevenues . ................... 79N 600
Deferredrent. .. .......coovviiniinnn.. 135 117
Current StAte tAXeS . ..o vvr i vennerecnes 23 —
Provision for doubtful accounts.......... 82 110
Other accrued liabilities ................ 99 44
Alternative minimum tax credit .......... 113 113
Difference in the timiag of recognition of

expense related to programming .. ..... 366 —_
Other........oooviii 92 29

15,090 15,300

Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixedassets ..........coiviniii ... (327) (251)
Intangible assets .. ..................... (293)  (4,465)
Other. ... ciiens (103) (78)
(723)  (4,794)

Deferred tax assets,net .. ........coevnn... $14,367 $10,506

As of December 31, 2006, we have a fed:ral net operating loss carry forward of approximately $18,457
after expected carry back and a California net operating loss carry forward of approximately $25,471.
California will start to expire in 2015 and fedcral will start to expire in 2025, The alternative minimum tax
credit of $113 does not expire. The Company believes it is more likely than not that the benefit associated
with the deferred tax assets resulting from net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets
will be ultimately realized based on its assessment of future taxable income during the periods in which the
net operating losses remain available.
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Note 10—Income Taxes (Continued)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations are different than those computed based on the applicable statutory Federal income tax rate of
34% in 2006, 2005 and 2004 as shown below:

2006 2005 2004
Federal income tax provision (benefit) at statutory
income taxrate.............. SN $(3,821) $1,258 $(13,588)

* State taxes, net of federal benefit......... PR '(551) 222 (2,206) -
Non-deductible expense............ccvvienriaann 273 35 38
Deferred compensation ................covvinn.. — — {198)

Effect of change in state tax rates. .. ......... PR 162 ° — — T
Other. ..o et e e e 24 {(12) {(57)
Income tax provision (benefit) ..................... $(3,913) $1,503 $(16,011)

Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans

Qur stock incentive plans provide for the granting of qualified and nonqualified options, restricted
stock, performance units and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) to our officers, directors, employees and
service providers. We satisfy the exercise of options and awards of restricted stock by issuing previously
unissued common shares. Currently we have not awarded any SARs. Prior to September 30, 2006 we had
not awarded any performance units but did so in the fourth quarter of 2006. Prior to the adoption of
SFAS 123R, we used the intrinsic value method to account for stock options granted to employees and
generally, made no charges against earnings with respect to those options at the date of grant since our
employee options had exercise prices that were equat to the market price. SFAS 123R requires that we
elect an approved method to calculate the historical poo! of windfall tax benefits upon adoption of
SFAS 123R within one year of its adoption. We have elected the method outlined in SFAS 123R,
sometimes referred to as the “long haul” method, for this calculation.

We have four stock option plans: 1995 Stock Option Plan (the “1995 Plan™), Long-Term Incentive
Plan (the “LTIP Plan”), Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the “NEDSOP” Plan) and we
assumed, on September 8, 2004, TOC’s 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”). No more options can be
issued under the 1995 or 1997 Plans. We also may grant stock options that are not covered under any of
the stock option plans, with appropriate shareholder approvals, and have two such awards outstanding as
of December 31, 2006. Options and stock grants are subject to terms and conditions as determined by our
Board of Directors. Stock option grants are generally exercisable in increments of 25% during each year of
employment beginning three months to one year from the date of grant. Generally, stock options expire
five years from the date of grant. Options issued under our NEDSOP Plan are generally exercisable 40%
after the first 3 months of service and 20% on the first anniversary of appointment and each anniversary
thereafter until 100% are vested. These options generally have 10 year lives.

Our Board of Directors has discretion to allow our employees to forego shares in lieu of paying
requisite withholding taxes on vested restricted shares. In turn, we remit to the appropriate taxing
authorities the federal and state withholding on the total compensation the employees have realized as a
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued) . . _y/

result of the vesting of these shares. In 2006, approximately 44 shares were so repurchased with a market
value of approximately $568. We estimate that 45 to 50 shares will be so repurchased in 2007. 4
I
i

[

.

Following is a summary of the common stock reserved for issuance under the plans as of
December 31, 2006:

Total Granted and Qutstanding

Total Restricted  Performance  Available for

Reservell _Options Shares Units Future Grants
1995Plan............... 251 251 — — v —
NEDSOP .............. 1,000 625 — — - 375
1997 Plan............... §88 888 — — —
Qutside of plans......... 463 463 — — —
LTIPPlan.............. 3098 1,045 364 700 989
5700 3272 364 700 1,364

We have not capitalized any share-based compensation to any of our assets. We expense awards at the
earliest of its vesting schedule or pro rata on « straight line basis over the requisite service period. The
following table summarizes the impact that st are-based compensation expense recognized under
SFAS 123R has had on our loss from operations, net loss, loss per basic and diluted common share for the
year ended December 31, 2006:

Compensation Related to
Restricted Stock Options Performance Units Total
Loss from operations. .. ..................... $1,074 $3,496 $2,496 $7,066
Netloss. ... iiiiieienns P 652 2,403 1,515 4,570
Loss per common share:
Basic....... ... $(0.03) $(0.10) $ (0.06) $(0.19
Diluted.............ccoiiiiiiiii ., $(0.03) $(0.10) - $ (0.06) $(0.19

The adoption of SFAS 123R resulted in the recognition of share-based compensation related to our
options. We would otherwise have recognized share-based compensation related to restricted stock and
performance units under the intrinsic value method.

;;;;;;
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

Qur historical net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per common share and pro forma net income
(loss) and pro forma earnings (loss) per common share assuming compensation cost had been determined
for 2005 and 2004 based on the fair value at the grant date for all awards by us, using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model consistent with the provisions of SFAS 123, and amortized ratably over the vesting
period are set forth below:

2005 2004
Net income (loss):
Asreported. .. ..ot e $ 2,193  $(24,260)
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense included
in reported net loss, net of tax effects™ .................. — 28,885
Deduct: Share-based employee compensation expense
assuming a fair value based method had been used for all
awards, net of taxeffects® ........... ... ... .. .. .. (1,729)  (2,623)
Pro forma—basicanddiluted .. .......................... $ 464 5§ 2,002
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
ASTEPOITEA. . . oot ettt it $ 010 § (1.52)
| (0] (7011 J $ 002 § 013
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
ASTEPOTTEd. . .t ittt $ 009 § (152)
3 (03 (4701 T I $ 002 § 013
*  SeeNote3
Stock Options

As a result of amendments of SFAS 123, we began charging the fair value of all employee stock
options as of the date of grant to expense over the vesting period beginning with our fiscal quarter ending
March 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS 123R required us to record additional compensation expense
which has a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial statements in periods subsequent to
adoption.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123, all issuances of common stock, stock options, warrants
or other equity instruments to employees and non-employees as the consideration for goods or services
received by the Company are accounted for based on the fair value of the equity instruments issued (unless
the fair value of the consideration received can be more reliably measured). Generally, the fair value of
any options, warrants or similar equity instruments issued is estimated based on the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model.
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

Additional Required Disclosures Related to Einployee Stock Options

The fair value of each option granted by us in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes options pricing model #ith the following assumptions:

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interestrate . ...t 4.3-49% 3.7-42% 1.7-4.2%
Dividendyield.............coiiiiiii i 0% 0% 0%
Expected lifeof theoption.............. ... ... ...... 33-38yrs 38-51yrs. 3mos. - 10yrs.
Expectedvolatility ............. ... ..o oolLL. 57.8-624% 37.7% 41.7-79.0%
Weighted average expected volatility ........ i 58.6% 37.7% 49.9%

Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of our stock. We have adopted the guidance of
the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 that notes if share options have “plain vanilla” characteristics,
a simplified method of estimating the expected| life of the option may be employed temporarily. The
simplified method utilizes the average of the vzsted term and the original contract term. We have recently
experienced certain events that indicate that our long-term historical experience is no longer valid. As such
we adopted the simplified method. Our short-term historical experience with exercise and post-vesting
employment termination behavior supports this method for determining the options’ expected life. When
sufficient historical experience has been obtained, we will use such experience for future estimations of the
expected life. The expected life represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rate with a maturity date corresponding to the
options’ expected life.

A summary of the status of option activity under our four stock option plans and outside of those
plans as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and changes in options outstanding during the years then
ended is presented in the table that follows:

2006 2005 2004

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average - Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
__thares Price Shares Price Shares Price
{in (in (in
thimsands) thousands) thousands)
Outstanding at beginning of year ...... 3,564 $ 7.31 5630 $ 412 1,648 $ 6.57
Optionsgranted ..................... 505 12.40 385 14.60 705 13.88
Options granted in exchange for TOC
options {see Note 3) ............... — — — — 4,012 0.98
Options exereised. . .................. (768) 119 (2,448) 1.12 723) 1.77
Options canceled or expired........... (29) 13.33 3) 6.14 (12) 571
Outstanding atend of year............ 3,272 $ 9.48 3,564 $ 7.1 5,630 $ 412
Options exercisable at end of period . .. 2,076 $ 743 2,493 $ 477 4,579 $ 230
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

Certain additional information regarding our stock options follows:

' ' 2006 2005 2004
Option price range atend ofyear..................... $092-%1.75 $092-81.75 $0.92-81.75

Weighted-average grant-date fair value of 505; 385; and
705 options granted during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, with an exercise price equal to the market
price at the dateof grant. .......................... $ 575 % 548 § 821

Weighted-average fair value of 4,012 options granted
during 2004 with an exercise price less than the market
priceatthedate ofgrant. . ......................... $ 13.02

Weighted-average remaining contractual life of options
exercisable’at December 31,.............. ... ... 2.9 years

Aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at ,
December 31, . ... i $ 12,423

Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable at
December 31, .............. e $ 11,799

Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during year  § 8,028 § 31,014 3§ 8,940

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006, .
all of which are at fixed prices:

__Options Outstanding QOptions Exercisable
Weighted Average ' Weighted
Remaining Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
(in thousands) (in thousands)
$092-81.54. ... 888 09years  $ 0.95 888 $ 095
$332-%8460............. L. 70 0.3 years 3.54 66 348
$6.14-81160 .. ... 639 1.9 years 1141 435 11.55
$1210-1575 .. oo 1,675 6.8 years 13.52 667 13.64
3,272 4.1 years 9.48 2,076 7.43

As of December 31, 2006, we have 35,997 of expense associated with stock options yet to be
recognized which will be amortized as compensation expense over the employees’ remaining requisite
service periods which on a weighted average basis is 1.8 years.

Performance Units

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we awarded two performance units of 400 shares each under the
plans. One unit has a 4 year cycle, vesting 50 common shares when the closing share price of our common
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Note 16—401(k) Savings Plan oo 1oy

We maintain a 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) I'lan”). We are required to make matching contributions to
the 401{k) Plan in the amount of 50% of the f 1st 6% of wages deferred by each participating employee up;
to statutory maximums, During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we incurred total charges of approximately $141, $124
and $91 for employer matching contributions, respectively.

Note 17—Accounts Payable and Accrued Exp2nses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

2006 2005
Trade accounts payable ... ................en. $1,032 $1,580
Accrued payroll and related expenses.......... 806 626 i
Estimated make-good accrual ................ 590 - 280 e
Accrued eXpPenses ... .. cviiiran i 474 378
B 1017 R $2,902 $2,.864

Note 18—Quarterly Financial Information (1/naudited)

Summarized unaudited operating data for each of the quarters in the years ended December 31, 2006

and 2005 follows:
Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2006
REVENMUE. ot v eeeeains e rraanenaransannns $11,280  $10,927 $13,182 $13,124
Income (loss) from operations. .................. (685) (886) (8,614) (3,499)
Netincome (1088} . ... ovovuv e iinnnen. (157) 302 (5,568) (1,902)
Earnings (loss} per common share: :
BasiC. . coveire i $ (001 $ oM $ (0.22) $ (0.08)
Diluted. ..o uee e s $ (001) $ 001 $ (0.22) $ (0.08)
2005
REVEMUE. .+ v e vveeetriaenanaenar e inenes $10,061  $10,014  $11,404 $11,429
Income from Operations . . ........covveeenronns 604 715 137 1,342
NEtICOIMIC - oot teeeraearneeannanarnaianrans 377 437 248 1,131
Earnings per common share:
BaSiC. .ot eete et $ 002 §$ 002 § 001 $ 005
Difuted. ..o oe i e e $ 002 $ 002 § 001 $ 004
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

Certain additional information regarding our stock options follows:

' 2006 2005 2004
Option price range atend of year ..................... $0.92-$1.75 $0.92-8%1.75 $0.92-3%1.75

Weighted-average grant-date fair value of 505; 385; and
705 options granted during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, with an exercise price equal to the market
price at the date of grant. . ........... ... ...l $ 575 8 548 § 8.21

Weighted-average fair value of 4,012 options granted
during 2004 with an exercise price less than the market
price atthe date of grant. . ................... . ..... $ 13.02

Weighted-average remaining contractual life of options
exercisable at December 31,.. ... ..o o 2.9 years

Aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at
December 31, ...t e $ 12,423

Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable at
December 3], ...oovvvieii i e $ 11,799

Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during year  § 8,028 $ 31,014 % 8,940

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006,
all of which are at fixed prices:

Options OQutstanding QOptions Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted
Remaining Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Quistanding Life Price Exercisable Price

(in thousands) {in thousands)

$092-81.54. . ... ... 888 0.9 years $ 095 888 $ 095
$332-8460. ... ...l 70 0.3 years 3.54 66 3.48
$6.14-81160 ... . ... 639 1.9 years 11.41 455 11.55
$1210-1575 (oo 1,675 6.8 years 13.52 667 13.64
3,272 4.1 years 9.48 2,076 7.43

As of December 31, 2006, we have $5,997 of expense associated with stock options yet to be
recognized which will be amortized as compensation expense over the employees’ remaining requisite
service periads which on a weighted average basis is 1.8 years.

Performance Units

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we awarded two performance units of 400 shares each under the
plans. One unit has a 4 year cycle, vesting 50 common shares when the closing share price of our common
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

P
stock over a 20 trading day period, no later thin the expiration date, is equal to or greater than $11.96 and
another vesting of 50 common shares when the 20 trading day average share price meets or exceeds $12.46.
Another 100 common shares vest provided the 20 trading day average share price reaches $13.46, $14.46

and $15.46 hurdles, respectively. In November 2006, the first two hurdles were attained and thusan =~
aggregate of 100 common shares vested and were issued.

Additional Required Disclosures Related to Fimployvee Performance Units

The fair value of each performance unit granted by us in 2006 (none were granted in prior years) was
estimated on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo model assuming equity returns, continuously

compounded, following a normal distribution pricing model with the following assumptions and
determinations:

First Award Second Award
Risk-free interestrate. . ..., 4.8% 4.8%
Dividendyield ....... .. ... ... . . . 0% 0%
Closing per share price on grantdate ............... $12.10 $12.10
Expectedvolatility. ...................... ..ot 72.9% 72.9%
Estimated serviceperiod .......................... 0.6 years 1.1 years
Fair value of one common share. ................... $11.59 $11.19

Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of our stock. The risk-free rate is based on a
blend of yields on 4-year and S-year U.S. Treasury Securities. These securities included U.S. Treasury
Strips and U.S. Treasury Notes. The U.S. Treasury Notes were adjusted to be a continuously compounded
rate. As of December 31, 2006, we have $6,612. of expense associated with performance units yet to be
recognized which will be amortized as compensation expense over the employee’s remaining requisite
service periods which is less than 1 year in both cases and on a weighted average basis.
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Note 11—Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)
Ré;vh'icted Stock

+A summary of the status of Outdoor Channel Holdings’ non-vested restricted shares as of
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the changes in restricted shares outstanding during the years then
ended is presented in the table that follows:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
# Grant-Date Grant-Date Grant-Date
- Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
(in (in (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)
Non-vested at beginning of year . 127 $14.43 75 $13.90 — —
Granted ...................... 295 1183 75 14.91 75 $13.90
Vested .....oovniinieii (37) 13.70 (15) 1390 = — —
Canceled or expired............ (21) 14.13 (8 14.95 — —
Non-vested at end of year. . ..... 364 $12.42 127 - $14.43 75 $13.90

As of December 31, 2006, we have $3,682 of expense associated with restricted stock yet to be
recognized which will be amortized as compensation expense over the employees’ and service providers’
remaining requisite service periods which on a weighted average basis is 1.8 years.

As of December 31, 2006, $16,291 of expense with respect to all non-vested share-based arrangements
has yet to be recognized which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.
Note 12— Equity Transactions
Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we were authorized to issue up to 25,000 shares of preferred
stock, $0.001 par value per share in one or more series with designations, rights and preferences as
determined by our Board of Directors, respectively.

Issuances of Common Stock by the Company
We received cash from the cxercise of options as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Number of options exercised .......... 768 2,448 723
Cashproceeds..........covvivnnnnn.. $913 $2,734 $1,285

In July 2005, we completed a public offering of our common stock, whereby we sold 3,500 shares of
common stock and received net proceeds of $43,350. In addition, certain selling stockholders exercised
options to buy 2,130 (inclusive of the underwriters over-allotment option) shares of common stock which
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Note 12—Equity Transactions (Continued} : o

were resold in the public offering. The shares sold by the selling stockholders were purchased immediately
before the sale through the exercise of options they held to buy common shares from us.

We issued employees, directors and service providers in aggregate 295, 75, and 75 shares of restricted
common stock in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The rights to these shares generally vest over a five
year period. Included in the 2006 issuance are 56 shares issued to service providers. Of the restricted shares
issued to service providers, 50 shares vest upor specific performance related to subscriber growth which we
estimate will be fully earned and vested by the end of 2007. The rights to the remaining 6 shares issued to
service providers vest annually over a five-year period. We did not grant any restricted shares to service
providers prior to 2006.

Under SFAS 123R, the fair value of the shares, adjusted for a forfeiture assumption, at the respective
dates of grant (which represents deferred compensation not required to be recorded initially in the
consolidated balance sheet) will be amortized 10 share-based compensation expense as the rights to the
restricted stock vest with an equivalent amount. added to additional paid-in capital. For the service
providers, however, the future charge will be recognized in accordance with Emerging Issue Task Force
“Accounting for Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services” Issue No. 9618 (“EITF 96-18”) and will be retroactively
adjusted to reflect the fair market value at the 2nd of each reporting period until the shares vest when the
related charge will be adjusted for the final time. Based on the closing market price on December 29, 2006
(the last trading day of 2006) of $12.83 per shace, the fair value of these 56 shares of restricted stock was
$718. Assuming the closing market price as of December 31, 2006 does not change over the remaining
vesting period, we would have $349 of expense yet to be recognized.

Note 13—Related Party Transactions

We lease our administrative facilities from Musk Ox Propertics, LP, which in turn is owned by _
Messrs. Perry T. Massie and Thomas H. Massi , principal stockholders and officers of the Company. In
December 2005, the lease agreements were consolidated into one lease. The new lease agreement has a
five-year term, expiring on December 31, 2010, with 2 five-year renewal options at our discretion. Monthly
rental payments are $29 with a 3% per year escalator clause. Rent expense paid to Musk Ox Properties, LP
totaled approximately $349, $251 and $244 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 14—Segment Information

Pursuant to the Provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 1317}, we report segment information
in the same format as reviewed by our Chief Operating Decision Maker (the “CODM?”). We segregate our
business activities into TOC and the Membership Division. TOC is a separate business activity that
broadcasts television programming on The Outdoor Channel and Qutdoor Channel 2 HD 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. TOC generates revenue from advertising fees (which include fees paid by outside
producers to purchase advertising time in connection with the airing of their programs on The Outdoor
Channel) and subscriber fees. Lost Dutchman’s and GPAA membership sales and related activities are
reported in the Membership Division. The Membership Division also includes magazine sales,
adverlisements within the magazine, the sale of products and services related to gold prospecting, gold
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Note 14—Segment Information (Continued)

expositions, expeditions and outings. Intersegment sales, which are excluded in the presentation below,
amounted to $595 for each of 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Information with respect to these reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

and 2004 is as follows:

Income (Loss) Additions to
Before Income Depreciation Property,
Taxes and Total and Plant and
Revenues  Minerity Interest Assets Amortization Improvements
2006
TOC e e $42,579 $ (9,240) $ 74215 $12,735(1) $ 2,385
Membership Division ............ 5,943 327 4,733 283 103
Subtotals of Segments.......... 48,522 {8,913) 78,948 13,018 2,488
Corporate(2)...........ovvvinnn — {2,325) 69,000 — —
Totals........cvvvivvvnnanenn $48,522 $(11,238) $147957 $13,018 $ 2,488
2005
TOC .. i $37,527 $ 4865 $ 79025 § 2,388 $10,224
Membership Division ............ 5,381 280 5,017 342 335
Subtotals of Segments.......... 42,908 5,145 84,042 2,730 10,559
Corporate(2).............ovne. — (1,449) 67,780 — —
Totals. ..o, $42,908 $ 3,69 $151,822  § 2,730 $10,559
2004
TOC ... i i $34,596 $(38,330) $ 78574 $§ 1,080 $ 1,938
Membership Division ............ 5,358 354 6,857 344 611
Subtotals of Segments. ......... 39,954 (37,976) 85,431 1,424 2,549
Corporate(2).................... — (1,613) 14,138 — —
Totals ...t $39,954 $(39,589) $ 99569 § 1424 $ 2,549

(1) [Includes impairment of intangible assets charge of $9,540.

(2) We capture corporate overhead that is applicable to both segments, but not directly related to
operations in a separate business unit, as “Corporate.” The expenses allocated to Corporate consisted
primarily of professional fees including public relations, accounting and legal fees, taxes associated
with being incorporated in Delaware, board fees, and other corporate fees not associated directly with
either TOC or the Membership division. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash not held in our
operating accounts, available-for-sale securities, deferred tax assets, net and income tax refund

receivable.

Note 15—Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our material financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments in available-for-
sale securities, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of
our financial instruments generally approximated their fair values at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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OUTDOOR CHANNLL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolicated Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 16—401(k) Savings Plan

<lek

We maintain a 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). We are required to make matching contributions to
the 401(k) Plan in the amount of 50% of the first 6% of wages deferred by each participating employeeup ;
to statutory maximums. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we incurred total charges of approximately $141, $124

and $91 for employer matching contributions, respectively.

Note 17—Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

Trade accounts payable .. ....................
Accrued payroll and related expenses. .........
Estimated make-good accrual ................
Accrued eXpenses .. ... .ueu i

Note 18—Quarterly Financial Informatior (Unaudited)

Summarized unaudited operating dat:. for each of the quarters in the years ended December 31, 2006

and 2005 follows:
Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
2006
REVENUE. .ottt teiiii it et crieiineenns $11,289  $10,927 $13,182 $13,124
Income (loss) from operations. .................. {685) (886) (8,614) (3,499)
Netincome (loss). .. ..ooviviniei e (157) 302 (5,568) (1,902)
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic. . ..., $ (001) § 001 $ (0.22) $ (0.08)
Diluted. ... $ (001) § 001 $ (0.22) $ (0.08)
2005
2t $10,061  $10,014 $11,404 $11,429
Income from operations................ooovaots 604 715 137 1,342
NetinCome .........covtiviiiinnvinrinianannn. 377 437 248 1,131
Earnings per common share:
BaSIC. ot e s $ 002 $ 002 $ 001 $ 005
Diluted. ... $ 002 §$ 002 § 001 $ 0.04
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OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDMARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 18—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (Continued)

Year-end transactions that had a material impact on the operating results of the fourth quarter

include:
2006
Programming. .. .......ocoeueuneneneennnnns $ 932
EXecutive SeVETance . . .. ..vvievnuivaranninans 377
Executive signingbonus ........... ..o 300
Promotional material........................ 221
$1,830

Excluded from these charges are share-based compensation expense charges related to our new CEO
for performance units that amounted to $2,496 in the fourth quarter of 2006.

* ¥ %
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 1
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. ]

Not Applicable. A

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES, ‘ ‘ol
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedure::.

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance of
achieving the objective that information in ouvr Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized.
and reported within the time periods specified and pursuant to the regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Disclosure controls a:1d procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act, inclede controls anc procedures designed to ensure the information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. It should be noted that our system of
controls, however well designed and operatec, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the system are met.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectivencss of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006, the end of
the period covered by this report. Based on tais evaluation, we have concluded that as a result of a
material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting discussed below, our disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective as of Dece:nber 31, 2006. '

Management’s report on internal control over firancial reporting.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of assets; (b) provide reasonable’
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of finarcial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accountir g principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorizations >f our management and directors; and (c) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preperation of financial statements prepared for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the «egree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on ihe framework set forth in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponioring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Management reviewed the results of this eval 1ation with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors,
and based on this evaluation, management has determined that as of December 31, 2006 a material
weakness existed relating to inadequate financial department staffing and a lack of financial accounting
expertise necessary to properly account for certain complex or non-routine transactions. Notwithstanding
the existence of this material weakness, we believe that the consolidated financial statements included in
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this report fairly present in all material respects our financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows for the periods presented. This deficiency resulted in the need for certain adjustments to equity-
based compensation expense including segment atlocation of this expense and certain other expense
estimates. Although none of these adjustments were material, until this deficiency is remediated,
management has concluded that there is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement to the
annual or interim consolidated financial statements could occur and not be prevented or detected by the
Company’s controls in a timely manner. Accordingly, management has determined that this control
deficiency constitutes a material weakness. Because of this material weakness, we have concluded that we
did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on the
criteria in Internal Control—Integrated Framework.

Remediation plan for material weakness in internal control over financial reporting

The lack of staff resources and financial expertise arose as a result of several issues including time
constraints imposed on the accounting staff as a result of our heavier than normal financial reporting
requirements during the fourth quarter of 2006 carrying into February 2007, employee turnover and our
inability to timely fill accounting and financial-related positions. Our management, with the oversight of
our Audit Committee, has devoted considerable effort to remediate the material weakness identified
above. However, as of December 31, 2006, we had not fully remediated the material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting.

We have already added one additional manager to the accounting department and we are actively
recruiting to fill additional open positions. In addition, we are implementing accounting software that will
enhance our capabilities across many accounting disciplines, particularly as it relates to share-based
compensation. We will more fully develop the technical expertise of our existing staff and fill open
positions with qualified replacements. We will engage additional outside consultants to bolster our U.S.
GAAP expertise until and after we have been successful in bringing the expertise in-house.

We believe that the actions described above and resulting improvement in controls will generally
strengthen our disclosure controls and procedures, as well as our internal control over financial reporting
and will, over time, address the material weakness that we have identified in our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. Many of the remedial actions we have taken are very recent,
and other remedial actions are yet to be implemented including the hiring of additional personnel.
Because our remediation efforts include the hiring of additional personnel many of the controls in our
current system of internal controls will still rely extensively on manual review and approval, and
management will not be able to conclude that the material weakness has been eliminated until such
additional personnel has been hired and the controls have been successfully operated and tested. While
there can be no assurance that we will be successful on a timely basis, we believe that we should be able to
adequately recruit and staff the accounting function. We expect the effort may take up to six months in
order to complete the recruiting and hiring of additional staff.

We, along with our Audit Committee, will continue to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of these
remedial actions and make further changes as deemed appropriate.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, has been audited by J.H. Cohn LLP, the independent registered public accounting
firm that audited our consolidated financial statements, as stated in their report which is included in this
report.
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Changes in internal control over financial reporting. adl

. ! - ' .4

Other than as noted above, during the quarter ended December 31, 2006, there was no change in our
internal control over financial reporting that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting subsequent to the date referred to above., '

T

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders Ca
Outdoor Channe! Holdings, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessme nt, included in the accompanying “Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting”, that Cutdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, because of the effect of the -
material weakness identified in management’s assessment, based on criteria established in Internal Control
- Integrated Framework issued by the Committ:e of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0). Outdoor Channel Holcings, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our resi)onsil)ility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

’

We conducted our audit in accordance w.th the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with account ng principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perriit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because: of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a materia misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in
management’s assessment. In its assessment as of December 31, 2006, management has determined that a
material weakness exists relating to inadequare financial department staffing and a lack of financial
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accounting expertise necessary to properly account for certain complex or non-routine.transactions. This -
deﬁc1ency resulted in the need for certain adjustments to equity-based compensation expense including
segment allocation of this expense and certain other expense estimates. Although none of these
adjustments were matenal until this deficiency is remediated, there is more than a remote hkehhood that
a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial Statements could occur and not be
prevented or detected by the Company’s controls in a timely manner. This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit tests applied in our audit of the 2006
consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our réport dated March 16, 2007 on those
financial statements.

-u, , In our opinion, management’s assessment that Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated; in all material
respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control -Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSO). Also, in our opinion, because of the -
effects of the material weakness described above in the achievement of the objective of the control criteria,
the Company has notimaintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of .
Sponsoring Organizations of the Trading Commission (COSO). ‘

“We do not exp}éss an opinion or any other form of assurance on management’s statements rélating to
new controls being implemented and tested.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountmg Over51ght
Board (United States) the consohdated balance sheets of Qutdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the three year period ending December 31, 2006 and
our report dated March 16, 2007 (which report included an explanatory paragraph regarding the
Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No 123 (Revised 2004) “Share-"
Based Payment ") expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LILP -
San D'ig':go, California "~
March }6, 2007

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
Not Applicable.
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PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERRS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Information required by Item 10 of Part IlI is included in our Proxy Statement relating to our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information required by Item 11 of Part IlI is included in our Proxy Statement relating to our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

" AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Information required by Item 12 of Part I} i5 included in our Proxy Statement relating to our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporzted herein by reference.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE.

Information required by Item 13 of Part 111 is included in our Proxy Statement relating to our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporz.ted herein by reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Information required by Item 14 of Part 111 is included in our Proxy Statement relating our 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporzated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(a) The following documents are included as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements

Index to Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules are omitted as the information is not required, is not material or is otherwise provided.

(3) List of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K. See-part (b) below.

(b) Exhibits

[:‘al,:::g:tr Description
21 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger among The Outdoor Channel, Inc.,
Outdoor Channe! Holdings, Inc. and Gold Prospector’s Association of America, Inc. dated as of
April 20, 2004, as amended and restated as of May 12, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference).

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger between Qutdoor Channel Holdings, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, and Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc., an Alaska corporation, dated as of
September 8, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 20, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Qutdoor Channel Holdings, Inc, a Delaware corporation (filed
as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Corrent Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 By-Laws of Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2004 and incorporated herein
by reference}.

4.1 Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including debentures (see exhibits 3.1 and
3.2 above).

10.1 Letter of intent dated August 27, 1993, regarding the proposed acquisition of Gold Prospector’s
Association of America, Inc. by the Company (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated February 13, 1995, by and between the Registrant
and Gold Prospector’s Association of America, Inc. (filed as Exhibit B to the Company’s
Form 8-K dated February 13, 1995 and incorporated herein by reference).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.3*

10.4

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. and its directors
and certain executive officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Revolving Credit Agreement and related agreements by and between the Company and U.S.
Bank N.A. dated September 30, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

1995 Stock Option Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the year
ended December 31, 1995 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Stock Option Agreement pw-suant to the Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan (filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registrztion Statement on Form S-8 with respect to the shares
underlying such plan that was filed on November 12, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference).

The Outdoor Channel, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 with respect to the shares underlying the options assumed
by the Company under such plan that was filed on November 12, 2004 and incorporated herein
by reference).

Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to The Outdoor Channel, Inc. 1997 Stock Option
Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S$-8 with respect to
the shares underlying the options assumed by the Company under such plan that was filed on
November 12, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan and Agreement, dated as of November 13, 2003, by and
between the Company and William A. Owen, as amended (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 with respect to the shares underlying such plan that was
filed on November 12, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Non-Employee Directors Stock Opticn Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 with respect to the shares underlying such plan that was
filed on November 12, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Stock Option Agreement pu:suant to Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003
and incorporated herein by reference).

2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filec as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form §-8 with respect to the shares underlying such plan that was filed on November 12,
2004 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Stock Option Award Agreenient pursuant to 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form §-K dated December 20, 2004 and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Restricted Shares Award Agreement pursuant to 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (filed
as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Forin 8-K dated December 20, 2004 and incorporated herein
by reference).

Omitted.
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Number

Description

10.16*

10.17*

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

21.1
231

Outdoor Channel Holdings, Inc. Executive Annual Cash Bonus Plan effective April 21, 2005
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended March 31, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Selling Stockholders Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2005, among Outdoor
Channel Holdings, Inc. and the selling stockholders who are a party (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed on June 28, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference).

Amendment to Loan Agreement and Note and related agreements by and between the
Company and U.S. Bank N.A. dated October 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Term Loan Agreement and related agreements by and between 43455 BPD, LLC and U.S.
Bank N.A. dated as of October 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Term Loan Agreement and related agreements by and between the Company and U.S. Bank
N.A. dated as of October 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Optionholders Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Company, Ray V. Miller and
Elizabeth J. Sanderson dated as of December 5, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current report on Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Lease by and between the Company and Musk Ox Properties, L.P. dated as of January 1, 2006
(filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 16, 2006
and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement with Roger L. Werner, Jr., effective as of October 16, 2006 (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 20, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Performance Unit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on October 20, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment of Employment Agreement with Roger L. Werner, Ir., effective as of November 9,
2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K fited on November 9,
2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Separation Agreement and Release between The Qutdoor Channel, Inc. and Mr. Andrew J.
Dale dated December 21, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Consulting Agreement between The Outdoor Channel, Inc. and Mr, Andrew J. Dale dated
January 2, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 28, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, which was filed on February 16, 2007,
and incorporated herein by reference).

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of J.H. Cohn LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Exhibit

Number Description
241 Power of Attorney (included or signature page)

31.1 Certification by Chicef Executive Officer

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer

32.1**  Sectton 1350 Certification by Chief Executive Officer

32.2**  Section 1350 Certification by Chief Financial Officer

*  Designates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

**  Pursuant to Commission Release No. 33-8238, this certification will be treated as “accompanying” this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and no: “filed” as part of such report for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ainended, or otherwise subject to the liability of Section 18 of the
Securities Fxchange Act of 1934, as ainended, and this certification will not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amnended, except to the extent that the registrant specifically
incorporates it by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 15 (d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

OUTDOOR CHANNEL HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ ROGER L. WERNER, JR.

Roger L. Werner, Jr,,
Chief Executive Officer and President
Dated: March 30, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all men by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Roger L. Werner, Jr. or William A. Owen, his or her attorney-in-fact, with power of substitution
in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this annual report on Form 10-K, and to file the same
with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange

Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the attorney-in-fact or his or her substitute or
substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. This power of attorney may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which taken together shall constitute
one instrument.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature Titte Date
/s/ PERRY T. MASSIE Chairman of the Board March 30, 2007
Perry T. Massie
/s{ ROGER L. WERNER. JR. Chief Executive Officer and March 30, 2007
Roger L. Werner. Jr. President (Principal Executive
Officer), Director
/s/ WILLIAM A. OWEN Chief Financial Officer and March 30, 2007
William A. Owen Controller (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)
/s/ THOMAS H. MASSIE Executive Vice President, March 30, 2007
Thomas H. Massie Secretary and Vice Chairman of
the Board
/s/ JERRY R. BERGLUND Director March 30, 2007
Jerry R. Berglund
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Signature

/s DAVID C. MERRITT

David C. Merritt

/s/ RAY V. MILLER

Ray V. Miller

/s{ ELIZABETH J. SANDERSON

Elizabeth J. Sanderson

/s/ T. BAHNSON STANLEY

T. Bahnson Stanley

Director

Director

Director

Director

Titte
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Date

March 30, 2007

March 30, 2007

March 30, 2007

March 30, 2007
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HOLDINGS S, INC.

3OARD OF DIRECTORS

rerry T. Massie
“hairman of the Board

'homas H. Massie
Jice Chairman of the Board

lerry R. Berglund

director, Colorado Uplift

Jirector, Foundation for Urban Youth
Ministries

Retired President, Denpak

David C. Merritt

Managing Director, Salem Partners
LLC

Director, Charter Communications,
Inc.

Director, Calpine Corporation

Ray V. Miller

Chairman of the Board, Carolina
Mountain Cablevision, Inc.

Chairman of the Board, Country
Cablevision, Inc.

Elizabeth J. Sanderson

Attorney

Former Director and Chairperson,
National Cable Television Center

T. Bahnson Stanley
Retired Executive Vice President,
The Weather Channel Companies

Roger L. Werner
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Perry T. Massie
Chairman of the Board

Roger L. Werner
President and Chief Executive Offic

Thomas E. Hornish
Executive Vice President,
Chief Operating Officer
and General Counsel

William A. Owen
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

INVESTOR RELATIONS

PondelWilkinson Inc.

1880 Century Park East, Suite 700
Los Angeles, California 90067
Tel: (310) 279-5980
investor@pondel.com

TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Trust Company, In
350 Indiana Street, Suite 800
Golden, Colorado 80401

Tel: (303) 262-0600

SECURIYTIES LISTING

Outdoor Channel Holdings' comm
stock is traded on the Nasdaq Glo
Market under the symbol OUTD.
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
43445 Business Park Drive, Suite 1

Temecula, Californta 92590
Tel: (951} 699-6991
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31445 Business Park Drive, Suite 103
Temecula CA 92590

Tel: 951.699.6991
www.outdoorchanll"luelholdings.com

NASDAQ Symbol: OUTD




